CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
REGULAR MEETING & EXECUTIVE SESSION
Held at 16770 SE 82" Dr. Clackamas, OR 97015 Clackamas River Water
This Meeting will have both an in person and remote option for attending
July 18, 2024 at 4:00pm
AGENDA
Public Comment: If a member of the public wishes to address the Board during a meeting, they are
encouraged to inform Boatd staff through email to kholzgang@crwater.com no later than 4pm the day of the
meeting. If a person will attend the meeting through Zoom and wishes to provide public comment, prior
notice to kholzgang@crwater.com no later than 4pm on the day of the meeting is tequired in order to ensure
access. The notice should include the following information: (1) Full name; (2) Addtess/City/ZIP; (3) Email
address or phone number to be used to access the Zoom meeting, so it can be unmuted; (4)
Disttict/ Ortganization/Public; and (5) Topic of your public comment and or specific agenda item you wish to
speak on.

Members of the public are welcome to speak for a maximum of three minutes during a time designated on
the agenda for public comment. The speaker must state their name, address, and if they are a customer or
not for the record. Public comment provided at the beginning of the agenda will be reserved for comment on
agenda items, special presentations, letters, and complaints. Public comment as listed at the ezd of the agenda
will be for the purpose of “wrapping up” any remaining concerns.

Anyone who wishes to attend the meeting remotely may do so by internet at
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88177736175 ot by calling the following number 1-253-215-8782 and join
meeting/ 881 7773 6175#. Passcode: 085397

REGULAR MEETING @ 4:00pm
Call to Otdet, and Roll Call — Sherry French, President
a. Approval of the Agenda

Recess Regular Meeting and Open Executive Session

EXECUTIVE SESSION

1. Discuss information or records that are exempt by law from public inspection pursuant to ORS
192.660 (2) (f) and 192.355 (9) (a) and ORS 40.225

2. To conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to negotiate real
propetty transactions. ORS 192.660 (2) (e)

3. To conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to cartry on labor
negotiations ORS 192.660 (2) (d)

RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING -immediately following the Executive Session

Call to Order

Public Comment (see blue box: at the top of the agenda

Consent Agenda
CA-1: Gross Payroll and Accounts Paid: June 2024

Next Page




CA-2: Cash & Investment Ending Balances Report

CA-3: Project Acceptance: Accept Capital Outlay Project “SysOps Shop Renovation”,
Project 23-2329- Adam Bjornstedt, Chief Engineer

Action Items

1. Consider Adoption of Resolution 01-2025 Adopting the Clackamas River Water
Representation in the Updates to the Clackamas County Multi-Jurisdictional Natural
Hazard Mitigation Plan- Beth McGinnis, Emergency Manager

2. Recurring Payments: Consider Approval of Recurting Payments for FY 2024-25
Contracts in Excess of General Manager’s Approval Authotity- Todd Heidgerken, General
Manager

3. Consider Approval of Contract with Springbrook for Financial System Software and
Annual Subscription Fees- Todd Heidgerken, General Manager

4. Consider Second Reading, By Title Only, and Adoption of Resolution 07-2024
Updating Board Policy- Todd Heidgerken, General Manager

5. Consider Approval of the Payment to North Clackamas County Water Commission for
Water Purchases During the CRW Water Treatment Plant Shutdown Project -Todd
Heidgerken, General Manager

6. Consider Approval of Resolution 02-2025: Request for Annexation into CRW Service
Boundaty for Property at 19510 S. Ferguson Tetrance—_Adam Bjornstedt, Chief Engineer

7. Consider Exemption to Rules and Regulations Requiring Frontage to Main for Water
Service at 17482 Garden Lane- Adam Bjornstedt, Chief Engineer

8. Consider Approval of Purchase of Replacement F550 Service Truck for Meter
Maintenance Tasks - Adam Bjornstedt, Chief Engineer

9. Professional Services Agreement Amendment: I-205 Crossings, Consultant Services,
Project 22-5291- Joseph Eskew, Engineering Manager

10. Professional Services Agreement Amendment: 82nd Drive Watetline, Phase 2
Consultant Services, Project 23-5303- Joseph Eskew, Engineering Manager

Informational Reports

11. Management Report — Todd Heidgerken, General Manager
12. Public Comment (see biue box at the top of the agenda)

Commissionetr Business
13. Commissioner Reports and Reimbursements

e Commissioner Assignments- Sherry French, Board President

Adjourn regular meeting

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for accommodations for persons
with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours before the meeting to Adora Campbell (503) 722-9226.




Agenda Item —

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER CA-1
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
July 18, 2024
SUBJECT Gross Payroll and Accounts Paid
DRAFT MOTION Move to approve the consent agenda items as presented
EFFECTIVE DATE July 18, 2024
PRINCIPAL STAFF
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Acknowledge receipt of information as patt of the apptroval of the consent
REQUESTED agenda.
DOCUMENTS 1) FEarnings Statements for June 2024, Payrolls — 2 regular payrolls and 1
ATTACHED supplemental payroll - $293,268.39

2) Monthly Check History for June 2024 - $1,271,008.93 (net)

July 18, 2024 Agenda Item CA-1 Page 1 of 1



2 QY 207 886k O WOMseD

z 9bed  $20Z/90/90 : S1eq Aed 9.0 : ws) s0meg ZIe  :8poD Auedwon sjejo] Auedwo) ,
€2 J93M  $Z0Z/90/90 : Buipuz pousd  920-2888 : yieg JIVM M3AR SYWYMIOV 1D 19)s169y |j01hed a
0 ‘03INRd SYIHONOA ¥3dvd 00° ‘HSYD 13N
0 ‘SHUIHONOA® 4 ‘SIN3NLSNraQY BE ¥BE'S ‘SAIOA 13N
“H3BWNN MO3HO ONION3 +3NON. JHOW ¥O 00°000°F SAVd HSVD 13N “S¥3HONOA 00° *S1S0d3a V1oL
_VISNNN HOFHO ONLLIVLS «3NON. ‘q309vid SMD3HD 6EVBE'S “TI0¥AVd L3N

¥ S¥NOH 00"

SSOYO sop'ize'e G SONINYYZ 00" € SHNOH 41721
7 SONINYVZ 00" € SONINYV3 8S°6.5°S 10 00
SNOLLONGQ3a TVLOL OL'¢vE i o 05°29 Zie
s s p S sl o RS

~ SNOILDNA3a AHVINNTOA IV10L ANVANOD



Tot Cks/Nchrs:00000000013 Total Pages:00000000015 - Page count not applicable for iReports
WEEK 24 BATCH 0325 44 PAYS

0 Employees With Overflow Statement Earnings Statement
0 Overflow Statement 1 Total Statement
First No. Last No. Total
Checks: ADPCHECK ADPCHECK 00000000000

Vouchers: 00000240001 00000240044 00000000013

Total Vouchers Bypassed: 00000
Total Checks Bypassed: 00000 SEAT 312 TOTAL DOCUMENT

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATE
LOCATION 0002

CHECK STUFFING, RECONCILIATION

142564.46 GROSS
90042.31 NET PAY (INCLUDING ALL DEPOSITS)
14225.20 FEDERAL TAX
8640.40 SOCIAL SECURITY
2020.73 MEDICARE
.00 MEDICARE SURTAX
.00 SUIDIFLI/MLE TAX
8654.53 STATE TAX
.00 LOCAL TAX
109023.60 DEDUCTIONS
.00 NET CHECK

SEAT COMPANY CODE 312
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATE
TOTAL DOCUMENT
LOCATION 0002

NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE



Tot Cks/\Vchrs:00000000011 Total Pages:00000000013 - Page count not applicable for iReports
WEEK 26 BATCH 0563 42 PAYS

0 Employees With Overflow Statement Earnings Statement
0 Overflow Statement 1 Total Statement
First No. Last No. Total
Checks: ADPCHECK ADPCHECK 00000000000

Vouchers: 00000260001 00000260042 00000000011

Total Vouchers Bypassed: 00000
Total Checks Bypassed: 00000 SEAT 312 TOTAL DOCUMENT

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATE
LOCATION 0002

CHECK STUFFING, RECONCILIATION

142382.47 GROSS
90444.35 NET PAY (INCLUDING ALL DEPOSITS)
13616.56 FEDERAL TAX
86290.06 SOCIAL SECURITY
2018.08 MEDICARE
.00 MEDICARE SURTAX
.00 SUI/DIUFLIUMLI TAX
8389.20 STATE TAX
.00 LOCAL TAX
109729.57 DEDUCTIONS
.00 NET CHECK

SEAT COMPANY CODE 312
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATE
TOTAL DOCUMENT
LOCATION 0002

NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE



| :9bed

0L'€92 OONVOZIOH ¥2/.2/S50 9961610.82420 ™IV VISYIV
00'08¢ ANOLNVYHOS +¢/.2/S0 0711 OVHLNIHD
12'662 1113dIb L $2/.2/50 G00€86..X4034
89°€2¢ JINVNNNO8O3IM +¥2/.2/50 ONIHOZ190VIA
ge'6ce 91HOIZS ¥2/.2/50 TN - VIF3ZZId 3id ONIATA
00°vGe 9STTAOA ¥2/.2/50 OO LOd3d3INCH
ov'0.LE ENOLNYYOS +2/.2/50 L10¥ LOd3A INOH FHL
LLLLE [F18VAvYd ¥2/22/50 ¢10¥22y008 TVHNLYN MN
Li'vle PNOLNVYHOS +2/.2/50 0¥0¥ LOd3Ad INOH IHL
1€°00¥ BINGVAVd $2/.2/G0 ANVANOD FOVEHVDO SYWWIOVID
gerely 93719GVAVd $2/L2/G0 ALIILA AMNVYMTIN HO
€CoLY BAVY ¥2/.2/50 HHUVO-HILSVINOIN
qel8Y ANIMH3OAITH $2/.2/50 SIXVL IN YIAOTdNG A3
LL29% OSITAOA $2/L2/S0 ONI OO "HOLVIND3Y SLIVM
L1'9.8 qS3TAOA +¥2/.2/50 1dlI ONVY1Ld0d NMOHD
91929 SMONOH ¥2/L2/50 ANVYO 1HOdN3IAVA IJHL
££°899 UMONOH ¥2/.2/50 S1339 dSOH AF13 dS
Ly GeL 13719VAVd $2/.2/50 210¥22¥008 TVHNLYN MN
00°€GL INOLNVYYOS ¥2//2/50 077 OVHLNIHD
86°Ch8 MONOH ¥2/.2/50 /600# ISHM 001802
00°006 U39VvAVYd ¥2/.2/G0 dIHSHAgGINTGN ddOH0 Sva
§9'606 ANOLNVYHOS +¥2/.2/50 ONI LNINdIND3 1034400
0066 EMONOH ¥2¢/.2/S0 CCHOEHSTHLSN dIMIN NZINY
666611 BMONOH ¥2/22/50 SYHIVHD ANV 37gVL d1M
666611 PS3TAOA $2/22/50 INOD OD1S0OD MWW
00°6£Z'L 41a31SNYOrg +2/22/80 SLINIAZG YMWY
60°8€Z'L 81137dId L ¥2/.2/50 SOILSONSVIA GHVANY.LS d109
00'092'L ASINNIDOW +2/.2/G0 "ONI ‘X0g
61°G6E'L UNOLNYYOS +2/.2/G0 NOO ANV SINIWNAYLSNI d13i4
00°0Sv'L PAYY ¥2/.2/50 | ANYdINOD ONIMVYS F13HIONOD
¥6°L1G'L OLHOIATS ¥2/.2/S0 0¥0¥# LOd3A IINOH FHL MNVE SN 66610 ¥202/01/90 8969
90'2.5¢ 90°2.G'e Y2 LE'G0 dd dINOD ¥3430 'NOILONAAA TTIOHAVd AYYLINNTOA NOODIHO 4O JLVIS - 13IFHISILID 92€00 +20¢/50/90 1959
G6'€29'2 G629 2 1€°60 dd dINOD ¥3434Q 'NOILONAZA TTOHAVd AHVINNTOA ONI 66000 +202/50/90 9969
65°106'GE 6G°106'GE ¥2'82°60 Hd 1G¥6912882691°0LG¥691'621269): LINAL SHAd S¥3Id NOD3IHO 62000 ¥20¢2/50/90 959
[ejol 3o9yo pied junowy 9210AU| uonduosag IOpusp ajeq #994D
yueqde :apo9o queg
¥20¢/0S/9 o1 v20e/H/9
I9)eAN 19ARY Sewe)yoe[) Nd9v:ZL  ¥202/L0/L0
| :abed IsiHyode

Bunsiq AoysiH o9y Alyjuoy



Z :abed

0v'08 ASNOILYHAdO +2/.2/50 EHM0091 L3 NOD'NOZVINY
G/'18  BlAILSNMOrd v2/L2/S0 ST3L1OH 33¥1319n0a
L6E8 OSNOILVYH3dO +2/.2/50 ESNENDLOALNOD NOZVINY
96°G8 GAINSINODON +2/.L2/50 AVIOIdOHL 10dS 1M 3HL
§9'88 BAVYH ¥2/.2/50 L10¥ LOd3d ANOH JHL
9868 B319VAVd $2/22/50 210¥22¥008 TVHNLYN MN
00°06 813addNVO ¥2/.2/50 YMMY SMNdx TVdAYd
00'96 PYMONOH +2/.2/50 DONIMEVd LHOdHIY XAd
66'66 o1 131dId L $2/22/50 EONAPAAEETLSN dIMIN NZINY
00501 BT139dNVO ¥2/22/G0 a1emyos [eyduad ONI ONIHLONIMIH
25901 1A19VYAVd +¥¢/.2/50 21L0¥22¥008 TVHNLVYN MN
00°801 ITI39dNYD $2/22/50 Jaquiswyuonesliqnd 1SISSY TYOINHOL 1108
LL'OLL  PAIMSINOODIN $2/12/S0 L10v# 10d3d INOH IHL
c0'9LL qAVYY +2/.2/S0 20dd0 10 ANVAINOD YN LSYA
66'9L1L SINVYNNNOYO3Y $2/.2/50 NOD'AQAVAOD«HNG
66'9LL  BNVNNNOSOIM ¥2/.2/50 OO AQAYAODLHNG
6,221 TAGMSHNODOIN +2/.2/50 L10V# LOd3d FINOH THL
Seiel  JSATIMSHINOOOWN ¥2/L2/50 HHVI-HIALSVYINOIN
oy’ ovl PSNOILYHIdO $2/.2/50 €ZIN9L 4003+SN dIMN NZWVY
S0°LyL OF19VAVd $2/.2/50 N3 ¥3LVM ALNNOD SYWVAHOVIO
06'6%1 ISNOILVYY3dO ¥2/.2/50 LLO¥# 10430 IINOH IHL
0Le9l AONVYOZTOH $2/.2/50 6290610LE£2L20 ¥V WISYIV
0¥’ 0LL PLLATdIML #2/.2/50 Ogz10L Y31 L3N
€6°0LL qll3aNdIdl ¥e/Le/s0 AHISHNN ANVY1LH0d
00°GLL QLHOITTS +2/L2/50 Ing
00°GLL B1HOIFTS +2/.2/G0 InNg
0,081 INOLINVYOS ¥2/22/50 ST7a3Y ISOH A313 dS
LG 18l BAIMUSINODOIN ¥2/.2/50 L10t# 10d3d 3NOH 3HL
G918l G319vAvd ¥2/.2/50 Nz H31VM ALNNOD SYINVIOVTD
00661 dM3ddNVD ¥2/.2/50 AODO3IN
06661 AF19VAVYd $2/.2/G0 210¥22y008 TVHNLYN MN
2.L'80¢ ENIMHIDAITH ¥2/L2/50 ANVHD LJdOdINIAVA FHL
180l AATMSINODDWN $2/L2/50 L10¥ 10d3d INOH IHL
0zéle MONOH ¥2/22/50 €1LABAX90D8xSN dIMN NZINVY
€62V BAIMSINOODOWN ¥2/.2/50 0 Jusweo Jossjied /L0y 1O43A IWOH IHL
0LPre PITEVAVd $2/L2/50 N3 YILYM ALNNOD SYWYMOVTIO
86'6vC GONOH ¥2/L2/50 I18VL OINOId ¥O4 VTIIHGWN/NOD ODLSOD MWW
£6°.6¢ IATISINODDIN ¥2/22/50 L1L0V LOd3d INOH IHL
[ejol 3o29yn pled junowy 9310AU] uonduosaq JOpUaA ajeq #%294D
jueqde :8po2jueg
¥20¢/0S/9 o1 ¥20c/1/9
13)ep JDAIY sewe)oe|D Nd9Y:ZL  ¥20Z/L0/L0
Z :obeg Bupnsin Auo3sip ey Ajlyuop IsiHyode



¢ :abed

6C'¥ USNOILYY3dO #2/22/50 L10v# 10d3d SWOH 3HL
96°G BSNOILYHIdO $2/£2/50 £d32SS6MELSN dININ NZINY
66'6 ISTTAOA ¥2/22/50 NOO'LOd3AINOH
66'6 ONVYNNNOSO3N ¥2/.2/S0 €LN6IANENHLSN dLIMN NZINY
0901 ISNOILYY3JO ¥2/22/50 621008910% Od SdSN
SL'LL JONVOZI0H ¥2/.2/50 €900# dIAIN-a3 4
00z} eSINNIDOW +2/22/50 29 ADIOANI »LNOYdSZZNG
667L  ISNOLLYYIO ¥2/L2/50 EMOLEZ0AN.SN d.LMN NZNY
0g'el INOLNVHOS +2/.2/S0 90G2.€0 OOVX4L
JA 4% PONVOZIOH ¥2/22/50 EHHSLVYBH9.SN dIMIN NZINY
6671 AMONOH +2/42/50 €1A8AX908xSN dIMIN NZWNY
006l BONVOZTOH ¥¢/.2/S0 1SVAMVYIEE OH 13N «LNIAD
L6'GL WNOLNYMOS ¥2/.2/50 £Y1¥AA8MLLSN dIMIN NZWY
6691 BSNOILYYIdO $2/22/50 €ZVEL0EVOLSN d AN NZINY
00°0C MONOH ¥2/.2/50 FOVISOdSN« WOD'SJAAVLS
00°0¢ BSTTAOA ¥2/22/50 NOILdIEOS9NS 1dOLVHO
6602 BNOLNVHOS v2//2/50 €ZUIAIEOTLSN dIHIN NZINY
gLie wW3IgVYAVYd +¥2/.2/50 ILN -ALID NOOD3HO 40 ALID
00°2e JSNOILYHIJO ¥2/22/50 €HZEd0.LZE.SN d 1IN NZINY
9z'ee OAVY +2/.2/50 L10¥# 10Od3A INOH IHL
80°G¢C BAIMSINODDN +2/22/50 L10¥# 1Od3d INOH JH.L
8C'6¢C el131dIdL ¥2/42/50 ErOZBYINAdSN dIMN NZINY
00°0¢ ASNOILVYY3dO v2/.2/S0 HLINSHOOT INOSIMYVY V. DS
96°C¢ B1L1T1dIML ¥2/42/50 €900# HIAIN-AIHd
162¢ JAIUSINODDOIN +¥2/.2/S0 AlddNS JOLOVHINOD
8C'¥¢ IMONOH ¥2/42/50 €1A8AXS08xSN dIMIN NZNY
8¥'ve Y31dvAVvd ¥2/.2/50 EXdSOMYEMINOD NOZVYINY
0.°8¢ IF19VAVd ¥2/42/50 210¥22¥008 TVENLYN MN
96°6¢€ 9SNOILYYH3dO v2/.2/50 €HZEFOLZELSN dIMIN NZINY
66'6€ q1139dINVD ¥2/.2/S0 9042689756 Fdd NIAIMNIT
68'vS BONVYOZIOH ¥2/42/50 ANV LNNOd
6£°9G OMONOH $2/.2/50 0v0¥# LOd3A INOH IHL
16°99 9ONVOZTOH ¥2/.2/50 EHHSLV8HO.SN dIMIN NZINY
2989 PLHDIFTS ¥2/42/50 €900# YIAIN-AT L
6665  PINVYNNNOYO3M ¥2/.2/S0 390av. 380av
0229 INOLNVYOS ¥2/£2/50 EVNLYHEZIZ.SN dIMIN NZIWY
1569 SNOLNVHOS +2/.2/50 L10¥# 10d43A FNOH FHL
0008 PT139dINYO $2/.2/50 O NOO3HO 40 INOVIT 0071
[ejol 3osyo pied junowy 9210AU} uonduosaqg IOPUaA ajed #294D
Jueqde :8podueg
¥20c/0S/9 o3 ¥C0c/H/9
19]JBAA IOALY Seweyde|D INd9Y:TL ¥202/10/L0
¢ :abeyg Bunsi Aoysip —"ayo A|yjuop IsiHpjode



p :abed

26'L 6L £06585¢ 270 "d0O4d SONILLi4 OAd L ONI SESIIdHEELINT NOSNOY3L ¥#810 ¥202/90/90 62596
2€°66.°'1 2e66.L'L €Ee¥CoCL 1INSVO ONIY #0614 .8/1 ® 02-06£€ 40 SOd ¥ ONI S3SIHdEILINT NOSNOY3 v+810 202/90/90 82596
06°182'L 06°'182'L G12.L¥9IS NV INFANTIAODO OI NOILOITTIOD 23V MSIA0 LNV SNOILNTOS 11d 20+00 ¥202/90/90 12596
S¥' L9 S¥'L9 oeeeee S1IMOVd AuUv0d 40 AM3AINEA ONI LHOdSNVYHL 10341 812€0 $202/90/90 925996
06°L21 06°Lc) ¥2'20'90 ININISHNEGdINIFE ONIHLOTD IAILOFLOHd OL134d3a ATHL 18v+0 +¥202/90/90 GZG96
€0°686'1L €0°G86°L £12002veL T1VE ITTIHOVY ‘SIDIAYIS ¥H dINT L ONIJ4VLS TVIONVNIL FAILYIYED 2L¥E0 202/90/90 ¥2596
19°¢6¢ 19°¢6¢ €085090298€6.L 3 ‘NOILONAIA TIOHAYd AYVY.LNNTOA $20Z INNP J417 IVINO10D 61500 ¥202/90/90 £2996
€0°LOY'L €0°LOV'L NI-€6%9.G0 013 ¥VY1NO3d d3avaiNn ONI NISN3LSIMHO L18€0 ¥202/90/90 22596
£6'9/9'0 £€5'9/9'9 68811106 J1V4INS NNNINNTY 271 SN STVOINIHO 3AVHLNIHD G2ee0 ¥202/90/90 12596
00'+88°'L 00¥88°'L 1106 YA AVTO HLIM TTVLSNI IATVA HSYM MOVE d1M OT1 ONILOVIINOD NOANVD 619¥0 ¥202/90/90 02596
6.'919'69 ¥1°,68'0¢€ 14 123rodd AV1LNO T0LIdVD
S9'66.'8¢ £ 103r0¥d AVILNO TOLIdYD "ONI NOILONYLSNOD Ng 09660 #20Z/90/90 61596
00°00€ 00°00€ YMMY $202 10 ¥3d TYIW ‘TONIHIANOD TYNNNY $202 VMMY La31SNYOrg WYaY ¥6220  $202/90/90 81596
00°sy 00°Sv L1¥28100048Y LE€2LL0# 1SO ANN43™ an NOLdN 4 WYITTIM €¥2¥0 ¥202/10/90 08526
50'220'6 502206 202 AVIN L# INVHOYIIN) ONISSTOONd LNIIWAV ¥202 AVIN ONISSIDOUd VOINO 06E70 ¥202/02/90 G189
G6'8¥9'C G6'8¥9°C $2'22'€0 dd dNOD Y3430 ‘NOILONAZA TTI0OHAVd AYV.INNTOA ONI §6000 ¥202/02/90 1G9
9T'vve 9T v¥e Y202 AVIN giN Y202 AVIN ONITTIE INVHOH3IN MNVE SN 65610 #202/02/90 €189
G6'€29' G6'€29'C Y2 %1790 ¥d dWOD Y3430 ‘NOILONAZAA TT0HAYd AYV.LNNTOA ONI §6000 ¥202/02/90 LG9
90246 90'2.5' ¥2'21'90 dd dINOD ¥=430 :NOILLONAZA T10HAVd AHVY.LINNTOA NOOFHO 40 FLVLS - 13FHLSILID 9€€00 +¥202/02/90 1299
16789' 15289'c 202 AYIN SVYD 202 AVIN SISATVNY ¥3NOLSND MNVE SN 65610 ¥202/02/90 0489
89°//G'GE 98°,/6'GE 221790 ¥d 0¥8.691'G190041'G1 18691082691 :LINdSHId Sd3d NOD3IHO 62000 +¥202/02/90 6969
€1°005'6¢ 0009 ONIHYIADAITH v2/L2/50 S1INIAT VMY
G8'L1- ONOLNYYHOS ¥2/.2/50 L10¥# LOd3A INOH FHL
6Y'C  UAIMSINODOW $2/.2/50 £900# YIAIN-QFH
Jejo] ¥29yo pied junowy 9910AU| uonduosag lopuap ajeq #99yo
jueqde :9po2yueg
¥20C/0S/9 o3 ¥20¢/1/9
19]BAA J9ALY Sewexoe|) INd9Y:ZL  ¥202/10/L0
y :ebed Bunsi Aiojsip —ayo Ajyuop IsiHyode



G :abed

00'86'Z 006.Z IAYTS NOILONHLSNOO ANV “INIVIN 310110313
00'865'9} 12612 OIYLOT T3 AMITIVO HOH TIV.LSNI TINVd
S¥'L19'82 898.2 ad NVONVYIA NOILDIJSNI LTNVA ANVYJINOD J1d.L10373 INVEL ¥6€€0 ¥202/90/90 Y596
06292 08292 [4 24 14043 ONIMOLINOW ‘FOHVYHOSIA TYANNY INTS ONI STFIDOTONHOIL J11Ld3S 6£€00 ¥20¢/90/90 £¥G96
002LL'e 00zLL'e ¥8ELE9€9 TIOHAVd - NOILISOd AYVHOdINT L 077 47VH Ld390d 01E¥0 ¥202/90/90 ZPG96
00'990% 00°000'L 8GGC.LEIGE 10 MOAVYIIN AYMIN S 2E6L1
00¥LE'L 80€L1196¢ 9€20-¥022 212 AMH 38 G9G¢EL
002S.L'L 80€£28995¢€ QY ANVY103Y S L0P8L 2 QY ANV1A3™ S GL¥81L ONI TVLININNOMIANT ALID ¥3AIY 8¥5E0 ¥202/90/90 1596
SLLp0'LE SLLy0'LE £6296 HLISNOD ANV NOISZA L03Arodd TvHNLONMLS d1M ONI ONIYIINIONT ¢HY 966€0 ¥202/90/90 0¥596
00°081 00081 ¥92€£200€05 ~ €2E€L18GG0L #1020V ASVYIT ¥3Id0OD NOILYIO.LNY 301440 21410vd 86110 ¥202/90/90 6£596
80166 80°166 Y2 1€°G0 ¥d 2’1260 dd ¥0O4 S3ANA NOINN FNDS 4V NODIHO €800 #202/90/90 8£596
G6'8L1L gL'g 200122€09.9¢ dNS 01440 - 822£898¢#Al - 081 L9206#100V
oL'gl 1009689€9.29¢ dNS 301440 - 822€898€#AI - 081 1 9206#LO0V
286 100122€0.9¢ dNS F0I40 - 822€898€#Al - 081 L9Z06#LDY ONI 10d3a 301440 90€00  #202/90/90  LES96
LE£°€66'C 11°69 628¢ NOILdIYOSENS FHVYMLAOS LI
00'96 128¢ NOILJI-MOSENS FHVYAMLAOS LI
000L8 818¢ HHOM LOVHLNOD
0S'LL¥'L 66.¢ MHOM LOVHLINOD
0£°009'} gege 8NS NOLLYOINNWIWNOOITAL  "ONI dNOMO ADOTONHOIL INOHAVIN 08440 $202/90/90 95596
00°ErL'L 00°ErL'L $3NA SZAS Z S3NA dIHSHIGWIN SO - 92802# ¥YIWOLSND SINTWHIAOO 40 TIONNOD INVT 68280 $202/90/90  SEG96
9.°¢6t'L 9L°¢6¥'L 16666581 ANVL dXF/NOILOINNOD FAISMOVE ONIGNNTd ISNEM #0970 ¥202/90/90 ¥£596
00'eee 00'€ee YMMY 202 10 ¥3d TvaN ‘FONTHIANOD TYNNNY +202 VMMY NIMHEIDAIFH AAOL +9L+0 ¥202/90/90 £€596
00°69/°L 006921 08z8-L¢ TIVLSNI - WYY YILINOW ANY SHIVHD 943 (2) SINTLSASHHOM SIHdHVH L¥SL0 ¥202/90/90 2€596
00°009'% 00°009'% Zrleol IVO3T IVHIANID Od ONOTONVHHVH 0¥2€0 ¥202/90/90 1£596
v1°L26 v1'G 9¥G.LGLYeLE MOOTINVO YINDOT]
00'¥l 0£6.6+.806 13008 08 AaHIS ONITdNOD HONI 2/1
00'8¢ 8¥6.6¥.806 d37dN0OD 08 A30S
00088 0622582606 NOMOIN § W40 H3LT14 ONI YFONIVYO 29100 $202/90/90  0€S96
|ejol 3294yo pied junowy 39]0AU] uonduasag IOpUdA ajeq #3994y
jueqde :apod)ueg
¥202/0S/9 o3  ¥¢0c/1/9
191eA JOATY Seweyoe|) Nd9V:ZL  ¥202/1L0/20
g :obey Bunsi Aiojsip ayo AJYyjuop I1siHyode



9 :abed

02'68L'L 02'68L') 015121 9€20-v02Z LS ANVTHIAOC IS 050L ONIONIOOVI4AH® A L9EL0  ¥202/02/90 29596
00'028' 00082 188vE Sd NTATIOH VAT HIDINIYAS
00°0¥5' GLvzve JONVNILNIVIN ONIVOSANYT $202 AV ONIdVOSANYT SNITHO TWISAND 96820  +202/02/90  19S96
PELPL'G 80°€80'} 022022421 TIvE IT1IHOVY 'STOIANIS HH dWIL
£E'166' 612082¥2L TIVE ITIIHOVY ‘STOINHTS HH dWTL
£6'990'C 122012¥2) TIvE ITTIHOVY 'STOIAMIS ¥H dNTL ONIHHVLS IVIONYNIH SAILYINO ZLvE0  $202/02/90 09596
00612 00642 882y A¥d QvOY ONVIATY "ONI ‘SHOAIAYNS ONVT SSVYANOD $LL20  $202/02/90 65596
68'957 58'957 " ezL6602 1/90 WO¥4 LINYILNI T19VO ATHINOW 1SYOWOD ISVOWOD 6620  +202/02/90 85596
02028 02°0L8 ovLELZ HO ¥ISN Y3d T34 ¥ISN ATHLNOW / £5L0-SINHO INTINTOVNVIN SONOOTY ANOTO L6560 $202/02/90  2SG96
9£°092'2 9£'092'2 8610005011 S3MddNS/dVOS/3dVd ¥20Z AVIN SNOILNTOS ALMIOVA IAIM ALID 95250 +202/02/90 95596
52808 G2'80¢ 112268 JLIMOTHOOJAH INNICOS ONI 0D 1SI0 VIBNNTOD 3a¥OSYO 9¥6L0  $202/02/90  GSG96
00'P¥0' 007¥0'S 1821584 SAATVA ATddNS dNMOVE HSYMMOVE ONI SHIIANIONT OTIONVO L4280  +202/02/90  $5S96
09'€1LE'S0} 09'€1LE'S0L g 103r0¥d AYILNO TOLIdVO "ONI NOILONYMLSNOO NS 0960 +202/02/90  £5596
67125 6v'125 $£6102000404 ¥ 2£20# 180 PUNISY €N AMMIE JINVF 0Z9%0  $202/02/90 25596
osere's oc'ere's 86216 JOV.LSOd ¥ ONISSID0Hd ¥20Z INAF B AVI O71'S3IOINYTS ONMIVIN ONIE L08¥0  $202/02/90 15596
v1ege 8626 2L05v1625 1ddNS "LNIVIN ONIQTING - 0006¥97E6# LOOY
8626 8650/71625 1ddNS "LNIVIN ONIGTING - 0006¥9¥E6# LOOY
986 11099¥ 1625 1ddNS "LNIVIN ONIGTING - 0006+9¥€6# LOOV
28'66 29v19¥1625 7ddNS “LNIVIN ONIGTING - 0006+¥9¥6# LOOV ONI SIOIAYTS WHOHINN YVINVEY 68200  $Z02/0Z/90  0GS96
89°020'L 89°00' Ge8Lye 0Z INNM LONA3A TIO¥AVd “TOA - EXNX0 100V JONVHNSSY T ATIAVS NYOIMIWY 20000 $202/0Z/90 64596
98°022 98'022 28562¥6716 S3MddNS HOYOL ANY ONIdTAM ONI VSN SYOMIV 26000 $202/02/90  8S96
512 5L€1Z'G gvLE 1INSNOD LIGNY/ZONYNIA OTTONILINSNOD ITOM LGP0 202/90/90  /+S96
00°008°} 00°008'} G/25¢ SMIYANY SIAVHL 40 STOINNIS TVEOTIOSM S8PY0  $202/90/90  9¥S96
v'.6 Sy'op 0¥98Z5H-ANI SWOOMLSTY T18V.LHO 40 ONINYITO
00'LS 9/9¥ZGH-ANI SWOOYLSTY F19V.LHOd 40 ONINVITO ONI SFDIAYIS TLIS GALINA 20400 +202/90/90  Sv596
SH0LL0S 00°Lt6'L £06.2 SHOM TYORILOTTI ANY ONILHOIT dOHS
8301 329y9 pied junowy 9910AU] uonduasag Jopusp sl  #o9yo
V_CNQQN 19p0I Mueg
#20¢/0€/9 o1 $202/L/9
I9JEAA JDARY sewexoe|d INd9V-CL ¥202/10/L0
g :obeg Bunsi Auoysip mayo Ajyjuop IsiHpode



, :9beyg

00°L0€ 00'40€ 2190 NOILYOI<I41¥30 NOILNGILSIA ¥ T3AT HLIISAN HSOr G8/€0  +202/02/90  £8596
££'669' £€'669' 00-L¥L06YE JDIANIS ANV HIVdIY YOSSTHINOD $ZAS 02 dIND3 B dNNd LSIMHLYON L6E00  $202/0Z/90 28596
00625’} 00'52¥'} 9z6zE L HALLTT MOT4%OVE TYNNNY WY3L SS3dd NYWILNNIN €82€0  $202/0Z/90 18596
0056} 00°61 ¥2'1E'50 SLL061 # LOOV - T¥SOdSIA ILYM arlos OdlIN96LI0  +202/0Z/90 08596
00'296 00°08% £8950vZ ONILSTL HILYM SHNON
00'Z8% $8O50VT ONILSIL HILVM SHWON ONI “TVOILATYNY TI38dINVOON ZESY0  ¥202/02/90 6596
00°¥E 00°5¥E b2 1190 MO 40 NOLLY3HD ANV NOISIA ¥O4 SIOINYTS "ONI SOIHAVHO MST 1LY $202/02/90 82596
00°08S 00°08S 6,629 QM ANVIA3Y S /81 6000-FZ#OM  ONINOS TYNOILOTHIA IdVOSINI OT128¥20  $202/02/90  L/G96
607085 60°08S S0¥18800.222 SLHvd Tyivas 002-42 ONI SHILNIO FuIL 8YMHOS STTEEL00  $202/02/90  9/596
28116 Z2'116 ShLELZ SNOL § ~LTVHdSY XIIN G100 133¥LS 73 ONI STIMLSNANI JAISTHVI G¥520  $202/02/90  5.S96
05216} LLze'e 5192/1 SNOILVOIHIQON A¥d Sd NYLLYH - # 3SV.L
6€'165'6 £652.1 AGNLS ¥3MOd AONIONIWT ALMIOVASd  ONI SLNVLINSNOO SHNIMAGINNIN 65260 $202/02/90 196
51828’} 51'828'L 9e6€ZT1IE 0050-#02Z NOSHVO IS L8 ONINODTHO 40 STOINYIS A8 M #8220 $202/02/90  £/596
00°000°2} 00°000'Z} 9zzl 40 TVIONVNIZ 43IHO- ¥ANIVIZY INGWLINYOFY  TYNOILYNYILNI 3SOMEWY ¥ILINNH 81SP0  $202/02/90  2/G96
09'Lb5'S 09'25'S 65.¥90¥L Y3130 LOHAON1OTdS 006£¥A ANYANOD HOVH L1000 #202/02/90  LS96
1026 1226 ¥82€080 INIWHSINT T SLIM alY LSHld Q¥VNO NITUO 080¥0  $202/02/90  0/S96
00'ZvE 00'ZvE 89929 ¥20Z YAV TOH.LYd ONINOLINOW ATHLNOW "ONI ISNOJSIY 1SHI4 €000 $202/02/90 69596
99'6v2 99'6%2 veyiesz ONIdid ANY ¥3NATOd ONI SISIJYILNT NOSNOUTH ¥¥8L0  $202/02/90 89596
00'082' 00°089'} 6LL51 2 A4 - 10¥LYd INILNOY
00°001'G 19251 ¥Z Ad - 10Y¥.LYd INILNOY SIOINYIS ALIINOIS IALLNDIXT 08EY0  $202/02/90 29596
52'810'62€ sz'8l0'6ze bt ININIOVIdIH IATVA dLM 4O NOILYTIV.LSNI NOILONYLSNOD SNOS B AMINI €V2€0  $202/0Z/90 99596
18'815'e 18°815' 65,€02} NYNZLNIVIN NV ONIMOLINOW INILSAS ALMNO3S JYNOISWYOI6LPY0  $Z0Z/0Z/90  S9596
90°€E6'} 90'€€6'} ¥2'81°90 3ONIHTANOD YOO HO4 ININISUNGNITY vHOg3 JHOQOIHL6EEY0  $20Z/02/90  $9S96
b9 b9 e61rze S1IMOVd QHvYOS 40 ANIAMEA ONI LHOJSNVHL 1O3YIA 81260 $202/02/90  £9596
1e30] ¥29yn pied junowy 9210AU] uonduoasag JOpuap oled  #Yo9UD
jueqde :9po9jueg
¥C02/0e/9 o1 ¥20e/1/9
I3JBAN IBALY Sewe)oe|d INd9Y-CL ¥202/1L0/.0
1 :abeg Bunsi A103sip ~eyo Ajyuop 1siode



g :abed

TAASL Gz'z6e 2v88.99) HOIT FLIHM ¥Od AT9INISSY dAVT LNIWIOV1d3d ANYJINOD HOLYINDIY SLLYM 252+0 ¥202/02/90 L0996
€9'61L°2 €2°06S L-p1G1-6EE8LGE S # 1SND - NVONYIN-SIDINYIS TYAOWTY HSYHL
A TANA €-7/G1-8€€8156 - MHVd JAISYIAIN-SIDINGIS TYAOWTH HSYHL NOOFHO 40 LNIWIOVYNVIN FLSVM 0£100 ¥202/02/90 00996
00'685 00'689 z6ESE SMIHANY SIAVHL 40 SFDIAYTS IVEOTIDEM 58%F0 ¥202/02/90 66596
¥€°0€ vE0¢ 1069555966 SIOUYHO INOH 1130 10000-680LE5CY9# DOV SSATIHIM NOZIYIA ¥5820 ¥202/02/90 86596
00°eve 00°Z4L 208LLZLYY 3S AVIN Z00€0.L # LSND -HA NVONVYIN 3S 0016
00'LEL ¥29012LYY IOINYIS TOHINOD 1S3d AVIN- LLOEOLL #1SND ONI TYNOILYNYILNI XININYI L 28200 ¥202/02/90 L6596
€9'68L'9€ €9'68.'9¢ ¥2/1L€/50-0€/70 ¥202 AVIN - AISYHOHNd Y3 LYM QYv0d Y31VM MH04 HLNOS ¥2000 ¥202/02/90 96596
0Z°€06'} 0Z'€06°L 596999€9 TIOHAYd - NOLLISOd AdVHOdNAL 0711 41VH 14390 0Ley0 ¥202/0Z/90 56596
00°000°L 00°000°L GeeLie95¢ 0100-7Z IAV N3rAv1O ¥2891 ONI TVLNINNOHIANT ALID ¥IAIY 855€0 ¥202/02/90 6596
€6°L0¥'GL 08'9.L'9 00,9899 IVATIELFY ANV NOILOILOHd TTVd AVM ITHHL
€L°0€2'6 £692899 wiaysAS [ensLley pue uoosjold jled 0711 AL3dVS ZLId 6¥9€0 ¥20Z/02/90  £6596
66'02€ L9'6€ ¥195966905 0/S0 -¥L2¥€LE-922120L# STOVINI TYNOLLIAAY
9z'9L 6815556905 10/S0 61626/€-9.2L20L# STIHOD TYNOLLIAAY
90'502 896556905 10/S0 §665¥2€-922120L# SAIJOD TYNOILIAAY "ONI 'YSN HOOIY 62200 ¥202/02/90 26596
98'802 98'802 20212801 1190 -¥L.¥€L€-9.2120 L# STOVINI TYNOLLIAAY “ONI ‘'YSN HOOIY 62200 ¥202/02/90 16596
98'80¢ 98'80¢ 81199€801 G0/L0 §665¥2€-9221201# STIHOD TYNOLLIAAY "ONI '¥SN HODIY 62200 $202/02/90 06596
00282 00°2€2 9808 100 - WYX3 TVOISAHd  HLTV3H TVYNOILYdNOD0 JONIAIAON L6100 ¥202/02/90 68596
¥5'Go1 ¥5°GoY 062.2261€€ V3T INILSAS ONILYISNI - €66.6.0L00# D0V 77 OAS NI4 VE0TO SIMO8 AINLId 81000 ¥20Z/02/90 88596
0£'¥86'LL §6'€0T'e ¥20Z AVYIN NINQY $202 IddY NINQY
£6°€8G'0€ ¥Z AVIN NOILY.LS dNd ¥202 AVIN NOILVLS dINNd
28'961'8€ ¥202 AVIN dLMW ¥202 AV LNV 1d ININLYIHL YT LVYM 39d 12000 ¥202/02/90 18596
SLyZL'8 YR AR ¥2'1€°60 NODIHO NI "LSND MHED OL OAS HOd SLINANWAV 40 ALID ‘ALID NODFHO 84000 ¥202/02/90 98596
01256 017256 ¥2'%1°90 dd ¥2'21°90 ¥d ¥O4 S3INA NOINN JNDSHY NODIHO €2€00 ¥202/02/90  $8596
08°0.8 8%'G51 1002662 1789¢ dNS 321440 - 822e898e#AI - 081 19206#100V
ZEGLY 100686¥050.€ dNs 301440 - 822e898e#dl - 081 L9Z06#100V ONI LO43d 301440 90£00 ¥202/02/90 8596
1e301 ¥23y)H pied junowy 99]0AU]| uonduosag 10pusp ajeq #499YD
Jueqde :9podjueg
¥20¢/0€/9 oy  +20¢/1/9
19BN 19AlY sewieyoe|D Wd9v:ZlL  ¥202/1L0/.0
g :abeg Bunsiq Aio3sip ayo AYyjuop IsiHode



6 :obed

0g'zee’ze og'zeeze LL9Y NOILONYLSNOD INIT U3 LVM ONI ANNTAN §50%0 $202/92/90 61996
68°¢CLL 68°CLL LOOLOANI 3IOINY3S 001-GL 40 ALID 'IMNYMTIN 8€100 ¥202/92/90 81996
00208 00¢¥e 9968¢€¢ XIS 3LYO NO ONILOOHS F19N0Oy.L
00°099 ¢L09¢ee ¢ 31O SHlvd3d 4001 LiIXa ONI JOOd AVIHY3IAO OYLIN £€5€00 ¥202/92/90 L1996
Vi LeL'y 0o'sel 298¢ HHOM LOVHINOD
00°06€‘L 8.8¢ HHOM LOVHINOD
Zv'90e'e 1188 dNXOVE V.1va 8NS TUVMLA0S LI "ONI dNOYD ADOTONHOIL INOHAVIN 08140 $202/92/90 91996
89°G/9'G 89°GL9'G 8£9¢6 SHNOH "08Vv1 +202 dHVYIA-NVI SININGIAOD 40 TIONNOD INVT 682€0 ¥202/92/90 G1996
69'8%C 69'8¥C ¥2°G0°90 g9 LINIWIHILLTY MONOH NIAFLS 9650 ¥202/92/90 1996
81'€08'9y 81'€08'9% el ONIOVE OINSIFS ® SHIVAIY FLIHONOO dIM NOILONMLSNOD SNOS 8 AYIWNT €7€0  $20Z/92/90  £1996
00°G9v'€Z 00°G9v'ee 29¢ey S3SNIADIT 8 FHVYMLH0S 3900713 "ONI 43990173 1290 ¥202/92/90 21996
62°18%'8C 0,°0Z¥'8 G-V HOELILZTM NOISIA ONIYIINIONT
65709002 -2V HOEL91ZZM ONI¥IINIONT NOIS3A VOIMINY HLYON MOSNOD 88260 $202/92/90 11996
$5'96€'9 $G°96€'9 100°€91L0€61L0S 00-0€94 SOd +9 - 81-099. SOd +9 ‘02 AlddNS d3LvdlTOSNOD 80000 $202/92/90 01996
00'628'L 00'6.8' ¥1DIsL ¥VNO LS| 334 ISNIOMVOIY - 334 IOVSN MOY ASTIVA AddVH 40 ALID ¥¥980  +202/92/90 60996
8.62¢'L 8.62¢')L NI-£6¥€850 013 "vNO3d d3avaiNn ONI NISN3LSIHHO L18€0 ¥202/92/90 80996
L2°06¥% 6168 2’21’90 202 INNI 296 00L9-€2/2-€05 #DIV
8G°L0Y ¥2°90°90 Nr S3OINY3S INOHJ 9169 §200-50Z-€0S #20V ANIMAENLINGD #9100 ¥202/92/90 20996
9¥'L66'8L oy L66'8L GEG968 F1LVHAAHOHOTHD WNNINNTY ONI 00 1S1d VIGWNTOD 3avosVyO 9610 ¥202/92/90 90996
00849 00°¢6l a8vved S3OIAYES ONIJIIMS LOT3ANAr
000Le £8ypee S3DINYFS ONIJIIMS LOT INAP
00542 y8¥yed SFADINYIS ONIJIIMS 1071 INAr ONIdIIAMS T3LNVYO #0€00 $202/92/90 G0996
0e vy geerl ¥05¢2.¢C S31ddNS *® V3L ‘334400
S6'vicC (0] 4FXAV] S3AMddNS ¥ vaL ‘994400 JOIANYES V31 ® 334400 dNO ATHOM €£€20 202/02/90 0996
06'€9 06°€9 6€501 ST3INOHS J313IN 2 FHVYMAHVYH ® d334 VL1IHOIM 89100 ¥202/02/90 £0996
00°0S 00°0S 10°10°G0 202 AVIN 334 NINQY dd3N ONI AONZOV FONVHNSNI VHM L1220 ¥202/02/90 20996
jejol joaysn pied junowy 3210AU| uonduasag FLTDEYY ajeq #o94yo
Yueqde :9podueg
¥202/0€/9 o3 ¥e0e/1/9
I8JeM\ JOALY Sewexde|d INdOP:ZL  202/10/L0
6 :abed Bunsiq Aoysip ayn Alyauop IsiHyode



0] :ebed

00°000'} 00°000'} 60.G1E2 0S€815/# 00V - 334 INIOV IALLYHLSININGY MNVE 09UV STIAM P8LL0  #202/92/90  GE996
50'8.2'8 50'8.2'8 Z61 JUVHS SMYUD SHIVATY INIT3dId  ¥ILVM ALNNOD SYWVMOVTO HIMON 62800  +202/92/90  #E996
00698 00698 NI-L£0£500 % NOILOTJSNI INVHD INVTd INTNLYINL ¥ILVM ‘00 LSIOH 3 INVHO NOLONIHSYM €660 $202/92/90  ££996
LY OvS'T 9c'oLy 00¥9629966 SIDUVHO INOHA T130 20000-2225 4 122 b# DOV
S0ZLZ 6659629966 STIOUVHO INOHd T130 100002225 L LZLb# DOV SSTTIUIM NOZIYIA ¥5820  $202/92/90 2996
08’182 00’15 £92.85H-ANI Q¥ YOOHFANNNS IS 0046
00'081 ZLLBLBELPLL TV.LNTH SWOOY1STY F1GV.LHOd 40 ONINVITO
98061 LEVBLSH-ANI HSVM ONVH HLIM YN dOHS
00°09¢ 6188/881-v1L SINOOHLSTY Mvd JAISHIAIY ONISIOIAYTS 3LIS QILINN L0100 $202/92/90  LE996
00'LEL 00'LEL £51/888%Y DIAYTS TOMLNOO 1S3d ANNP- LLOSOLL #1SND ONI TYNOILYNYTLNI XININSIL 28200  $202/92/90 08996
00'669'% 00'669'% 10622 INVO YHOMLIN ¥O4 TYINILYIN B HOgYT HSINYNA ANVANOD ORMLOTTH INVIL 6EE0  $202/92/90 62996
16'6LL'GE 1661268 Y2 08 H0 ¥20Z TIMdY- GISYHOUNG YT LYM QUVOS ¥ILVM MU0 HLNOS #2000 $202/92/90 92996
00912 00804 ¥ZP1L906+62 SIOINNTS ONIAATHHS ATHILEVND
00801 ¥2rL90895H 1 OL STOIAHTS WO SANNH TYNOLLIAAY O LSTIMHLHON QIUHS L0ZE0  +202/92/90 12996
05'815' 05'70Z'L 9.6/9996¢ Q¥ NV.LLYH S €051
00PLEL 9£89996¢ 6200-22 OM JAV HLLG IS 2868 ONI TVINIWNOYIANT ALIO M3AIMN 8¥6E0  $202/92/90 92996
IR IR 5Zp08E80L /L0-0L/90 61626.8-9/Z120L# ISV HIIAOD "ONI VSN HOOIY 62200 +202/92/90 52996
12'692' 127°692'G 2996 ONYLSNOD B NOISTA LOTrO¥d TWHNLONYLS dIM ONI ONINIINIONT ZHY 96680  $202/92/90 2996
00'98L' 00'9€2's L9281 Q¥ NVOVYNYIN IS 0016 ¥O4 THIM HOZvY NOILONYLSNOD % IONTI4 I1avITIN 61200 +202/92/90  £2996
00005 00'000'2 vev ¥Z A4 - INVYO - 1INSNOD W3
000062 L6v QIVd #2 A4 - INVHO - LTNSNOO W3 OT1 LSTIMHLIHON AQYIY €8V¥0  $202/92/90 22996
e 204 288l 98LEL8ELG) 11N9 'S 60621 INVAOUd HOLVHINIO AONIOUINT
0v'622 /81€18€15) TAVL S 22891 INVAOHd HOLVHIANIO AONIOHINI
02'682 €8LELBELSL  NOT IS 05151 INVAOUd HOLYHANIO AONIONINI INVAOYNd OT1 SVO NOSIWOHL 229v0  $202/92/90 12996
L0°SEV'TL Y ELL'S ¥Z'08%0 NOSIHO NI “1SND MO OL OAS ¥O4 SINIWAVd
85619 ¥2'62°90 YVNO LS} 334 ISNIOM/OTY - I34 IOVSN MOY 40 ALID ‘ALID NOOTHO 8¥000  +202/92/90 02996
|e101 %28yo pied Junowy 2910AU] uonduasaq I0pUSA sleq  #Yo9us
jueqde :8po9ueg
¥20¢/0S/9 o3 ¥e0c/L/9
19JEMN IBAIY sewexqoe|d INd9P-CL $202/10/.0
o0l :8bed Bunsi Aio3sip " ayo AjYjuop 1siHjode



L1 :ebed

£6°800°LL2°1L 1syo9yD |ejoL 1odal siy] ul sHo8Yo 0S|
£6°800°L22°L ‘lejoL jueqde
|ejol 3o9yo pled junowy 9210AU] uonduosag IOpUdA ajeq #9094
Mueqde :3apoo yueg
#¢0¢/0€/9 oy  ¥20c/L/9
19JBAA JOAIY SeweyIR|D INdOP-CL ¥20¢2/10/L0
L1 :obeq Bunsi Aoysip ~ayo AjYyuop IsiHode



Agenda Item —

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER CA-2
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
July 18, 2024
SUBJECT Cash & Investment Ending Balances Repott
DRAFT MOTION Move to approve the consent agenda
EFFECTIVE DATE July 18, 2024
PRINCIPAL STAFF
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Approve the consent agenda items.
REQUESTED
DOCUMENTS None
ATTACHED
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND
Clackamas River Water
Cash & Investment Ending Balances by Month
FY 2024
US Bank LGIP LGIP
General. Interest Interest
Checking LGIP Total Earnings Rate
July $ 7,003,421 $19,201,790  $ 26,205,211 S 66,723 4.11%
Aug S 7,229,010 $19,273,810 S 26,502,820 S 72,020 4.42%
Sept $ 8,455,698 $19,347,156  $ 27,802,854 S 73,346 4.63%
Oct S 3,076,682 S 24,445,249 S 27,521,931 S 98,094 4.90%
Nov S 3,664,569 $ 24,545,709 S 28,210,278 $ 100,400 5.00%
Dec S 1,834,249 $ 26,656,520 S 28,490,769 $110,811 5.00%
Jan S 1,893,738 $ 26,769,394 S 28,663,132 $112,874 5.00%
Feb S 1,826,691 $ 26,879,690 S 28,706,381 $110,296 5.20%
Mar S 2,110,418 $ 26,998,078 S 29,108,496 $118,388 5.20%
Apr S 707,639 $27,113,152 S 27,820,791 $115,074 5.20%
May S 1,024,726 $27,232,568 S 28,257,294 $119,416 5.20%
Jun S 2,972,685 $ 25,345,766 S 28,318,451 $113,198 5.20%
July 18, 2024 Agenda Item CA-2 Page 7 of 1




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER CA-3

Agenda Item

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

July 18, 2024

SUBJECT Project Acceptance: Accept Capital Outlay Project “SysOps Shop
Renovation”, Project 23-2329
DRAFT MOTION I move to approve the “Notice of Acceptance” for the “SysOps Shop
Renovation” project, to establish the project completion date and authorize the
General Manager’s signature on said Notice of Acceptance.
EFFECTIVE July 18, 2024
DATE
PRINCIPAL STAFF Adam Bjornstedt, PE — Chief Engineer
PERSON
BOARD ACTION The Boatd is requested to accept the building renovations constructed under
REQUESTED the “SysOps Shop Renovation” project.
DOCUMENTS Exhibit A — Notice of Acceptance
ATTACHED
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND This capital outlay project, as approved in the FY 23-25 adopted budget, included
building renovations, electrical, plumbing, and HVAC upgrades, to the System
Operations shop- locker room, restroom, and workspace areas. The Board awarded
the contract to BnK Construction in November 2023, and the Notice to Proceed
was 1ssued January 31, 2024.
The project is complete and final budgetary information is as follows:
CRW Budgeted (shop renovation):  $230,000
CRW Budgeted (HVAC replacement): $ 17,000
Total budget: $247,000
Original Contract: $239,995
Final Contract with all changes: $251,425.91
% Difference (Increase): 4.8%
All project work was completed to required specifications, plans, and County
permits. Changes to the contract included addition of the HVAC unit replacement
(budgeted as a separate capital outlay item in the FY 23-25 budget), electrical
upgrades, and minor modifications. As discussed previously with the Board,
sufficient additional funds exist to account for the increased costs.
STAFF Staff recommends the Board approve the Notice of Acceptance for the “SysOps

RECOMMENDATION  Shop Renovation” project.

July 18, 2024

Consent Agenda Item 3 Page 7 of 7




Clackamas River Water

Notice of Acceptance

Clackamas River Water hereby accepts the project constructed in connection
with the System Operations Remodel, COP 23-2329, on this 18 day of July,
2024. Acceptance of this project by Clackamas River Water shall not constitute
acceptance of any work not in accordance with the Contract Documents, nor
shall it relieve the Contractor of his continuing obligation for work guarantee for

one year after the above date.

Clackamas River Water

Todd Heidgerken, General Manager



Agenda Item —1

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
July 18, 2024
SUBJECT Consider Adoption of Resolution 01-2025 Adopting the Clackamas River Water
Representation in the Updates to the Clackamas County Multi-Jurisdictional
Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan
DRAFT MOTION I move the Board approve Resolution 01-2025 adopting the CRW
Representation in the Updates to the Clackamas County Multi-Jurisdictional
Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan
EFFECTIVE DATE July 18, 2024
PRINCIPAL STAFF Beth McGinnis, Emergency Manager
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Adopt Resolution 01-2025
REQUESTED
DOCUMENTS Exhibit A - Resolution 01-2025 Adopting the CRW Representation in the Updates
ATTACHED to the Clackamas County Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan
Exhibit B- FEMA letter to Clackamas County Chairwoman, Tootie Smith
regarding required actions. Dated June 11, 2024.
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND Clackamas River Water, in partnership with Clackamas County has recetved
notice from FEMA that our annex to the Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation
Plan 1s “approvable pending adoption”.
This plan allows CRW to continue to be eligible for FEMA mitigation grant
programs, as it 1s an eligibility requirement. The plan has gone through a public
comment pertod during the drafting phase. The content focuses on CRW assets
and their vulnerability to natural hazards in connection with i1dentifying potential
projects and priorities for CRW to consider in future funding cycles.
The board is asked to adopt this resolution so it can be forwarded to FEMA to
finalize the full plan.
STAFF Staff recommends approval of Resolution 01-2025 adopting the CRW

RECOMMENDATION  Representation in the Updates to the Clackamas County Multi-Jutisdictional
Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan

July 18, 2024 Agenda Item 1 Page 7 of 1



Resolution 01-2025 Exhibit A

A Resolution Adopting the Clackamas River Water Representation in the Updates
to the Clackamas County Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan

Whereas, CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER recognizes the threat that natural hazards pose
to people, property and infrastructure within our community; and

Whereas, undertaking hazard mitigation actions will reduce the potential for harm to
people, property and infrastructure from future hazard occurrences; and

Whereas, an adopted Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan is required as a condition of future
funding for mitigation projects under multiple FEMA pre- and post-disaster mitigation
grant programs; and

Whereas, CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER has fully participated in the FEMA prescribed
mitigation planning process to prepare the Clackamas County, Multi-Jurisdictional
Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan, which has established a comprehensive, coordinated
planning process to eliminate or minimize these vulnerabilities; and

Whereas, CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER has identified natural hazard risks and
prioritized a number of proposed actions and programs needed to mitigate the
vulnerabilities of CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER to the impacts of future disasters within
the Clackamas County, Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan; and

Whereas, these proposed projects and programs have been incorporated into the
Clackamas County, Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan that has been
prepared and promulgated for consideration and implementation by the participating cities
and special districts of Clackamas County; and

Whereas, the Oregon Department of Emergency Management and Federal Emergency
Management Agency, Region X officials have reviewed the Clackamas County, Multi-
Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan and pre-approved it (dated, July 11, 2024)
contingent upon this official adoption of the participating governments and entities;

Whereas, the NHMP is comprised of three volumes: Volume I -Basic Plan, Volume II —
Jurisdiction Addenda, and Volume IIT — Appendices, collectively referred to herein as the
NHMP; and

Whereas, the NHMP is in an on-going cycle of development and revision to improve its
effectiveness; and



Whereas, CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER adopts the NHMP and directs the Emergency
Manager to develop, approve, and implement the mitigation strategies and any
administrative changes to the NHMP.

Now, therefore, be it resolved, that CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER adopts the
Clackamas County Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan as an official
plan; and

Be it further resolved that CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER will submit this Adoption
Resolution to the Oregon Department of Emergency Management and Federal Emergency
Management Agency, Region X to enable final approval of the Clackamas County Multi-
Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan.

Adopted this 18™ day of July, 2024

Sherry French, Board President

Naomi Angier, Board Secretary



Exhibit B U.S. Department of Homeland Security
FEMA Region 10
130 228th Street, SW
Bothell, WA 98021-8627

June 11, 2024

Tootie Smith, County Commissioner - Chair
Clackamas County

2051 Kaen Road, 4™ Floor

Oregon City, Oregon 97045

Reference: Adoption Required to Finish Clackamas County Multi-jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation
Plan Process

Dear Chair Smith:

In accordance with applicable! laws, regulations, and policy, the United States Department of
Homeland Security’s Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Region 10 has determined
the Clackamas County multi-jurisdictional hazard mitigation plan meets all applicable FEMA hazard
mitigation planning requirements except its adoption by:

Clackamas County City of Canby City of Estacada

City of Gladstone City of Happy Valley City of Lake Oswego
City of Oregon City City of Sandy City of West Linn

City of Wilsonville Clackamas Fire District #1 Clackamas River Water
City of Milwaukie City of Molalla

Local governments, including special districts, with a plan status of “Apprbvable Pending Adoption”
are not eligible for FEMA mitigation grant programs with a hazard mitigation plan requirement.

The next step in the approval process is to formally adopt the hazard mitigation plan and send a
resolution to the state for submission to FEMA. Sample adoption resolutions can be found in

Appendix B of the Local Mitigation Planning Policy Guide.

An approved hazard mitigation plan, including adoption by the local government, is one of the

conditions for applying for and/or receiving FEMA mitigation grants from the following programs:
®  Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP)

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Post-Fire (HMGP-PF)

Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC)

Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA)

High Hazard Potential Dams Grants Program (HHPD)

! Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, as amended; the National Flood Insurance Act of 1968, as
amended; and National Dam Safety Program Act, as amended; 44 CFR Part 201, Mitigation Planning; and Local Mitigation Planning
Policy Guide (FP-206-21-0002).

www.fema.gov



Chair Smith
June 11, 2024
Page 2

Based on FEMA’s review, the plan did not include all dam risk. Thus, the participating jurisdictions
are not eligible for assistance from the HHPD Grant Program. If any participating jurisdictions with
HHPDs are interested in this assistance, they should contact the FEMA Region 10 Hazard Mitigation
Planning Team at FEMA-R10-MT Planning@fema.dhs.gov, to learn more about how to include all
dam risks in the plan.
Participating jurisdictions that adopt the plan more than one year after Approvable Pending
Adoption status has been issued must either:
= Validate that their information in the plan remains current with respect to both the risk
assessment (no recent hazard events, no changes in development) and their mitigation
strategy (no changes necessary); or
* Make the necessary updates before submitting the adoption resolution to FEMA.

We look forward to receiving the adoption resolutions and discussing options for implementing this
hazard mitigation plan. If we can help in any way, please contact the FEMA Region 10 Hazard
Mitigation Planning Team at FEMA-R10-MT _ Planning@fema.dhs.gov.

Sincerely,
' Digitally signed by WENDY L.

WENDY L SHAW sriaw

Date: 2024.06,14 11:36:29 -07'00'
Wendy Shaw
Risk Analysis Branch Chief
Mitigation Division
Enclosures

cc: Stephen Richardson, Oregon Department of Emergency Management

JF:JG:wls



Agenda Item — 2
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
July 18, 2024

SUBJECT Recurring Payments: Consider Approval of Recurring Payments for FY 2024-
25 Contracts in Excess of General Managet’s Approval Authotity

DRAFT MOTION I move the Board approve recurring purchases for FY 2024-25 that are
Over $75,000 ovet pet the attached list.

EFFECTIVE DATE July 18,2024
PRINCIPAL STAFF Todd Heidgerken, General Manager
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Approve Recurring Payments for FY 2024-25 Invoice, Contracts and Purchase
REQUESTED Otders in excess of General Managet’s Approval Authority
DOCUMENTS Exhibit A - Recurring invoices for FY 2024-25 over §75,000
ATTACHED Exhibit B - Contracts for FY 2024-25 over $75,000

Agenda Summary

BACKGROUND Board Policy Section 6.2 A —

Section 6.2 Responsibility, Authority, Standardization
A. The General Manager is responsible for the procurement of all goods and services
and for establishing procedures to sell goods and services.

Resolution 06-2022 Modifying the General Manager’s Contracting
Authority

Section 2: The Board bereby delegates to the General Manager the anthority to execute
contracts, as defined in CRW’s Local Contract Review Board Rules, up to the total
annual amount of §75,000.00 for a duration no longer than three years.

Section 3. The Board hereby delegates to the General Manager the anthority to execute

Public Improvement Contracts, as defined in CRW’s Local Contract Review Board
Rutles, up to the amount of $100,000.

July 18, 2024 Agenda Item 2 Page 1 of 2



ANALYSIS

Tuly 18, 2024

The District is required to operate the municipal water utility. The
General Manager has been given responsibility for the procurement of all
goods and services. Contracts (and their payments) over the General
Manager authority of $75,000 must be approved by the Boatd.

Vendor payments for the past year, current contracts, and the BN 2023-
2025 adopted budget were reviewed for possible vendor payments that
will exceed $75,000 during FY 2024-25.

All payments over the General Manager authority of $75,000 are brought
to the Board of Commissioners for acknowledgement. These
expenditures are routine and required to run the District. Listings of
these payments are attached as Exhibit A and Exhibit B.

Public (Capital) Improvement contracts are brought to the Board of

Commissioners as required throughout this fiscal year and therefore not
included in this listing.

Agenda Item 2 Page 2 of 2



He1s SOv4 tAq auedaid

Zjo 1 aded

-V

00+'s829 $

000°0+CT
009°€6
000°0S€
000252
000°02ZE
008'616
00§62
000058
000°0S€
00005
000056
00S'0bT

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

008’/ $
£9T°62 $
00022 $
0002z $
0599/ $
00€'se $
00°000'TZ $
000°0€ $
00°000'T+  $
000°58-000'09 $

JuBWEIS [P0 puog 910
Buiuiebieg aAR]10D
Ayauopy

Alyauoy

Alyauoyy

Buiuiebieg aAi19)|0D

penuo) e\ 0] Jlea A

Juswae.by JUBWBMSS
915 Aq 385

21e35 A 195

2e35 Aq 195

VoI

siejjoq |enuuy siejjoq Alyjuoly dseydind 10j Ayioyny
ajewxoiddy

v UqIyx3

abelany

1s9.493U] pue s|dpuld puog
a1 ‘@Rav 'al’ ‘reweg
syuswAed pied-d

sabiey) bujsaym
Buissaooid pied ypaid
9ouRINSUI YleaH
ouesnsur Ajljiqer |esousn
soseyaind JS1ep

uonels dwind 3e [eoLsfg
1UE[d 1 [edLOR[]
sjuswiAed Syad

sonq diysiaquiaiy

uondLIsaq IdI0AUT

Jueg obied s|EM
JedpuLd
Jueg SN

A1) uobaiQ
ebaw

(2)'Ad3S soueInsSUT SsPLISI] [eads
*AI9S SoURINSUT SPLISIQ [eRads
pdeog Ja3epn M104 Yyinos

35d

392d

SYdd uobaip

SI9PIAOI 91BN JOARY seweyde|)
S9JI0AUT BulLInDdYy

QWEN J0PUdA

(SZAd) 1enoiddy siauoissimwo) Jo pleog 10§ 000°S/L$ 19A0 sjuswhed jenuuy



HEIS SOV4 Ag aledald

z4ozadeq

-9V

89€'€8L’T $

000°00T $ 00¢'s

000°00T
000’88
000°9Z
000°06
000'00T
00006
800'16
0006
000'61¢
000°00T
000°06
00t'98
000S0T
009's/
000°00T
09168
000’58
000°00T
000’08
000°9Z
000°00T
009'S/
00028
00008
000°0ST
000°00T
000°s8
009'SL

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

00£’s
00%'/
£ee’g
00§,
00£’8
£80°/
85,
00g’9
00T’sT
00£'8
00S'L
002’z
009’9
00¢’9
00£'8
0sH'L
052’9
00£'8
002’9
geg’e
00£’8
00£’9
00£L
0059
0099
00€’'8
00€’9
00€’9

1PR[UO)) paplemy
PR[UO) paplemy
PEIUO) papiemy
PLIUOD) paplemy
10B.IU0)) paplemy
PR{UOD paplemy
PRQUO) paplemy
Pe[uo) peplemy
1VEJUOD paplemy
PRQUOD paplemy
Pejuo) paplemy
Peiuo) paplemy
Ppeniuo) peplemy
"O'd papiemy
Pe[uUO) paplemy
PeOUO) paplemy
1DROUO) paplemy
Peijuo) peplemy
Peauo) papiemy
5,°0"d 8 1PRAUOD paplemy
peuod

Pe[Uo) pepiemy
Pe[uo) papiemy
1DRAUOD paplemy
‘0'd paplemy
1DRIUOD) papiemy
1PB.[UOY) paplemy
1DRIUOY) papiemy
1DRAUOD papIemy

Hr A W S S O O B B O U B W B B U O O 8 T S o S

siejjoq jenuuy siejjoq Ajyjuop 3seyond 1oj AjLioyny
3jewxoiddy

d Hqiyxg

abelany

- 10pudA 12d 000'SL$ 1910 JO |ejO) pueln

sa0IAleS bBulsaulbug [|eD-uQ
uo[3PnNasuo) [|eD-u0
sao1neS Buiaed

sooInRS Buiyels

SIDIAIDS Mond-OeA

so0IMBS buussulbul ||.)-uQ
Hoddngs yavos

SeOINRS JIpnyY

Sa0IMBS Buipesy 1919
sjuswsalby soueuauiely @ poddns |1
seDIAIRS Bulssuibul ||BD-u0
saoInRS Buibbel

salddns syiopn Jo1ep
S|ediRYD JuswIeal | J33em
BuiAoning

uomonAsuo) [je3-uo
s91|ddns S3I0M 1938
(supnol B 3jied JBWWNS) SADIAISS jo11ed
UoPN.ASUOD [[BD-UO
saoInIeS Buldeospuen
sooIRs bulyels

S20IMRS bBupssulbuy [[eD-uQ
BulAdAIng |jes-up

[eliojuer

solddng syJopn 1918\
S|eDIWRYD JUSWIeal ] I91epn
uoRoN.AsU0) fled-uo

bunuud [1ig Ann

Buikening

uondLsaqg ad10Aux

S9JRID0SSY ISOA ISOM
JUJ UOIIBARDXT DUl Youdd |
slojoeljuo) z-S
DT ‘JleH Heqoy
[ejuBWIUOIIAUT AYID JOAIY
buussuibug zHY
Buuesuibug puejuod
Swepy SSo
DT Siopealalpy
dnoigy ABojouyos | suoipepy
syuar Apsuusyy
uobalQ J0 S92IAIBS 0 B M
oul Auedwo) 18mo4 gH
oU| BSEH
sijjaybry uosialad jnoH JadieH
bupeaedxg |9
sosidisug uosnbiad
S3DIAIDS AJLINDDS DAIRNISXT
dnoin uoaNIsSU0D suos g Alswg
su9al9) [eISAI)
(Buess [epueulq sARE1D) SO
*JU] eOLBWY YMON 10suo)
bujAening pue ssedwo)
suonnjos Ajjoed apim AuD
(Aiddns @H) dT1 ‘utely 38 210D
*0) 1S RIqUIN|OD) 9pedse)
Bupeaeoxy Aque)
Buljiey puag
Busaubug Sy
Peijuo) paroiddy

SwieN Jopuap

GZAd) 1eAolddy siduolssiwwo) Jo pieog 10j 000°'SL$ JoA0 sjuawied [enuuy
( ) dd / A



Agenda Item - 3

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
July 18, 2024
SUBJECT Consider Approval of Contract with Springbrook for Financial System
Software and Annual Subscription Fees
DRAFT MOTION I move the Board approve the Contract with Springbrook for Financial
System Software and annual subscription fees in the total amount of
$505,061.41 and authorize the General Manager to sign the contract.
EFFECTIVE DATE July 18, 2024
PRINCIPAL STAFF Todd Heidgerken, General Manager
PERSON
BOARD ACTION The Board 1s being asked to authorize the General Manager to execute a 5-year
REQUESTED contract with Springbrook for a not-to-exceed amount of $505,061.41.
DOCUMENTS Exhibit A: Proposed Timeline
ATTACHED Exhibit B: 5 Year Contract Cost
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND Clackamas River Water currently utilizes Tyler Eden’s financial software which is

Tuly 18, 2024

20-plus-year-old software and no longer meets our needs. Tyler has notified its
customers that Eden is at end of life and customers are requested to migrate to a
new solution. As such, the FACS department made a budget proposal to replace
the softwate. $250,000 was included in the BN 2023-25 budget for new software.
FACS began a software search by first defining the scope of what type of service
was needed. CRW is a small organization with 1 FTE to suppozt all I'T needs.

As such, the best solution for CRW was to limit the software search to meet the
following requirements:

1) Cloud solutions to avoid additional hardware and support costs
associated with on premise solutions and be accessible in emergency
events.

2) Utility billing fully integrated module under the same software
company to avoid any third-party integrations which require I'T staff to
support or maintain.

3) Must be able to provide fund accounting, budgeting and track
encumbrances.
These requirements limited the pool of software options, which was also further
limited by the need for the company to be a reputable vendor in the government
space, appropriate for CRW’s size. Staff researched options with the following
companies: OpenGov, Oracle NetSuite, Tyler, Springbrook, and Caselle.

Agenda Itens 3 Page 1 of 2



STAFF
RECOMMENDATION

July 18, 2024

Ultimately, the pool of vendors was reduced to Springbrook and Tyler after initial
discussions with each company. OpenGov and NetSuite are still working on
integrating their utility billing solutions and thus, they were removed from
consideration. Caselle’s Cloud product is a hosted solution and an older
platform, not meeting the desired IT specifications.

Software demos were conducted in November 2023. All FACS staff participated
in the demos, as well as Purchasing, I'T, and System Operations staff. Upon
review, both Tyler and Springbrook offered the required modules necessary for
FACS to conduct business; however, Springbrook softwate boasted a key biennial
budgeting feature for CRW. At this time, they atre the leader in the market for
supporting biennial budgeting, while also offering a utility billing module. This
will save the District time and effort, eliminating manual preparation of reports
and budgets in Excel. While each software has pros and cons, customer service
staff preferred the look and feel of Springbrook over Tyler. Considering the
customer expetience is handled by CRW customer setrvice staff, management
believes that this should be a driving factor in the decision making.

Reference checks were performed, and the feedback was generally favorable, with
the usual advice to actively manage the conversion and implementation process.
Contract negotiations have resulted in a proposed 5-year contract, with a cap of
4% on annual subscription costs (reduced from 7%) for the next 5 years.
Springbrook has offered a 20% discount on the 1nitial subscription costs and 25%
on the implementation costs in an effort to earn CRW’s business.

Legal counsel has reviewed the proposed contract and has determined that the
software purchase is an exempt contract under the current LCRB rules.

The proposed implementation timeline is attached as Exhibit A. The
recommended approach is to implement the finance suite first, ensuring that the
software is ready for budget development by February 2025. Actuals, meaning
day to day accounting operations such as Accounts Payable, Purchase Orders,
and the like would go live July 1, 2025, to correspond with the new biennial
budget prepared in the new software. Utility Billing would be developed on a
separate timeline for implementation in 2025.

Springbrook is a local Oregon based company that specializes in governmental
accounting. In business for over 35 years and with approximately 2800 clients, it
is reasonable to assume that Springbrook will continue to be in business for the
proposed 5-year contract and beyond. Per their sales rep, technical support is all
USA based. More information can be found on their website:
https://springbrooksoftware.com/

Authorize the General Manager to execute a contract with Springbrook for a
not-to-exceed amount of $505,061.41

Agenda Item 3 Page 2 of 2



JONVNI4

SAIT 0D 18 UL

Sunss|

31yuo) eieg

(sien1oy) 3AIT 09

1d3s  9AV AT ANAT  AVINL

(Ajuo 198png

. ¥V WYW g3

NV

- 23a

- 8unsal

. hoN Do

JJoM-a4d
Ho-puey

1d43s 9NV AINf

INITIWIL d3SOd0dd

Vv Hqiyx3



Ty'190°60S § 86'9/8'S8  $ ¢0¥/ST8$ 6086E6L$ Ce¥YE9L $ 00'898°08T $ 1500 78101

00°09%°L0T $ 00°097°£0T $ xoo0iggunds
(saay uonejuawsa)duil) s3S09 awiy auQ

S9sealoul 1509 Ajjenuue uo ded %y

TV'109°/6€ $ 86'9/8°G8 $ 20V/Sc8$ 6086E6L$ CeVPEQL $ 00°80V‘SL $ xuonduosgng jenuuy 3ooiqdunds
waysAs Sununo2ay

1e101 G HA 7 dA €4A CdA THA
¥20¢2/8/L
1509 10B1IU0D 1E10]

qd3gmxy



Agenda Item —4

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
July 18, 2024
SUBJECT Consider Second Reading, By Title Only, and Adoption of Resolution 07-
2024, Amending Board Policy
DRAFT MOTION Move the Boatrd conduct a second reading by title only and adopt
Resolution 07-2024 Amending Board Policies
EFFECTIVE DATE July 18, 2024
PRINCIPAL STAFF Todd Heidgerken, General Manager
PERSON C. Robert Steringer, CRW General Counsel
BOARD ACTION The Board will be asked to conduct a second reading by title only and adopt
REQUESTED Resolution 07-2024
DOCUMENTS Resolution 07-2024
ATTACHED
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND CRW Boatd Policies were last fully updated in 2013. Since that adoption
there have been updates to sections of the rules, but a full review and
update has not occurred since 2013. Legal Counsel provided the General
Manager and Executive Assistant with an initial update to review and
discuss. Edits and comments wete incorporated in the draft and then the
draft was discussed and reviewed with the Agenda Setting Committee. The
draft was discussed with the full Board at the April 22, 2024, and May 28,
2024, Board Work Sessions. Legal Counsel incorporated comments
obtained from the Board Work Sessions into the attached draft for final
approval by the Board. The Board conducted a first reading at their June 13,
2024 Board Meeting.
The redline of the policy can be found in the Jume 13 CRW Board packet at
https://crwater.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/06/CRW-06.13.2024-
Regular-Board-Meeting-Packet updated.pdf
STAFF Conduct a second reading by title only and adopt Resolution 07-2024
RECOMMENDATION amending Board Policy

July 18, 2024

Agenda Iten 4 ~ Page 1 of 1




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
RESOLUTION 07-2024
A RESOLUTION AMENDING CRW BOARD POLICIES

WHEREAS, Regular Meetings were called by the Board of Commissioners of Clackamas River
Water (District) on June 13, 2024, and July 18, 2024; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of ORS 192.640, notice of said regular meetings and the
purpose thereof was given in accordance with the requirements of said statute; and

WHEREAS, this resolution was given a first reading by title only at the Board of
Commissioners’ meeting on June 13, 2024; and

WHEREAS, after consideration the Board of Commissioners finds that the Clackamas River
Water Board Policies should be substantially revised and restated to account for changes in
applicable laws, to account for changes in Board and District practices, to improve the policies,
and to clarify existing policies.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER THAT:
1. Clackamas River Water’s Board Policies are revised and restated as set out in Exhibit 1
to this resolution.

2. The Board of Commissioners authorizes District staff, in consultation with the District’s
General Counsel, to correct any formatting or typographical errors subsequently
discovered in the Board Policies as adopted.

ADOPTED THIS 18" DAY OF JULY 2024 BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER.

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BY:

Sherry French, Board President

BY:

Naomi Angier, Board Secretary

{04244875-8 } 1
Clackamas River Water Board Policies ~ Complete Revision
07/2024




EXHIBIT 1

Clackamas River Water

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES

Complete Revisions

July 2024

{04244875-8 } 2

Clackamas River Water Board Policies =~ Complete Revision
07/2024



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES
SECTION 1 BOARD OPERATION DEFINITIONS
SECTION 2 BY-LAWS OF THE BOARD
SECTION 3 BUDGET & FINANCE
SECTION 4 BUSINESS OPERATIONS
SECTION 5 GENERAL MANAGER’S ROLE
SECTION 6 PURCHASING / CONTRACTING
SECTION 7 COMMUNITY RELATIONS
SECTION 8 COST OF WATER SERVICE & SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT

{04244875-8 } 3

Clackamas River Water Board Policies  Complete Revision
07/2024



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES
SECTION 1 BOARD OPERATION
1.1 Definitions
1.2 Powers of the Board
1.3 Functions of the Board
1.4 Orientation
1.5 Board Educational Development
1.6 Compensation for Services & Reimbursement for Expenses
1.7 Formulation of Policies
1.8 Public Meetings
1.9 Agenda Preparation
1.10 Preparation for Board Meetings
1.11 Procedures during Board Meetings
1.12 Computer Policy
(042448758 ) 4
Clackamas River Water Board Policies ~ Complete Revision

07/2024



Section 1.1 Definitions

As used in these sections, unless the context requires otherwise:

A. “Board of Commissioners” or “Board” means the governing body of Clackamas
River Water.

B. “CRW” means Clackamas River Water or properties owned by Clackamas River
Water.

C. “General Manager” means the appointed Administrator of Clackamas River
Water.

Section 1.2 Powers of the Board

A. The powers of the Board are outlined in Chapter 264 and Chapter 198 of the Oregon
Revised Statutes relating to domestic water districts and special districts. The
Board has the following general responsibilities, consistent with those statutes:

1. Identify and adopt strategic priorities for CRW
2. Hire, evaluate, and dismiss the General Manager
3. Adopt the annual budget for CRW
4. Adopt the Rates, Fees, and Charges schedule for CRW
B. The Board may authorize ad-hoc advisory committees as it sees fit.

1. The Board President or designee will outline the duties and responsibilities of
each committee at the time of appointment.

2. A Commissioner may serve as an ex-officio member.

3. Advisory committees shall comply with Oregon Public Meetings Law and are
responsible for providing any written records to District staff so they may be
made available to the public if requested.

{04244875-8 } 5
Clackamas River Water Board Policies =~ Complete Revision
07/2024




Section 1.3

A.

Functions of the Board

Policy Making

1.

The Board will establish strategic policy reserving to itself all authority and
responsibility not otherwise assigned to the General Manager or others.

The Board is CRW’s Local Contract Review Board pursuant to ORS
279A.060.

Oversight

1.

The primary responsibility of the Board is to make policy-level decisions for
CRW, and to hire, evaluate and manage CRW’s General Manager, who will
serve as CRW’s chief executive officer. Administrative authority for the daily
operations of CRW and the management of all CRW personnel is delegated to
the General Manager to the extent reasonably possible.

No individual Commissioner may direct or order a staff member on any
matter that relates to the daily operations or administrative activities of CRW
unless expressly authorized by the Board. No individual Commissioner may
order, direct, or conduct any review of personnel records of any staff member
or any other record that is exempt under the Oregon Public Records Law
unless expressly authorized by the Board.

If any Commissioner should be delegated by the Board to exercise any
administrative authority for CRW, that direction shall be in writing and shall
state the express purpose for which authority is being granted and for what
duration, and any such appointment shall be agreed upon between the Board
and the General Manager.

The Board will provide the financial means to implement Board policies in
order to accomplish organizational goals and objectives as adopted by the
Board of Commissioners.

Planning/Vision

1.

The Board is committed to long-term planning as an essential activity to
assure the viability of water service to water users in the region.

The Board will develop functional philosophies in the form of vision, mission,
and/or values statements that provide guidance to the Board in the execution
of its responsibilities and to the staff and others involved in the operations.
These are to be reviewed periodically to assure their continued applicability.

. Priorities will be established by the Board and be consistent with long-term

planning. Areas to be considered for priority status will be balanced between
community needs, District requirements, regulatory requirements, and
recommendations of the General Manager.

{04244875-8 } 6

Clackamas River Water Board Policies ~ Complete Revision

07/2024



4. The Board will conduct a periodic review of rates and charges.

D. Commissioner Assignments

1. At least annually, the Board will review the various organizations with which
CRW has relationships and decide which organizations should have a Board
representative assigned to them. The Board President will assign a CRW
representative to any organization the Board determines should have a
representative from the Board, unless a different assignment process is
required by agreement or law.

2. A Commissioner’s attendance at another organization’s meeting is in the
Commissioner’s individual capacity, not in an official capacity, unless the
Commissioner is assigned as an organizational representative pursuant to this
section or the attendance is otherwise approved by the Board.

3. If a Commissioner appears before another governmental agency or
organization to give a statement on an issue relevant to CRW, that
Commissioner must state whether the statement reflects personal opinion, is
the official position of CRW, or both. Additionally, if the Commissioner is
representing CRW, the Commissioner must support and advocate for the
official CRW position on the issue as established by vote of the Board.

Section 1.4  Orientation
A. Cooperating with Board Candidates

The Board, through the General Manager, shall cooperate with candidates for the

Board on an equal basis and will provide them with information about Board

policies and other aspects of the operation of CRW upon request.

B. Orienting New Commissioners

The Board and the General Manager shall assist each new member-elect to

understand the Board’s functions, policies, and procedures. If possible,

orientation will be provided before the member-elect takes office. The General

Manager will provide information including:

1. A copy of Board policies, including Local Contract Review Board Rules.

2. A copy of the law relating to the operation of water districts.

3. A copy of the Attorney General’s “Public Records and Meetings Manual.”

4. A copy of the Oregon Government Ethics Commission publication “Guide for
Public Officials.”

{04244875-8 } 7
Clackamas River Water Board Policies ~ Complete Revision

07/2024



Section 1.5 Commissioner Conduct

The following Code of Conduct applies to Commissioners whenever they are acting in
their official capacity, both in and outside of Board meetings.

A. The Board shall not, to the extent possible, involve itself in the day-to-day
operations of the District. Without prior approval of the Board, no Commissioner
may interfere with or engage in District operations, including programs,
maintenance, personnel management, administration, enforcement of facility
rules, planning, training, or other daily operations and responsibilities of the
General Manager. If the Board sees a need for an exception and asks a
Commissioner to become involved in District operations, the Board will clearly
state in writing the Commissioner’s operational duties/functions, and the Board
President and General Manager shall agree to said arrangement prior to the
Commissioner commencing involvement.

B. Commissioners will assist the Board President in preserving order and decorum
during Board meetings and will not delay or interrupt proceedings.
Commissioners will comply with any ruling of the President or Board, and the
following rules will be observed to maintain order and decorum during meetings:

1. Commissioners will review necessary information, including the agenda
and meeting materials, before meetings, and will come to meetings
prepared.

2. Any Commissioner desiring to be heard will request to the President to be

heard. Commissioners will be given an opportunity to speak at least once
on any pending motion or agenda item. Once recognized, the speaker will
confine their remarks to the subject under consideration.

3. When speaking on behalf of the Board or District, Commissioners will
represent the Board’s official position, not their own personal opinion.

4. Commissioners will be open and candid and should be succinct in stating
their views. Commissioners should focus on a single issue or topic at any
one time and allow one another to finish speaking without interruption.

5. Board discussions are to focus on CRW issues; Commissioners should
avoid raising non-District issues not relevant to the current discussion.

6. Commissioners should keep discussions moving and adhere to established
time limits on discussions.

7. Commissioners will refrain from criticizing or berating each other, staff,
or members of the public.

C. The Board will respect the separation between policymaking and administration
(Board and General Manager functions respectively) as outlined in these Board
{04244875-8 } 8

Clackamas River Water Board Policies  Complete Revision
07/2024




Policies by observing the following communication policies with respect to CRW

staff:

1.

The Board will work with CRW staff as a team in the spirit of mutual
respect and support.

Outside of Board meetings, Commissioners will not attempt to influence a
CRW employee or the General Manager, or advocate for a certain
outcome in regard to personnel matters, purchasing issues, the award of
contracts or the selection of consultants. However, Commissioners
discussing these matters with the General Manager outside of Board
meetings in a non-coercive manner is appropriate.

Commissioners will, wherever possible, limit individual contact with
CRW staff to the General Manager, management staff, and designated
staff for requests that concern the relevant matter or matters, so as not to
influence staff decisions or recommendations, interfere with their work
performance, undermine management authority or prevent the Board as a
whole from receiving information. The General Manager will determine
the most effective way to respond to Board requests.

When expressing criticism to staff, either at a public meeting or through
other communication, Commissioners will be professional and mindful of
the role and responsibility of staff members.

Any written materials or information requested of staff by Commissioners
will be submitted to the entire Board and include a notation stating who
requested the information.

The Board President will refer comments or questions regarding CRW
personnel or administration to the General Manager. The General
Manager may, at their discretion, reply to the inquiry directly or instruct
the appropriate staff member to do so.

D. Commissioners will protect the confidentiality of CRW information as follows:

1.

Commissioners will keep all written materials provided to them on matters
that are confidential under law in complete confidence to ensure that the
District position is not compromised. No mention of the information read
or heard should be made to anyone other than the Commissioners, General
Manager, or legal counsel.

All public statements, information or media releases relating to a
confidential matter will be handled by the General Manager, legal counsel,
or designated Commissioner.

Unless required by law, no Commissioner may make public the
discussions or information obtained in executive session. The Board may
censure a Commissioner who discloses confidential information or
otherwise violates this policy.

{04244875-8 } 9

Clackamas River Water Board Policies ~ Complete Revision

07/2024



Section 1.6

A.

Section 1.7

A.

4. Commissioners will comply with the Oregon Public Records Law by
retaining all documents they create that relate to the business of CRW,
including their notes on documents, for the minimum period of time
established by CRW’s public records retention policy and any other
applicable law. Commissioners may comply with this requirement by
providing records to the employee designated by the General Manager as
Executive Assistant to the Board for retention. This obligation continues
after a Commissioner leaves office.

Board Educational Development

The General Manager will inform and make available information on
conferences, meetings and publications which may be useful and informative.

Compensation for Services and Reimbursement for Expenses

Commissioners will be compensated $50 for any water-related meeting or
conference attended on behalf of CRW. The stipend is limited to $50 per day

If a Commissioner wants reimbursement for attendance at a meeting that has not
been authorized by the Board, prior Board approval is required.

There is no reimbursement for mileage to and from CRW for meetings.

Commissioners are not entitled to compensation for expenses that are included in
the cost of an event registration.

Commissioners shall request supplies they use for CRW business from designated
CRW staff. CRW staff often can buy supplies at a lower cost than if the
Commissioners makes the purchase on their own.

Additional Provisions Regarding Attendance at Meetings or Events:

1. To qualify for compensation or reimbursement, a meeting or event must be
related to CRW’s mission. Examples are meetings of other public or private
entities, such as Chamber of Commerce meetings, SDAO or like events, city
or county meetings, monthly agenda preparation meetings, or any other
meeting where there is a prior expense authorization by the CRW Board or the
Board President. In no event shall Commissioners receive compensation for
meetings attended with staff at their own request.

2. The Commissioner is encouraged to provide orally, or in writing, a summary
of the meeting or event at the next regular Board meeting to the extent that it
relates to CRW’s operations, planning, or policies.

3. All requests for expense reimbursement must be submitted within 60 days of
expense incurrence. In the case of extenuating circumstances, exceptions may

{04244875-8 } 10

Clackamas River Water Board Policies  Complete Revision

07/2024



be made with approval from the Board President. The reimbursement form
must be signed and include the dates and times for the meetings attended.
Commissioners will not be compensated for time or mileage if a request is not
timely submitted.

4. While Commissioners may attend meetings or events, Commissioners shall
not make statements on behalf of the District or Board without prior approval
of the content by the Board, unless it is already published and attributable to
the District. In all other circumstances, the Commissioner must be clear that
statements are the individual position of the Commissioner and not the Board
or District.

G. Commissioners will submit expense reports for reimbursement to the employee
designated by the General Manager as Executive Assistant to the Board, who will
review the report to verify that the expenses are in compliance with Board Policy.
If the report includes expenses that are questionable or outside policy, the
employee designated by the General Manager as Executive Assistant to the Board
shall review the expense request with the Chief Financial Officer. If the Chief
Financial Officer is unable to confirm that an expense request complies with
Board Policy, the General Manager will return the expense request to the
Commissioner with direction that if the Commissioner wishes to be reimbursed,
the Commissioner may submit their expense reimbursement directly to the Board
for consideration. The Board’s vote is the final resolution.

H. The Board adopts CRW Policy 1-2.10.003 (Travel Expense Policy) for itself and
will follow it.

L. If a Commissioner uses a personal vehicle to travel, the District will reimburse for
travel at the then-existing IRS mileage rate. However, no reimbursement will be
paid for travel to and from CRW property.

J. No reimbursement shall be allowed for expenses incurred by or for spouses,
guests or relatives of Commissioners. No reimbursement shall be allowed for
alcoholic beverages.

K. If CRW is reimbursing the member for the expenses and costs of travel, the time
spent traveling shall not be considered a meeting or event for which compensation
for services can be claimed.

L. Travel and Credit Card Perks — CRW will book all travel and lodging for
authorized travel by Commissioners. Commissioners traveling on CR W-related
business may pay for incidental travel expenses using personal credit cards, debit
cards, and other payment methods that accrue “points” or other promotional
benefits.

M. The Board and individual Commissioners will comply with Oregon government
ethics requirements in connection with any compensation or reimbursement issues
decided by the Board. Generally, a Commissioner making a request for
compensation or reimbursement has a direct conflict of interest that must be

{04244875-8 } 1 1
Clackamas River Water Board Policies  Complete Revision
07/2024




declared by the requesting Commissioner, and the Commissioner may not
participate in the deliberation or decision on the request.

Section 1.8 Formulation of Policies

A. Proposed District policy amendments will be drafted by or at the direction of the
General Manager for Board review.

B. Adoption of new District policies, amendments of existing District policies, or repeal
of existing District policies shall be made by resolution of the Board pursuant to a
two-step procedure separated by no less than 28 days:

1. Inclusion of the proposed action on the public agenda with introduction,
discussion, and deliberation at one meeting.

2. Inclusion of the proposed action on the public agenda with further deliberation
and a vote to be held at a second meeting.

3. The Board may, by unanimous vote, waive the requirement of two readings
and take action on a District policy in a single meeting.

C. Board Policies

1. The Board may temporarily suspend Board policies by majority vote if the
motion has been provided to all Commissioners in writing or by unanimous
vote when no such written motion has been provided.

2. Policies specific to Board governance, including these Board Policies, do not
require a second reading or a 28-day passing period.

Section 1.9  Public Meetings (See ORS 192.610 — 192.695)

A. The Board shall hold meetings at such time and place within the District as it may
determine. The Board shall hold at least one regular meeting in each month on a
day to be fixed by it and may hold special meetings under such rules as it may
make.

B. The Board has established the regular meeting date of record as the second Thursday
of each month.

C. The Board shall make every reasonable effort to commence all public meetings no
later than five (5) minutes after the start time published in the meeting notice
unless a delay in the start time is announced to the public at the scheduled start
time.

D. No publicly attended Board meeting shall extend beyond 10:00 p.m. or for a period of
time longer than three hours unless the Board approves a motion to extend the
(042448758 } 12

Clackamas River Water Board Policies  Complete Revision
07/2024




meeting for a specified additional time period.

E. No Executive Session held following a public meeting shall extend beyond 10:30
p-m. unless the Board approves a motion in public session to extend the meeting
for a specified additional time period.

F. The Board adopts the definitions relating to public meetings as set forth in ORS
192.610.

G. The Board reserves the right to change the place, time, and date of such regular Board
meetings and to call and hold such additional or special meetings, as shall be
deemed necessary, as provided by law. The Board President or two
Commissioners may call special meetings. If the date of a regular scheduled
meeting is to be changed, the public must be given at least 14 days’ notice except
in the event of an emergency.

H. The Board, through District staff, will comply with Oregon law regarding public
meeting notices, including without limitation ORS 192.640. The Board may
require posting or publication of additional notices as it deems necessary to
provide notice to the public.

I. The Board, through District staff, will comply with Oregon law regarding the location
of meetings, access to meetings, accommodation for persons with disabilities, and
the availability of interpreters as required by Oregon law, including without
limitation ORS 192.630.

J.  The Board, through District staff, will comply with Oregon law regarding minutes
and record keeping of meetings, including without limitation ORS 192.650. The
full recordings of open meetings are deemed to be the official minutes of such
meetings.

K. The Board will comply with Oregon law regarding executive sessions, including
without limitation ORS 192.660.

L. The Board, through staff, will comply with Oregon law requiring remote access to
meetings open to the public to the extent reasonably possible, including without
limitation ORS 192.670. The District may take actions necessary to exclude
malicious disruptions of meetings, including requiring persons to notify the
District in advance if they wish to provide public testimony in a meeting so access
permissions may be granted.

M. Commissioners will comply with the requirements of ORS 192.630, including those
provisions prohibiting three or more Commissioners from meeting outside a
properly noticed public meeting for the purpose of deciding on or deliberating
toward a decision on any matter that will or may be decided by the Board, except
as otherwise provided by ORS 192.610 to 192.705. For purposes of this policy,
“meeting” includes (1) gathering in a physical location; (2) using electronic, video
or telephonic technology to be able to communicate contemporaneously among
participants; (3) using serial electronic written communication among

{04244875-8 13
Clackamas River Water Board Policies  Complete Revision
07/2024




participants; or (4) using an intermediary to communicate among participants.

N. The Board and each Commissioner will comply with ORS 192.700, requiring annual
training on compliance with the Oregon Public Meetings Law. The Board directs
the General Manager to arrange for Board training through a method that
complies with ORS 192.700.

O. Any Commissioner who has a question about compliance with Oregon Public
Meetings Law may direct the question to the General Manager. The General
Manager, may, but is not required to, direct the question to the District’s General
Counsel.

P. The District will use the Attorney General’s Public Records and Meetings Manual as
a guidance document.

Section 1.10 Agenda Preparation

A. The General Manager will draft a proposed agenda for Board meetings and
present the draft to the Board President and Secretary for review approximately
two weeks prior to the meeting in question. The Board President and Secretary
will approve the Board meeting agenda with any revisions they might make to the
draft agenda.

B. Any Commissioner may request that an item be placed on the agenda for a Board
meeting. All items must be submitted to the employee designated by the General
Manager as Executive Assistant to the Board no later than 17 days before the
scheduled meeting. The Board President and Secretary will decide whether the
matter is placed on the agenda.

C. The Board President can add, edit or delete emergency items up to the time of the
Board Meeting.
D. The Board may add or review agenda items by majority vote at the time the

agenda is approved by the Board.

Section 1.11 Preparation for Board Meetings

A. The employee designated by the General Manager as Executive Assistant to the
Board shall prepare, distribute, and post all public notices.

B. The agenda serves as the public notice of the time and place of the meeting and
will be distributed to the Board and interested persons, including news media,
who have requested notice. The agenda will be posted at the CRW administration
building, the CRW web page, and other locations as designated by the Board.

C. Commissioners will receive a Board packet.
{04244875-8 } 14

Clackamas River Water Board Policies  Complete Revision
07/2024




Other interested persons may request a packet, in writing, from the employee
designated by the General Manager as Executive Assistant to the Board. CRW
may charge for paper copies of the Board packet per CRW’s public records
policies.

Section 1.12 Procedures during Board Meetings

A. These Board Policies, as supplemented by Robert’s Rules of Order (Revised), shall
guide the Board in its deliberations except as otherwise required by state law. Rules
may be amended at any meeting by majority vote. The order of business may be
suspended at any meeting by a majority vote of those present.

B. Public Participation

1. The Board will provide a time at each regular meeting for public comment on
non-agenda items. The employee designated by the General Manager as
Executive Assistant to the Board will provide a process for those wanting to
make public comment. All remarks should be addressed to the Board as a
body. Each person is allowed a maximum of three minutes unless allocated
additional time by the Board. Time may not be yielded or allocated by one
person to another.

2. Meeting Conduct — Persons attending and making statements shall do so in a
courteous, professional manner; common respect will be maintained among
all participants. The Board President has inherent authority to keep order and
to impose any reasonable restrictions necessary for the efficient and orderly
conduct of the meeting. The President may regulate the order and length of
appearances and limit appearances to presentations of relevant points and to
limit repetitive and redundant comment. Only Commissioners or the General
Manager may ask questions of a person, staff member, or attendee making a -
presentation or giving testimony. Questions from the audience to staff
members or guests will not be allowed. The President is authorized to stop
interruptions of Board deliberations or attempts to debate with staff, other
meeting attendees, or Commissioners. The President may, to the extent
allowed by law, exclude a person for not complying with meeting policy or
causing a disturbance.

C. Votes will be recorded. Any Commissioner may request a vote be changed if such
request is made prior to consideration of the next order of business.

D. Three Commissioners shall constitute a quorum. Commissioners may appear by
telephonic or electronic means. Commissioners appearing remotely shall be counted
for purposes of establishing a quorum so long as all Commissioners can speak to and
hear each other. If only a quorum is present, a unanimous vote is required to approve
a motion.

{04244875-8 } 1 5
Clackamas River Water Board Policies  Complete Revision

07/2024



The Board generally makes decisions by roll-call vote. In the event that a vote is not
taken by roll call, any Commissioner may require that a roll-call vote be conducted if
the request is stated promptly after the vote occurs.

Members may append to the record, at the time of voting, a statement indicating the
reason for the vote or the reason for abstaining.

Section 1.13 Computer Policy

Objective: To establish the respective responsibilities of CRW and the Commissioners in
regard to District-approved devices purchased by the District for use by the
Commissioners to conduct District-related business. All electronic devices and related
equipment are and will remain property of the District.

A.

B.

The District will provide an electronic device to each Commissioner for their use.

Commissioners will sign the District’s IT Asset Acknowledgement Form when issued
any device. The Commissioner will acknowledge agreement to the District’s IT
policies.

The District will provide basic training in the use of the electronic devices and will
provide technical support for the care and maintenance of the device. The electronic
devices will be the sole property of CRW.

CRW shall be responsible for the cost of the maintenance and/or replacement of any
defective equipment and/or software.

At the end of the term of the Commissioner’s service on the Board, the Commissioner
will return all District property to the District immediately upon vacating office.

CRW will provide the capability to interface with the connections of CRW.

If the electronic device is damaged because of a negligent or intentional act, or other
act for which the commissioner is responsible, the Commissioner will be responsible
for its replacement costs.

Information received on or maintained on the portable electronic communication
devices is a public record and may be subject to disclosure under ORS Chapter 192.
All such information must be preserved indefinitely unless a complete copy is
provided to the General Manager for the District to preserve. Commissioners shall
not communicate via portable electronic communication devices in a manner that
violates the public meetings law under ORS Chapter 192.

Commissioners are encouraged to use District-approved devices for communications
related to District business in order to support District retention of public records and
to reduce the likelihood that a Commissioner’s personal devices must be searched for
public records.

{04244875-8 } 1 6

Clackamas River Water Board Policies  Complete Revision

07/2024



{04244875-8 } 1

Clackamas River Water Board Policies ~ Complete Revision
07/2024



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

§ BOARD POLICIES
SECTION 2 BY-LAWS OF THE BOARD
2.1 Number of Positions and Terms
2.2 Officers
2.3 Duties of the President
2.4 Duties of the Secretary
2.5 Duties of the Treasurer
2.6 Duties of the General Manager as Clerk of the Board
2.7 Selection and Duties of the Legal Counsel
2.8 Selection and Duties of the Auditor
2.9 Minutes
2.10 Budget Hearing
(042448758 | 2
Clackamas River Water Board Policies  Complete Revision

07/2024



Section 2.1 Number of Positions and Terms

A. Unless appointed, the Board shall consist of five members serving four (4) year
terms, elected by CRW voters pursuant to ORS chapters 198, 255, and 264.

B. No person, elected or appointed, shall be sworn in unless the qualifications set forth
in ORS chapters 198, 255, and 264 are met. If an eligibility question arises, the
Board will obtain an opinion from legal counsel prior to swearing in.

C. Unless filling a vacancy, terms start officially on July 1. A new member must qualify
by taking an oath of office before assuming the duties of the position.

D. Should a vacancy occur on the Board, that vacancy will be advertised and the Board
will select an individual from among those indicating their interest. ORS
198.320 will be followed in fulfilling this procedure.

Section 2.2  Officers
A. The officers of the Board shall consist of:
1. President
2. Secretary
3. Treasurer

B. At the first meeting in July of each year, the Board shall elect from its members the
officers for the ensuing year effective upon their election. In the event that there
will be no change in the Board’s membership on July 1 of a given year, the Board
may in its discretion elect officers during a regular meeting in June of that year,
effective at the beginning of the first meeting in July.

C. The term of office for the officers shall be for one (1) year.

D. The Board shall require a bond or an irrevocable letter of credit of any Commissioner
or any officer or employee of the district who is charged with possession and
control of district funds and properties as set out in ORS 198.220.

Section 2.3  Duties of the President

A. The President shall preside at all meetings, shall have the right to make motions,
discuss questions and vote on any issue.

B. The President shall sign, on behalf of the Board, contracts, deeds and other similar
documents as may require representative signature.

C. The President shall appoint all committees except the Budget Committee, subject to

{04244875-8 } 3
Clackamas River Water Board Policies =~ Complete Revision
07/2024




approval of a majority of the Board, and perform all other duties as set forth in
Board policies and rules.

D. The President shall appoint, in the absence of the Secretary, a Commissioner to
temporarily act in that capacity, subject to the approval of the Board.

E. The President, in addition to the Treasurer, shall sign short-term debt notes unless
otherwise directed by the Board.

Section 2.4  Duties of the Secretary

A. In the absence of the President, the Secretary shall perform the duties and have the
rights and obligations of the President.

B. Inthe absence of the Treasurer, the Secretary shall perform the duties of the
Treasurer.

C. Compile the agenda as described by Board policy.

Section 2.5 Duties of the Treasurer

A. In the absence of both the President and Secretary, the Treasurer shall perform the
duties and have the rights and obligations of the President.

B. The Treasurer, in addition to the President, shall sign short-term debt notes.

Section 2.6  Duties of the General Manager as Clerk of the Board

It shall be the duty of the General Manager to perform the following functions as Clerk of
the Board:

A. Handle correspondence of special interest to the Board as follows:
1. Ensure appropriate preparations have been made for Board Meetings
2. Attend all Board meetings

‘3. Ensure records are taken to record Board decisions.

Section 2.7  Selection and Duties of the Legal Counsel

A. The Board shall select a General Counsel for CRW and negotiate the terms and
conditions of the General Counsel’s duties. The General Counsel will be
authorized, in coordination with the General Manager, to engage special legal
counsel for matters the General Counsel cannot perform directly.

(042448758 } 4

Clackamas River Water Board Policies ~ Complete Revision
07/2024




B. General Counsel shall advise the Board on specific legal problems submitted by the
Board or the General Manager and recommend a course of action.

C. The General Manager, or authorized staff, has authority to seek legal counsel from
CRW’s General Counsel as deemed advisable by the General Manager on matters
relating to legal issues. The General Manager shall immediately advise the Board
of the engagement of special counsel.

D. With the approval of the Board, Commissioners may seek clarification from CRW’s
legal counsel on matters that affect or could affect CRW. All such requests from
individual Commissioners, except for requests dealing with the hiring,
termination or performance issues of the General Manager, shall be submitted to
counsel through the General Manager and shall be in writing with copy to the
entire Board. All requests to counsel relating to the hiring, termination, or
performance issues of the General Manager shall be in writing with copy to the
entire Board.

E. Legal counsel shall advise the Board of any action, or proposed action of the Board or
CRW, that is not in compliance with the law.

F. Legal counsel shall not take action on any matter unless directed to do so by the
Board or the General Manager.

G. When a non-represented employee of the CRW is called to testify or otherwise
required to provide information on legal matters arising out of the scope of their
employment with CRW, and to which they are not a named party or the subject of
disciplinary action, the General Manager may authorize legal representation
during such testimony to protect the interest of CRW. A Commissioner may
request and obtain legal representation, if authorized by the Board in advance,
under similar circumstances.

H. General Counsel shall be the designated the registered agent of CRW, pursuant to
ORS 198.340, unless otherwise designated by the Board.

Section 2.8 Selection and Duties of the Auditor

A. The Board shall select the auditor for CRW. This selection will be done in a manner
to allow timely preparation of the audit and cover audit services for a period of
three (3) years. No contract shall be extended or renewed for more than two (2)
terms without Board approval. This shall not prevent an incumbent service
provider from responding to a Request for Proposal (RFP).

B. The auditor shall:

1. Examine the accounts of CRW at the close of every fiscal year in
accordance with applicable accounting standards and laws.

2. Include such tests of the accounting records and other such auditing

{04244875-8 } 5
Clackamas River Water Board Policies =~ Complete Revision
07/2024




procedures as are necessary in the circumstances.

3. Render an opinion on the financial statements prepared at the close of the
fiscal year.

4. Support staff in preparing financial statements for publication as required
by law.
3. Make recommendations to the Board concerning CRW accounting

records, procedures and related activities.
6. Perform such other related services as requested by the Board.

7. Review the written accounting policies, practices, and procedures and
render an opinion for the Board.

Section 2.9  Minutes

A. The Board shall keep minutes of all its meetings in accordance with the requirements
of ORS chapter 192. Recordings of meetings, when created, shall serve as the
official minutes of the meetings.

B. Board meeting minutes, including recordings constituting official minutes, will be
preserved permanently. Recordings not constituting official minutes will be kept
for a minimum of one (1) year after minutes are prepared and approved. All other
meeting materials will be kept for a minimum of five (5) years. The District will
follow Oregon Secretary of State Archives Division public record retention rules
with respect to minutes and meeting materials. Recordings shall be available to
the public within a reasonable time after the meeting.

C. Executive sessions will be recorded.

D. According to ORS 192.660, CRW has determined that any information discussed
during Executive Session is confidential and non-disclosable unless specifically
authorized by the Board or as required or as excluded by law.

{04244875-8 } 6

Clackamas River Water Board Policies ~ Complete Revision
07/2024



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES
SECTION 3 BUDGET AND FINANCE
3.1 Formulation of Budget Document
32 Budget Committee - Membership and Responsibilities
33 Budget Administration
3.4 Banking Services
3.5 Purchase, Acquisition by Donation and Disposition of Real Property
3.6 Investment of Funds
3.7 Borrowing
3.8 Acknowledgement of Payments
3.9 Accounting Policy
3.10 Audit
(042448758 | 1
Clackamas River Water Board Policies ~ Complete Revision

07/2024



Section 3.1

A.

Formulation of Budget Documents

The adopted budget document shall serve as the financial plan for operation and
provide guidelines for carrying out the goals and objectives of CRW.

Within the budget process the Board shall appoint the Budget Committee
membership, appoint the CRW Budget Officer, and adopt the budget.

The CRW budget shall be prepared and adopted in full compliance with State of
Oregon Local Budget Law.

Legal References ORS 294.305 to 294.520, ORS 294.565

Section 3.2

A.

Budget Committee - Membership and Responsibilities

The Budget Committee shall consist of the five (5) members of the Board of
Commissioners and five (5) community members. The Board shall establish a
process for appointment of community members to the Budget Committee.
Community members of the Budget Committee will serve for a four (4) year term.

At the Budget Committee’s first meeting, the Board President shall open the
budget meeting. The Budget Committee shall select a chairperson and vice-chair.

The responsibilities of the Budget Committee are:

1. Approve the level of expenditures and set the corresponding tax levy
requirements, if necessary, to balance each fund.

2. Review and, if necessary, revise the proposed budget.

3. Be aware of the legal constraints imposed upon CRW.

4. Be familiar with the Budget Document and what it means.
5. Approve the budget.

6. Be involved in the supplemental budget activity as required by local budget
law.

The hearing on the budget shall be held after the budget is approved by the
Budget Committee and at the time and place designated in the notice of the
meeting required by ORS 294.438 - 294.453.

The Board shall adopt the budget, make appropriations, and determine the tax
levies, if necessary, to finance the programs approved to meet CRW goals and
objectives.

Legal References ORS 294.414, ORS 294.428, ORS 294.456

{04244875-8 } 2

Clackamas River Water Board Policies ~ Complete Revision

07/2024



Section 3.3

Budget Administration

A. The adopted budget is the financial plan developed to carry out the programs

supporting CRW's goals and objectives.

B. The General Manager is authorized to approve expenditures up to the amount

appropriated by the budget and in accordance with Local Contract Review Board
Rules and any resolutions of the Board.

C. The budget may be amended to reflect changes in budget categories.

D. The Board will be provided financial reports, on a regularly scheduled basis, in which

actual revenues and expenditures will be compared with budget.

Legal References ORS 294.456

Section 3.4

Banking Services

A. The General Manager through the Chief Financial Officer will recommend, and the

Board will approve, the selection of the banking entity utilized by CRW.

B. Staff will advise the Board of any changes to the status of banking signatories.

Legal References ORS chapter 264

Section 3.5

A.

Purchase, Acquisition by Donation and Disposition of Real Property

The purchase, receipt by donation, lease, exchange, sale, or gift of all real
property or real property interest by CRW must have the approval of the Board,
provided that any acquisition or disposition of real property or real property
interest having a fair market value of $75,000 or less, and any disposition of a
public utility easement, may be made by the General Manager, as delegated
authority, in accordance with this policy. As used in this policy, “disposition”
shall mean the sale, exchange, or other transfer of title or other interest in real

property.

Any donation or gifting of CRW property, regardless of value, shall be donated in
accordance with the following guidelines:

1. The method of donating or gifting of CRW property should be based on
the type of property, the value of the property, administrative costs, and
other factors to determine which method represents the greatest benefit to
the public. To federal, state or local governmental or quasi-governmental
entities

{04244875-8 } 3

Clackamas River Water Board Policies =~ Complete Revision

07/2024



2. CRW may donate or gift property to governmental or quasi-governmental
entities, private utility companies having the ability to reuse the property
for the benefit of District customers, on non-profit entities.

3. The General Manager shall comply with applicable requirements and
conditions imposed as part of any funding agreement or grant. Any
disposition of property or property interests in excess of $75,000 shall
comply with applicable law and the appraisal requirements of this policy
as stated below.

C. The General Manager shall project site needs in advance and the Board, with
advice and counsel of the General Manager, shall select sites prior to immediate
need. Such sites shall be chosen with a view to best serve the residents and
properties of the whole District and will be based on demographic data, growth
projections, availability, and cost of land. Any proposed acquisition of real
property or real property interests in which a District employee or Commissioner
has an interest shall be disclosed to the entire Board in a public meeting and any
action taken on such acquisition shall be in accordance with ORS Chapter 244.

D. Sites that have a fair market value of $75,000 or more and become surplus to
CRW's needs shall be declared such by Resolution of the Board and shall be
considered for sale, exchange, gift or lease pursuant to State statute and this
policy.

E. Acquisition or disposition of real property or real property interests shall be
accomplished pursuant to ORS 264.210, these Board Policies, and, in the event
the exercise of eminent domain is necessary, ORS Chapter 35. All fair market
value estimates, market studies, or appraisals as specified and detailed below shall
be obtained from a real estate broker or appraiser having all necessary
certifications and licenses in the State of Oregon and having knowledge of the
real estate market in the location and type of property being acquired or disposed.
1. For real property or property interests estimated by the General Manager

to have a fair market value of $75,000 or less, the General Manager shall
obtain a market survey from an independent real estate broker. Upon
confirmation of the estimated fair market value, the General Manager shall
have delegated authority to acquire or dispose of the property in
accordance with this policy.

2. For real property or property interests estimated by the General Manager
to have a fair market value of more than $75,000 but not more than
$250,000, the General Manager shall obtain a market study from a real
estate broker prior to consideration by the Board.

3. For real property or property interests estimated by the General Manager
to have a fair market value of more than $250,000 the General Manager
shall obtain an appraisal from a real estate appraiser prior to consideration
by the Board.

{04244875-8 | 4
Clackamas River Water Board Policies ~ Complete Revision
07/2024




For acquisition of property for which CRW receives or uses federal financial
assistance in any part of the project, the General Manager shall comply with the
provisions of the Uniform Real Property Relocation and Acquisition Policies Act
of 1970, as amended.

All appraisal reports shall comply with the standards for appraisals as published in
the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) in effect at
the time of the appraisal. The appraisal and level of documentation will depend
on the complexity of the appraisal problem. All appraisals must contain sufficient
documentation, including valuation data and the appraiser’s analysis of that data,
to support the opinion of value.

The General Manager may release any interest CRW might have in a public
utility easement if the encumbered property is not served by CRW, the
encumbered property is within the limits of a city, and the General Manager
determines that CRW is unlikely to serve the encumbered property in the future.
No appraisal is necessary for the release of a public utility easement under this
subsection.

Legal References ORS 264.210, 49 CFR Part 24

Section 3.6  Investment of Funds

A. CRW?s policy is to invest a maximum of surplus-available funds as is reasonably
prudent, while having available cash on hand to meet daily operating needs.

B. The Investment Officer for CRW will be designated in the CRW Investment
Policy adopted by the Board.

C. The Investment Officer shall adhere to the rules set forth in ORS 294.035, ORS
294.040, and the CRW Investment Policy adopted by the Board.

D. Diversification of investments will be in accordance with the CRW Investment
Policy.

E. The Investment Officer will provide the Board with a register of outstanding
investments on at least a quarterly basis. This report will include the name of the
financial institution, issue date, maturity date, principal invested, and the interest
rate, if applicable.

Legal References ORS 294.805 to 294.885, ORS 295.002 to ORS 295.093
Section 3.7 Borrowing

A. Staff shall recommend, and the Board shall approve, the total amount of short-

term loans when borrowing is necessary.
{04244875-8 } 5
Clackamas River Water Board Policies ~ Complete Revision

07/2024



B. CRW is authorized to contract for short-term loans for the purpose of meeting
current expense. These notes shall be signed by the Board President and
Treasurer.

C. CRW has authority to issue Revenue Bonds by resolution in accordance with
Oregon State Law.

Legal References ORS 287A.180, 287A.150

Section 3.8  Acknowledgement of Payments

Staff shall provide the Board with a monthly report of all expenditures. The Board will
review and acknowledge the expenditure report at its regular meeting in the month that is
two months after the month of the report.

Section 3.9  Accounting Policy

CRW?’s financial and accounting procedures, records and reporting will be in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and the Government
Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) authoritative guidance.

Section 3.10 Audit

The General Manager, or designee, will work with the auditor selected pursuant to
Section 2.8 of these Board Policies each year to accomplish the objective of the annual
audit.

Legal Reference ORS 297.405 et. seq.

{04244875-8 } 6
Clackamas River Water Board Policies ~ Complete Revision
07/2024




SECTION 4

4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5
4.6.
4.7
4.8
4.9
4.10
4.11

4.12

{04244875-8

1

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES

BUSINESS OPERATIONS
Personnel
Preparation and Modification of Personnel Policies
Employment Classification of Commissioners
Safeguarding Assets
Use of CRW Property
Risk Management and Insurance Program
Insurance Agent of Record

Property Appraisal

Disposal of Surplus or Outdated Equipment and Property

Pension Plan
Records Management

Annexation, Merger, Consolidation

Clackamas River Water Board Policies

complete revision 07/2024



Section 4.1  Personnel

CRW is committed to equal employment opportunity. Management is required to recruit,
employ, train, transfer, promote, pay, discipline, lay off, and terminate employees solely
on the basis of individual qualifications and merit and/or according to the standards and
policies outlined in its personnel and related policies. Decisions involving any aspect of
the employment relationship must be made without regard to an employee's race, color,
creed, religion, sex, age, national origin, marital status, physical or mental handicaps that
with reasonable accommodation do not prevent performance of the work involved, or any
other status or characteristic protected under any applicable federal or state law.

Discrimination or harassment based on any of those factors is totally inconsistent with the
Board's philosophy and will not be tolerated at any time.

Section 4.2  Preparation and Modification of Personnel Policies

The General Manager shall prepare and modify personnel and employment policies in
compliance with state and federal law and general CRW Board policy applicable to
personnel. The General Manager shall provide copies of any personnel manual or policy
and modifications to such manual or policies to a Commissioner upon request.

Section 4.3 Employment Classification of Commissioners

The District’s Commissioners, whether elected or appointed, are employees for tax
withholding purposes only. Commissioners are not entitled to any employment related
benefits as required by law or as otherwise provided in CRW’s personnel policies or
manual.

Section 4.4  Safeguarding Assets

The CRW Board of Commissioners fully supports a structure of policies and procedures
that systematically provide reasonable assurance that management will achieve its basic
objectives (operations, financial reporting, and compliance). This policy includes the
following five components:

1. Provide a favorable control environment,

2. Provide a periodic risk assessment,

{04244875-8 } 2
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision 07/2024




3. Provide for the design, implementation and maintenance of effective control
activities;

4. Provide for effective information and communication, and

5. Provide for ongoing monitoring of the effectiveness of control-related policies
and procedures, as well as the resolution of any potential problems identified.

Source: Governmental Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting (GAAFR),
Stephen J. Gauthier. Copyright 2012 by the Government Finance Officers Association of
the United States and Canada, Chicago, IL, (p. 736)

Section 4.5  Use of CRW Property

A. Board Use of CRW Property: Commissioners are required to comply with Oregon
Government Ethics Law (ORS 244.010 to 244.047) in the use of CRW property in
the execution of their duties as a Commissioner.

1. Commissioners are prohibited from loaning CRW property without approval
of the Board.

2. Itis the policy of CRW to loan equipment to other special districts or
governmental agencies when it does not adversely impact operations. The
General Manager will determine methods of remunerations and charges as
defined in miscellaneous fee schedule.

B. Employee Use of CRW Property: CRW employees are required to comply with
Oregon Government Ethics Law (ORS 244.010 to 244.047) as well as Operations
and Personnel Policies of CRW. The General Manager will administer all policies
related to acquisition, use, and disposition of CRW property.

1. Employees are prohibited from loaning CRW property without approval of the
General Manager.

2. CRW property is defined as all tools, equipment, material, and facilities -
regardless of cost - owned or leased by CRW.

3. Inthe event of an emergency, employees are permitted to loan equipment to
other governmental agencies and then report to the General Manager
following the emergency.

Section 4.6  Risk Management and Insurance Program
A. The Board shall provide a program of risk management consistent with legal

requirements pertaining thereto and with the ability of CRW to finance the same.

{04244875-8 } 3
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision 07/2024




{04244875-8 }

The General Manager and the Insurance Agent of Record will recommend, and
the Board will review and approve, the purchase of necessary insurance or a self-
insurance program sufficient to meet minimum statutory requirements and
provide for adequate insurance for all activities. Any self-insurance program
adopted by CRW shall provide for reasonably adequate reserves. Coverage shall
be adequate to protect:

1. Itself as a corporate body

2. Its Board of Commissioners
3. Its appointed officers

4. Its employees

The above entities and individuals are to be insured against financial loss to the
extent required or authorized by law where the loss arises out of a claim, suit or
judgment by reason of negligence or other acts resulting in accidental injury to a
person or damage to property within or without CRW while the above named
insured are acting in the discharge of their duties within the scope of their
obligations as Commissioners or as employees carrying our their duties.
Normally, Commissioners will not be held personally liable for the consequences
of their actions and decisions in fulfilling Board responsibilities. However,
Commissioners will be held personally liable in the event they have acted outside
the scope of their duties (as defined in Section 1 of Board Policy) or their conduct
is not required to, or cannot be, indemnified by CRW.

The District shall purchase insurance to cover or self insure:
1. All real and personal property of CRW.
2. Losses due to employee dishonesty, injury or death.

3. A program of benefits for employees to the limits established from time to
time by the Board.

The General Manager shall develop and maintain procedures and regulations to
carry out this policy and may designate CRW employees to administer and
supervise the program.

1. The person(s) so designated shall be guided by the reasonable person rule
and shall:

i.  Identify and measure those risks.
ii.  Evaluate physical properties owned or leased by CRW.

iii.  Establish risk management records to reflect values of such property.

4

Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision 07/2024



iv.  Establish procedures to maintain property and designate security
personnel to protect property.

v.  Establish procedures for good housekeeping, safe environmental
conditions for employees and members of the public.

vi.  Establish procedures for handling of risk management funds and
record keeping.

vii.  Utilizing the services of the CRW's insurance consultant and/or Broker
to determine which risks can normally be assumed as a proper
business risk and which risks shall be ceded to professional risk
bearers considering:

1. Frequency and magnitude of loss; and

2. The ability of the CRW to replace damaged property.

Section 4.7  Insurance Agent of Record

A. CRW will retain an insurance agent of record for casualty and property insurance,
bonds, and workers’ compensation.

B. Any appointment shall comply with CRW’s Local Contract Review Board Rules.

C. The agent shall be responsible for assisting CRW with the development of a sound
risk management program and for writing and servicing all necessary policies and
statutory bonds.

Section 4.8  Property Valuation for Insurance Purposes

A. CRW shall maintain an up-to-date valuation of all buildings, including improvements,
fixtures, and fixed contents, as necessary to inform decisions on property and
casualty insurance.

B. A valuation may be performed by CRW's insurance agent of record.

Section 4.9  Disposal of Surplus or Outdated Equipment and Property

A. CRW shall dispose of surplus or unusable property in accordance with Oregon
statutes and Local Contract Review Board Rules adopted by the Board.

{04244875-8 } 5
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision 07/2024




Section 4.10 Pension Plan

A. CRW is a Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) participating agency.

B. CRW also authorizes participation in qualified 457-type retirement plans.

Section 4.11 Records Management

A. The Board directs the General Manager to develop policies that conform to the

Secretary of State Archives Division public records retention schedule applicable
to special districts.

B. Compliance with the Oregon Public Records Law (ORS 192.311 through 192.478),
including proper filing and retention of records in accordance with these statutes,
Oregon Administrative Rules 166-150-0005 to 166-150-0215 as applicable, and
CRW’s Record Management Policy, shall be required of all employees and
Commissioners.

(04244875-8 } 6
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision 07/2024




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES
SECTION 5 GENERAL MANAGER ROLE
5.1 General Manager as Administrator of CRW
5.2 General Manager Appointment and Terms of Employment

(042448758 1
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision 07/2024




Section 5.1  General Manager as Administrator of CRW

A. In accordance with the policies adopted by the Board, all administrative and
operational functions are delegated to the General Manager.

B. The General Manager shall create and maintain an organizational structure such that
staff is arranged for efficient and effective operation of CRW.

C. Inall areas, the General Manager is delegated to develop and maintain the water
system at levels necessary to maintain CRW’s investments.

Section 5.2  Appointment and Terms of Employment - General Manager
A. The General Manager shall be appointed and work at the pleasure of the Board.

B. The terms of employment shall be agreed upon by the Board and the General
Manager and be reduced to writing in the form of an employment contract
between CRW and the General Manager.

C. The Board shall review the position, the person, and the terms of employment
annually. The results of the review shall be contained in an annual evaluation.

D. The terms of employment shall include, without limitation: responsibilities of the
General Manager, demonstrable skills, and salary and benefit considerations.

(04244875.8 } 2
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision 07/2024




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES
SECTION 6 PURCHASING/CONTRACTING
6.1 General
6.2 Responsibility, Authority, Standardization
6.3 Sales to Outside Agencies

(042448758 } 1
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision 07/2024




Section 6.1 General

CRW recognizes that effective purchasing policies can result in significant
savings. In accordance with ORS 279A.060, CRW has adopted Local Contract
Review Board Rules. Clackamas River Water’s Board of Commissioners is the
Local Contract Review Board and acts as such.

Section 6.2  Responsibility, Authority, Standardization

A. The General Manager is responsible for the procurement of all goods and services
and for establishing procedures to sell goods and services.

B. Standardization of supplies, materials and equipment is to be achieved whenever
possible.

C. Only persons designated by the General Manager are authorized to order or
otherwise commit CRW for materials, equipment, supplies and services.

D. Commissioners may not contact vendors, consultants or other parties having an
existing contractual relationship with CRW related to current agency business or
relationships without first being authorized for such contact by a majority vote of
the CRW Board.

Section 6.3 Intergovernmental Cooperation

A. Whenever feasible, CRW will attempt to develop cooperative agreements with
federal, state, or local governmental agencies to promote the efficient use of
resources by sharing facilities and avoiding duplication of services. Charges for
goods or services sold to participating governmental agencies will be limited to
their direct and indirect costs.

B. All agreements with other government agencies will be in writing and any agreement
will be submitted to the Board for approval unless the Board has delegated
applicable contracting authority to the General Manager.

{04244875-8 } 2
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision (7/2024




SECTION 7

7.1
7.2
7.3

7.4

(042448758 }

1

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES

COMMUNITY RELATIONS

Communication with the Public and News Media
Gifts and Donations
Public Records

Participation in Community Affairs

Clackamas River Water Board Policies

complete revision 07/2024



Section 7.1

Section 7.2

Section 7.3

(042448758 }

Communications with the Public

Public involvement with CRW is encouraged. In order to foster that involvement, the
General Manager shall keep the public informed of relevant polices and directives.

A. Nothing in this section shall prevent CRW employees from taking an active part in

community affairs.

B. Employees are entitled to enter into political activity provided it is in conformance

with ORS 260.432.

Gifts and Donations

A. CRW may accept gifts, grants, donations, and title to property from parties desiring to

convey property to CRW. Upon receipt, CRW shall have sole and complete
control of same. The Board may recognize the receipt of gifts and donations.

B. The Board shall recognize presentations of memorials or other awards without such

A.

recognition being considered as a testimonial or endorsement by CRW.

Public Records

Public records are to be created, maintained, retained and destroyed pursuant to
the definitions and requirements of ORS chapter 192.

CRW shall comply with the Oregon Public Records Law, ORS 192.311-192.478.
Access to public records will be provided pursuant to a Public Records Policy
adopted by the General Manager and made available to the public.

The Board designates the General Manager as CRW’s records custodian. The
General Manager may delegate records custodian functions to CRW staff.

Notwithstanding CRW’s Public Records Policy, the Board, from time to time,
may set policy and grant a waiver of fees with respect to public records requests
by Commissioners relating to agenda items under current discussion by the Board.

Authorization Required for Removal of Original Records

1. An original record of CRW shall not be removed from CRW's files or the
place at which the record is regularly maintained, except upon authorization of
the Board.

Unauthorized Alteration, Removal or Destruction of Originals

1. If any person attempts to alter, remove, or destroy any CRW record, the CRW
representative shall immediately terminate such person's review, and the

2

Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision 07/2024



person shall be removed from CRW premises. Nothing in this Board Policy
shall prevent the destruction of public records as is allowed by Oregon law
relating to public record retention and destruction.

{04244875-8 } 3
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision 07/2024




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES
SECTION 8 COST OF WATER SERVICE AND SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT
8.1 Billing and Collection
8.2 Water Loss Policy
8.3 Meter and Service Installation Charges
8.4 Water Critical Customers
8.5 Service to Other Entities
8.6 Availability of Service
8.7 System Safety and Water Quality
8.8 Local Improvement District (L.I.D.)
8.9 Metering
8.10 Developer Installed Systems

{04244875-8 } 4
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision 07/2024




Section 8.1  Billing and Collection

It is the policy of CRW that all customers pay for the costs of providing water to their
premises. The Board will adopt rules and regulations, water rate structures, and other
resolutions and ordinances that provide details on the conditions and costs for those
services. These will be reviewed periodically and updated by the General Manager and
submitted to the Board for consideration and adoption.

Section 8.2  Water Loss Policy

Recognizing the possibility of water leakage within the customer-owned system, leakage
is generally non-disputable and at the customer’s expense. If any adjustment is to be
made it will be consistent with the CRW Leak Adjustment Policy.

Section 8.3 Meter and Service Installation Fees

A. The fees for meter and service installation will be set by the Board and reviewed
annually.

B. When the meter is purchased, the customer will pay the balance due, plus a system
development charge (SDC) as applicable.

Section 8.4  Water Critical Customers [deleted]

Section 8.5  Service to Other Entities

CRW may sell surplus water to other governmental entities upon Board approval and in
accordance with the requirements of ORS Chapter 264.

Section 8.6 Availability of Service

The Board directs the General Manager to establish policies to provide CRW’s customers
with uninterrupted service.

Section 8.7 System Safety & Water Quality

The Board directs the General Manager to ensure there are appropriate policies and
procedures to comply with State and Federal mandates for location and protection of
underground facilities for the installation and maintenance of backflow devices.

{04244875-8 } 5
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision 07/2024




Section 8.8  Local Improvement District (L.1.D.)
Upon petition by CRW customers, the Board authorizes the General Manager to begin

the procedure to establish a Local Improvement CRW (L.1.D.) under provisions of ORS
264.362.

Section 8.9 Metering

A. Clackamas River Water reserves the right to determine the proper meter size and
configuration to be used to supply its customers.

B. Metering devices are to be installed in accordance with CRW rules and
regulations. Any exceptions are to be approved by the Board.

Section 8.10 Developer Installed Systems

All new water mains will be installed in accordance with CRW’s water extension
procedures and CRW’s water system standard specifications.

{04244875-8 } 6
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision 07/2024




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
BOARD POLICIES RECEIPT ACKNOWLEDGMENT FORM

I am a duly elected Commissioner of the board of Clackamas River Water and hereby acknowledge
that I have been provided a copy of the Board Policies, and that it contains important information
regarding my role as a Commissioner. I have read and understand the policies contained in the
Board Policies and have asked the currently presiding board president or the general manager for
clarification of any information that I did not understand or had further questions regarding.

By my signature below, I agree to observe and comply with all policies and guidelines contained
in the Board Policies.

Commissioner’s Name (Print)

Commissioner’s Signature Date

{04272793-1} 07/18/2024
Page 7 of 45



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Agenda Item — 5

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

July 18, 2024

SUBJECT

Consider Approval of the Payment to North Clackamas County Water
Commission for Water Purchases During the CRW Water Treatment Plant
Shutdown Project

DRAFT MOTION

EFFECTIVE DATE

I move the Board approve the payment to North Clackamas County Watet
Commission for the water purchases duting the CRW Water Treatment
Plant shutdown project in excess of the General Managet’s signature
authority.

July 18, 2024

PRINCIPAL STAFF
PERSON

BOARD ACTION

REQUESTED

DOCUMENTS
ATTACHED

BACKGROUND

STAFF
RECOMMENDATION

July 18, 2024

Todd Heidgerken, General Manager

Approve payment to North Clackamas County Water Commission (NCCWC)
for water purchased during the CRW Water Treatment Plant shutdown in
excess of the General Managet’s signature authority.

None

Agenda Summary

During the CRW Water Treatment Plant shutdown for repaits, no water
was produced from the Treatment Plant. CRW purchased water from its
neighboring providers duting the shutdown to serve out customets.
During the approximately 6-week shutdown, CRW purchased watet from
the North Clackamas County Water Commission (NCCWC). This was
conducted per the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between CRW
and the NCCWC. To augment the supply, water was also obtained by
NCCWC from South Fork Water Board (SFWB) through the IGA
between NCCWC and SFWB.

The NCCWC billed CRW for the full purchase of water after the project
was completed and the CRW Plant was back on-line. The full cost of
water purchased is $521,206.95 which exceeds the General Managet’s
signature authority; therefore the Board is being asked to apptrove the
payment to NCCWC for water purchases.

Approve the payment to NCCWC for water purchases during the CRW
Treatment Plant shutdown project.

Agenda Item 5 Page 1 of 1




Agenda Item — 6

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
July 18, 2024
SUBJECT Consider Approval of Resolution 02-2025: Request for Annexation into
CRW Service Boundary for Property at 19510 S. Ferguson Terrace
DRAFT MOTION I move to approve Resolution No. 02-2025 endorsing annexation of
territory into the Jurisdictional Boundaries of Clackamas River Water for
property located at 19510 S. Ferguson Terrace, Oregon City, Oregon.
EFFECTIVE DATE July 18, 2024
PRINCIPAL STAFF Adam Bjornstedt, PE — Chief Engineer
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Endorsement of Annexation by Resolution
REQUESTED
DOCUMENTS e Exhibits A: Tax Map
ATTACHED e Exhibit B: Request for Annexation (6/6/24)
e Exhibit C: Vicinity Map
e Annexation Resolution No. 02-2025
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND On June 6, 2024 Jerold and Jennifer Veracruz requested that their

property located at 19510 S. Ferguson Terrace in Oregon City, TL
32E11D 00216, be annexed into the Clackamas River Watet service
territory, with the intent of receiving a new water service. Staff verified
that the tax lot is outside of the District boundaties.

The property owner cutrently has a temporary watet service serving the
residence on this property; a limited use domestic well is also present on
the property. The temporary service was approved in 2013; subsequently
the need for a permanent service was inadvertently postponed, and the
owner Is Now requesting permanent setvice through annexation as a
CRW customet.

The property Owner will be required to follow CRW’s backflow
standards, which prohibit any connection between the well and private
plumbing. (The well could still be used for other purposes such as
irrigation). Prior to the tempotaty setvice connection in 2013, the well
was disconnected from the private plumbing and an approved premise
1solation backflow assembly was installed. CRW Staff and the Owner
have met and reviewed the State, County and District’s rules for

July 18, 2024 Agenda Item 6 Page 1 of 2



ANALYSIS

STAFF
RECOMMENDATION

July 18, 2024

annexation and related requitements. The owner understands and has
agreed to all requirements.

There 1s sufficient water supply to provide permanent water service to
this property without degtading the current level of service to the area.
The Owner will be responsible for the following:

o (Costs related to annexation into CRW’s service area.

o Cost associated with new water setvice to the property including
the System Development Chatges (SDC), as applicable.

¢ Installation of a premise isolation backflow assembly (completed).

The resolution provided with this agenda item tepresents an endorsement
of the customer’s request to annex into Clackamas River Water.

Staff recommends the Board approve Resolution No. 02-2025 and
endorse the annexation.

Agenda Item 6 Page 2 of 2



- x|
= S
; < Blseoszass 338
g REREEEL LI Rk
[TT g
N |‘— Sl g -
o s B 8188208588 38808825R AR ERANEE —~
-3 m EEEE S LR AR ERE R R EREERR L R
s S3o EEERERN
™M 5,9
)
X el
w 3 s
i}
"5 © - =
= © 5 €23 2 2 3R &>
- Sg 3t 8 € = g s e
- Ssag £ 5 3 3855 2.
; 38238 35 2 N g o 2522 & g
L a®Eg 3 23 S o5 £8 EE [238]
- < 3258 8§ 53 882 0358338 <o
(2] 889 £ g 5 _.c18E£8a 38 2o )
T2 T % «g,«egg.gs—':lu o o o® g
fexé& @ SEER NI ERE og
§ » = b B
L1 el o:x[ﬂ"‘““?ﬁ‘-f% 28| s
il pE ® i oD
¢ ufl SUHe oo 32
N (%) H
\ SO I 2
XA AN AKX — 2
0 SR R R xRS = 1 .
CSENK KNS 94 0% W
< 070 0 N %04 XX
< X ) :
5 ‘
4
&S i
B {
4 >
% S
he$ >
Sk L
' < ; e
P9 929-$¢ A . X,
-«”‘}/\()‘(\:fs(:y"ﬁ:/‘?)(\ X:v\y‘;?’\ s .99 e
080 % Rt CEKAX £ 9966
< A’\/Q‘f/‘(\ KK % \/g /\);}/:\A/\A K5 >i >\>\/‘§ W’Q‘”‘X‘
X SAN SO | X, ) Ry
X < ,:()‘ /\z\>\ /\,\/ ((yy b WATRI AT SONTIN, ’(/\) o X(x)\)/‘(
6 0 s ’\<\/V\/\\ XX
XXX XX K b
XXX K255 G A
N v g A 8 "l
KX 7<<x<;(\ >\>"K<,->‘>\ § 3
TRV RO FOKOO ’
> I DONCYINEN v
>,>\\‘( MK N AN, y/\ of < b4
\/<></\ X \,\">}Y‘(x:<\,§ e & - -3 \
WSS K AKX X XX e . i) i}
CURRASKIN . Ao ¢
XX SRS e v, B S
’\X«,{ X>’>\>\ ’\C':&/‘( o gsg s
C(&X’\//\ XX X K A 14
X ¥ X \)/\\/\ /( \/-’\)(&./ arzen
PR SO, X\><’ N | 18 QTN %
SO IR X, - L BS
XARIKNSEL, sl A :
4 SN ICX, WA e Y O g
R - AR p (S
X SIS 18 o e
N N R . 51 &
e \/ YKX‘/\/>\>< N \ & =
o OCNY R g8 .S
XX KNS EL >
<X ‘)\’V<;(\ OO\
XSSO O eS|
X Pig >}\/ KXY >>-‘
OSSN 25K
NA'4Y6%S) YONTNSEN
0895 S ¢ MOX ),\/\AX
{<x)‘>)\/}‘( OSSN
SO O p [
S K KK RN i s 43
/\’\A)/\(\/ x_/\/&)\ § < 6 2 s
SN K X s 08 €8 narcam 2.
SONESK Y Y | g 88§ B e S,
IF IS0 — D %
XX >2<,<& X@ N it d H
LN b A ERTZREN s - %
(>C<">X<X,,v 5 (Xq 588 . > 4 s 2
RIS 5 XKLL ; ;
K 7 X SN 7 s SPX
SO SCSIREEEK
RN > <8 xk\)\,\y>/\/ X
RS SR
06 0% et 5304
YNNI s Y YOI 4
2N v 1 < 2 4 NNV 0N
SRS EEHAKEK gas : 94 (x§2<\,\>§<vyy<>§x<,(x
SO NTNINAR K K & & X XWXy,
YN >\/<,\/\\/ z O N XX A
AR X 7 NG SN
X ,(\,\)\/ KoL o aaiens S SLL oK AN
,Q(‘\./\/>\z< /\xvyyv()\xv\/\
S CAK R XX SOOI
SEEEIERE A i SEGRRAA
SOOI ST . £ HH H XK XK (\l,\)’\,x
3 b (1\/\.’\ g ;;‘>X \/><‘<> i g 3 N HE % )x’(x,\yx_)‘/\/v. </\A,x>\ /\\'/v(\y\r
== N 5§ 3 ¢ H CEL P E b ¢ 01
R | REE RE3 4 \><y>«>;y\/>/\<\<>’)\/<>’\>\/<)</§
XY K - 258 KKK 7)-\’><)
XEAX 0 T §RE, 25 0500 XX
4 TSNS, msssaan KX ;
AKX )<?> % o ‘(2{,:){( Q;/\/\,\A:,‘x’\ ; <<\’,\\/
KON v X ¥ e
v‘fvy\)ﬁx)\}’(v)‘Q(\Z;( E 3 '\,i::\/‘></\><\<4>( Y /‘ii'x’\
N PP Y 5% g H 3 NAA NN, N
X0 e % BN 3 I _— 2. XEX SIS %
0% 0 %% ,V\fx’\ 258 HN 888 . 8 LSS SR
R ( 2 Ll Ea é ] <. % 4 ,
Igesetetetetytet Mk il i =& R RS
‘)/V\ >\/<)/\\/Y>/<(/\ N 338 s \/%ﬂy\)‘\\/\/\(\;}\)(/ %
A AR M > Mesorg A A/‘( X \/\/\/\’ g
SXIRALEK, . BRI
seselelele e i38 3 CEARTRR
COSFAX XK %% - & RS OUOOOSINES
5N >().v\/ PO, sree .44 KK X \,\\,;\(x e
>/\< S50 ‘/\') m\,“.(?-}\ | . s[5 — XQ\ >(\/\/ “(‘)\X{\/gﬂl‘x) b4
OO S ) % %% %000 5SS >
LEXK K \o,,% a8 o ) 5 ><,"\r,\(v\/>")({:/<§<§’<
S R 4 : SOSHR K XK
5 o ; ISR aa H] X Lo K NN KX
’/\\,{7?((/"/«/\/\): e REARRS o o gag [ /x;‘/\/<\ /\/(K:"O <\><®><> b
v & 3 Ve i AP
CROXX \/\’\/Y_ AR \YX 7 = svin e XX 1% O]
/ < S G 80 ¢ % % 4 LT p IO
55 KX < \,{y‘ 000 s Y, \A/\_,\’\&‘/( > PSSR X \,“/ R oA I8 {5 S AX Yo had
S5 SRR /\‘/\/YX>’<«X<\‘;\/<y\«”;\’</\<x*v SR IIPLK SOOI RD S S OHRKKRA
) OOy SN * AKX MO KX KN SOX XS X PO %
R s s S e
N B 0 8 0 NS P85 ’ O
KN LAY \,‘(/\zy\/<r SO YOO MM\, N NN <
O AP KOOy L@ LR PO RN XXX 1474 r
PO (&’y )X, ;(<><' X AKX \/ﬂ\,&/\ 9 % X< S0 SCP SRR \/\> (\,\(a,(\, SO0 ¢
VXX )/\,}) )/’%3\) 1/\/\/ y>>/"y3 e X‘ﬁ(\’«‘f S04 X, A% YO % \/(‘K)\/\/ 5 K )&/\</‘x)\> <\X 5 XX x)\/\/Q\/(\ N “>,>f 5 X
0707%) \\/\.YX/\ x/\(\,\v\(&) \</\/v.>ev) BAIANAYY NN PSS SD 0% IO U SO e %Y
9 YO % \ XX TSN ST D07 AT 04 { KRN
.</\/,/< KK K X /\(X\X) RIS TSNS KA KX ‘\/‘-"‘y/\(\( NS
V09992 KKK KA 0707676 % %9:0.9:0°9 "¢ % RO ¢ 65 X X SN %90,
WCSEGAHK AN SO SOSAEIRX ¥ SO SOOI SO NEK 7 S % > S0 %% e
SO PO ,(/\\'\,y\(‘\A \/\/V""/(k \<x‘)\,§)\<</\, 2% RSO0 e $ AKX X SOH, OSSR SR
XXX >_/y/<r\\/\</ FH 5 0 ATl SN KX KK YN S ¢ SO % %
& X,\f\,v\,&,\(/v/\/\%x/v % uvx)./,\/\ X, X AKX < XP< KOS . 5 >/y>/\) XN O * 4 K e
- 1 P; ¢ 02 % ¢’ A X X / AANX XXX W VNN, >J»V”)‘V"-L_>7‘Lz’v
MO .>\> Xy>)/>\% y;()(\’(x’y s ‘(:) f“ ><\'<::’<§’(A/‘/~§<\,\ A:\‘\ <«’\/\)’ <<\)<)\’\/v>\/\/</‘/‘<)</\ & /(\/\\'\/( >/\ '\/‘\"/‘)"\ X, \KA&SX?’Q\/; KNS
XD MOYINTON, e X X, 3 (WA P\ < & = NN & \
FAF SO CN \){5(\( 5K KA,-‘("\"-/\/\/\/ i ‘>’\“&’x& RIS %%
POV ¢ C 00 %% e %% K 909 4% O«
' IAAPKBEC : KX,
SIS AX AR




AG-6
EXHIBIT B

June 6, 2024

To:  General Manager and Board of Commissioners, CRW
From: Jerold and Jennifer Veracruz
RE:  Request for annexation

We have been in recent contact with CRW staff working to convert our current temporary water service
to a permanent service. We understand this will require the annexation of our property (19510 S.
Ferguson Terrace OC, 97045) into the CRW district. Please accept this letter as our formal request to
initiate this process. We look forward to working with your staff as we work through this process.

Thank you for your consideration,

Jerold and Jennifer Veracruz

503-348-3250

Swat32@aol.com



AG-6

. EXHIBIT C
Clackamas River Water - 19510 S Ferguson Ter
5 .i
——LEGEND ! 19600 |
X METERS \ |
&xCRW HYDRANT 19490 =
==CRW WATERLINE | I | 19754
L ITAXLOT |
Large Meters T g . T ;’
@ DOMESTIC -‘ | |
@ FIRE : ! i
@ MASTER g
CICRW Boundary [Formm | i
i , 19690.
19500 N
{ V18510
i 19345
o%
&)
K q~°°$ |
&
)
46681 P
SR ST L8745 i O
16695 16725 8
a
o0}
19189 16808
BKX
B
T H N 0 45 90 180
Date: 7/5/2024 ZE . “
Drawing Name: GIS-Development 8;1 ) w £
Drawing Location: |:\Documentation\Facility Data 2 / Feet
Drawing By: A. Steele g; :
w
MAP FOR REFERENCE PURPOSES ONLY L :
The information on this map is derived from : |
Clackamas River Water's digital database. | R
vever, there may be map errors or omissions. gE B CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
se contact Clackamas River Water directly to |2 ’
.«fy map information. Notification of any errors is GEOGRAPHIC INFORMAﬂON SYSTEM
a : ATHENS Clackamas River Water 16770 SE 82nd Drive - Clackamas, Oregon
ppreciated. e 503-722:9220 - W crwater.com




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
RESOLUTION No. 02-2025
A RESOLUTION ENDORSING ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY INTO THE JURISDICTIONAL

BOUNDARIES OF CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
Property at 19510 S. Ferguson Terrace, TL ID 32E11D 00216

FY 2024-25

WHEREAS, Clackamas River Water (“CRW?) is a domestic water supply district
organized under ORS Chapter 264; and

WHEREAS, a proposed annexation of territory is before the Board of Commissioners of
Clackamas River Water; and

WHEREAS, the proposed territory is more particularly described as:

19510 S. Ferguson Terrace, Oregon City, OR, 97045;
Tax Lot No. 00216 of Assessor’s Map No. 32E11D, as described in Exhibits A and B.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Clackamas
River Water hereafter referred to as “Board”, as follows:

1. The Board, by this resolution, endorses the proposed annexation of territory to be
included within its boundaries, as described in attached Exhibits A and B.

2. The Board makes no statement as to the availability or cost of providing domestic or fire
prevention water service to the area included within the proposed annexation.

ADOPTED by the Clackamas River Water Board of Commissioners this 18th day of July, 2024.

Sherry French, Board President

Naomi Angier, Board Secretary

Page 1 of 1



Agenda Item —7

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
July 18, 2024
SUBJECT Consider Exemption to Rules and Regulations Requiring Frontage to
Main for Water Service at 17482 Garden Lane
DRAFT MOTION I move to approve a request for exemption to the requirement for frontage
to main for water service, for the property at 17482 Garden Lane.
EFFECTIVE DATE July 18, 2024
PRINCIPAL STAFF Adam Bjornstedt, PE — Chief Engineer
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Approve exemption request
REQUESTED
DOCUMENTS Exhibit A: Property Map
ATTACHED Exhibit B: Request for Annexation (6/20/24)
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND On June 20, 2024, Bill Gaffi requested that the property located at 17482
Gatden Lane in Oregon City, TL 22E34B 02700, be granted an
exemption to the frontage requitement to provide water service. Staff
vetified that this property is inside District boundaries.
Pet CRW’s Rules and Regulations, Section 8, “...Water service will be
provided only from pipes or mains located within public streets, alleys or
rights-of-way, or within easements furnished CRW, and to property or
premises with frontage to such mains. So-called “spider connections”
which would provide setvice from one street or road to propetrty or
premises abutting another street or road will not be permitted...”
ANALYSIS The property owner has obtained a private easement with the

July 18, 2024

neighboting property owner in order to install a private water service line
to his property. If approved, the CRW service would be installed in
typical fashion within ROW off of the main on Hidden Lake Drive. The
ptivate easement would provide assurance, in this case, that the subject
ptropetty would not become “stranded” in the future should any change
occut to the neighboring propetty. While providing service to this
ptopetty requires an exemption to CRW’s Rules and Regulations, Staff
has determined that providing service to this property is feasible.

Agenda Item 7 Page 1 of 2




There 1s sufficient water supply to meet the needs of the potential
customer and the existing customers in the area without degrading the
current level of service. The Owner will be responsible for the following:
e Costs associated with new water service to the property including
System Development Charges (SDC) and setvice installation
costs, as applicable.
e Installation of a premise isolation backflow assembly, as

applicable.
STAFF Staff recommends the Board approve the exemption request to
RECOMMENDATION provide water service to the property at 17482 Garden Lane.

July 18, 2024 Agenda Item 7 Page 2 of 2



AG-7 =

Clackamas River Water - 17482 S Garden Ln

EXHIBIT A

LEGEND
® METERS
XZICRW HYDRANT

® VALVE

==CRW WATERLINE
ITAXLOT

Layer

Large Meters

[d DOMESTIC

[d FIRE
[d MASTER

&l

16028

S GARDEN LN

NO

17483

17505 17504

17483

17604

17650

17702 .~

oo 15297 | 17452

Date: 3/21/2023

Drawing Name: GIS-Development

Drawing Location: l:\Documentation\Facility Data
Drawing By: A. Steele

MAP FOR REFERENCE PURPOSES ONLY
The information on this map is derived from
Clackamas River Water's digital database.
vever, there may be map errors or omissions.
se contact Clackamas River Water directly to
.fy map information. Notification of any errors is
appreciated.

N 0 105 210 420

"éﬁ‘  Feet

& CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
‘ GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM

Clackamas River Water 16770 SE 82nd Drive - Clackamas, Oregon
5037229220 - www.croiater.com




AG-7
EXHIBIT B

June 20, 2024

Mr, Adam Bjornsted
Chief Engineer
Clackamas River Water
16770 SE 82™ Dr,
Clackamas, OR 97015

Dear Mr. Bjornsted,

Please accept this request for exemption to Section 8 New Water Service and
Meters rules and regulations. My wife and | own Lt 23 Hidden Lake Estates.
We also have a use and enjoyment and utility easement over (and a contract
to purchase) the portion of Lt 21 between Lt 23 and Hidden Lake Drive (See
Attachment A). We have a young vineyard that is principally within the Lt 21
easement area but extends onto Lt 23. Alotline adjustmentis in process to -
add the easement area to Lt 23 but is taking much longer than anticipated.

Last summer, the vineyard was irrigated via a temporary connection to the
CRW service line coming off of CRW’s main in Hidden Lake Dr. That was the

- only practicable point of service. Bringing supply all the way down Garden
Lane from the CRW line in Redland Rd to serve the small portion of the
vineyard that is on Lt 23 isn’t feasible at this time. All of the properties on
Garden Lane have good wells and can’t subdivide until the UGB expands and
zoning is changed. The area is a rural reserve so that will likely be a long time
coming. In the meantime, we have a pressing need to maintain irrigation of
ourvineyard.

In light of the foregoing, we would be very grateful if an exemption to section 8
were to be granted allow continued service to our site via Hidden Lake Drive.
Thank you again for helping us keep our new vineyard alive!

Bill Gaffi




Agenda Item — 8

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
July 18, 2024
SUBJECT Consider Approval of Purchase of Replacement F550 Service Truck for
Meter Maintenance Tasks
DRAFT MOTION Move to approve the Purchase of one 2024/25 Ford F-550 Chassis with
Setvice Body, Associated Equipment and Hardwate for a Not-To-Exceed
amount of $180,000.
EFFECTIVE DATE July 18, 2024
PRINCIPAL STAFF Adam Bjornstedt, PE — Chief Engineer
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Consideration and approval of the putchase of one 2024/25 Ford F-550
REQUESTED chassis with crane setvice body and associated equipment
DOCUMENTS None
ATTACHED
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND The ptior F550 heavy duty maintenance truck was purchased in 2017. In September
2023, this vehicle sustained damages in a non-injury accident with an uninsured
mototist which resulted in a “totaled” determination by insurance. This vehicle is a
key patt of the Distribution system operations function, including its primaty use for
meter maintenance activities. Thus, the vehicle must be replaced. Some operable
equipment, including the service ctane, was able to be salvaged from the totaled
vehicle.
Insurance paid $123,634 for the assessed replacement cost; the actual cost of
replacement is estimated at $178,497.97. The replacement vehicle will be acquired
utilizing one of CRW’s pre-existing intergovernmental purchasing agreements. This
unforeseen expense was not included in CRW’s 23-25 budget; however Finance has
indicated that sufficient funds exist for this purpose. Board approval is requested
since the amount will exceed the General Manager’s authority.
STAFF Putchase one 2024 /25 Ford F-550 chassis with crane setvice body and associated
RECOMMENDATION equipment.

July 18, 2024

Agenda Itemr 8 Page 1 of 1



Agenda Item —9
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
July 18, 2024

SUBJECT Professional Services Agreement Amendment: 1-205 Crossings,
Consultant Services, Project 22-5291

DRAFT MOTION Move to awatd a Professional Setvices Agteement Amendment to Consor
North America, Inc. for design and construction services associated with
the I-205 Crossings Project for an amount not-to-exceed $79,744.00 and
authorize the General Manager’s signature on the completed Amendment.

EFFECTIVE DATE  July 18, 2024

PRINCIPAL STAFF Joseph D. Eskew — Engineering Manager

PERSON

BOARD ACTION The Boatd is requested to authorize a Professional Services Agreement

REQUESTED Amendment with Consor North America, Inc. for a not-to-exceed amount
of $79,744.00 for Design and inspection Services for the I-205 Crossings
Project.

DOCUMENTS Exhibit A: Agreement Amendment

ATTACHED

Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND The 1I-205 Crossihgs Project is included in the adopted BN23-25 CIP

Budget. This project is primarily funded through grant funds. A grant
amendment is in process.

The Board awarded a design contract to Consor North America, Inc. at the
January 11, 2024, regular board meeting. The project includes the
replacement of two cast iron (CI) crossings of I-205. The two crossings are
located at Janssen Rd. and at Hanson Ct. The Janssen Rd. alignment is
unaffected by this amendment.

An analysis of the existing utilities and available space within the 82" Drive
cortidor to Hanson Ct. has been completed as part of the 82nd Drive
watetline project. Upon review it was decided that an acceptable corridor
for installation of a replacement waterline along SE 82nd Drive to SE
Hanson Ct does not exist. An alternative route to achieve the project goal
to provide a secure I-205 crossing appears to exist as a replacement for the
10-inch CI watetline currently crossing under I-205 from SE Manfield
Coutt to SE Strawberry Lane. This amendment provides funding to

uly 18, 2024 Agenda Iten 9 Page 1 of 2
2y L9 8



petrform geotechnical investigations and design at the revised location for
the I-205 crossing.

STAFF The proposed amendment exceeds 15% of the original agreement of

RECOMMENDATION  $184,544 and staff recommends the Board award the Professional Services
Agreement Amendment to Consor North America, Inc. for the amount
stated.

July 18, 2024 Agenda Itemn 9 Page 2 of 2



EXHIBIT A
EXHIBIT A AG-9

AMENDMENT 1-
ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
FOR THE
I-205 WATERLINE CROSSINGS PROJECT
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Background and Project Description

Clackamas River Water District (CRW/District) contracted Consor North America, Inc (Consultant) to
provide engineering services to assist CRW during design, bidding, permitting, and construction of the I-
205 Waterline Crossings Project (Project/freeway crossings) in January 2024. The Project goals included
the replacement of cast iron (Cl) waterlines with new 12-inch diameter ductile iron (DI) pipe within new
steel casings under I-205 at two locations, at SE Jannsen Road and from SE Hanson Court to SE Cason Road,
in Clackamas County (County), and is funded through a Federal FEMA grant.

CRW also contracted Consultant to provide similar engineering services for the associated 82" Drive
Waterline Phase 2 Project (82" Drive/waterline project) which is not funded as part of the FEMA grant.
Consultant billings have been tracked and invoiced for waterline project work separate from freeway
crossings work, and under a separate scope of work and fee estimate; however, it is CRW’s intent to
combine the 1-205 crossings for bidding and construction with the 82nd Drive Waterline Phase 2 work and
select a single Contractor. Contract documents are to continue to be structured to allow reporting of the
costs and expenditures from the |-205 crossings separately from the 82nd Drive Phase 2 Waterline work to
facilitate simplified reporting for the FEMA funded work.

Scope Change Description

In May of 2024, after initial utility basemap updates, subsequent utility potholing, and an added fatal flaw
analysis were completed by Consultant and reviewed by CRW as part of services provided for the 82™ Drive
waterline project, it was decided that an acceptable corridor for installation of a replacement waterline
along SE 82" Drive to SE Hanson Ct does not currently exist. In addition, CRW completed its own
investigative work concurrently with Consultant’s work, the results of which is that they suspect that their
existing waterline crossing from SE Hanson Court to SE Cason Road is a DI waterline of newer vintage than
previously thought. As such, the District has decided to pursue replacing the 10-inch Cl waterline currently
crossing under 1-205 from SE Manfield Court to SE Strawberry Lane with 12-inch DI pipe in a new steel
casing in lieu of previously proposed waterline crossing from SE Hanson Court/SE Cason Road. CRW has
requested Consultant to provide this contract amendment to include additional engineering services
related to implementing the required changes in scope related to this Project.

Consultant has also provided a separate contract amendment to address additional engineering services
required for the related changes in scope for the 82" Drive Waterline Phase 2 project.

Consor e June 2024 « CRW
Amendment 1 for I-205 Waterline Crossings Projecte 1



Scope of Services

Consultant will perform the following additional services.

Task 1 - Project Management

Objective

Continue to provide overall leadership and team strategic guidance aligned with CRW staff objectives.
Coordinate, monitor, and control the project resources to meet the technical, communication, and
contractual obligations required for developing and implementing the amended project scope.

Subtask 1.1 Project Management & Administration

1.

Perform general administration and project management throughout the Project to provide
successful completion of all tasks and elements of the Project within the established and updated
scope, schedule, and budget. Perform project start-up for updated project scope.

Develop and maintain an overall updated project schedule, including adding staff subconsultants
and other resources to meet scheduled milestones.

Proactively track progress of project work completed against schedule & budget.

Inform CRW of anticipated challenges during the Project Design phase as they may arise and
develop solutions together.

Subtask 1.2 Invoices/Status Reporting

1.

Consultant will prepare monthly invoices that include expenditures by task, hours worked by
project personnel, and other direct expenses with the associated backup documentation.

Monthly status reports will accompany each invoice and include comparisons of monthly
expenditures and cumulative charges to budget by Task, including budget remaining.

It is assumed that there will be an additional ten (10) months of invoices due to the extended
Project schedule.

Subtask 1.3 Project Design Meetings

1.

2.

Work under this subtask includes coordinating schedules, developing agendas, and preparing
materials for key project meetings during the project design phase, and includes the following
meetings, specifically for the revised 1-205 crossing location (SE Manfield Court to SE Strawberry
Lane):

» Project Kick-off
» One preliminary design check-in meeting

Agendas and meeting summaries to be prepared and distributed to meeting attendees.

Subtask 1.4 Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC)

1

Perform in-house QA/QC reviews of all deliverables prior to submitting them to CRW.

Consor ¢ June 2024 « CRW

Amendment 1 for I-205 Waterline Crossings Project ¢ 2
G:\PDX_BD\Clients\Clackamas River Water\2023 82nd Drive Main & 1-205 Crossings\Amendment 1\Amendment 1 - Scope 2024-6-5 - 1-205 Crossing (DRAFT).docx



Subtask 1.5 Scoping for Amendment 1

1. Work under this subtask includes Consultant’s work to provide Owner with Amendment 1 scope
and fee estimate.

2. Consultant’s scoping work included:

Coordinating with Owner to gather available scoping information.

Internal meeting to discuss trenchless feasibility/impacts.

Coordination with geotechnical engineer for geotechnical investigation amendment proposal.
Preliminary outreach to trenchless subcontractors for initial input on revised crossing location.
Composing Amendment 1 scope and fee estimate.

YVVVYVY

Task 1 Assumptions

» Consultant assumed a Project close-out date in November 2024 for original Project scope.

» Assumed updated construction completion date for inclusion of revised crossing change is June 30,
2025. Associated assumed updated Project close-out date in August 2025.

» Revised Project duration will be approximately 10-months later than previously scoped; therefore,
it is assumed that there will be up to 10 additional progress payments/status reports for the
Project. Progress payments for 82" Drive Waterline project will continue to be invoiced separately.

» Two (2) added meetings which will include Consultant PM, design lead, and engineering designer.
Meetings will have an approximate duration of 1 hour each. It is assumed that all meetings will be
held via video conferencing.

Task 1 Deliverables

» Consultant shall deliver a monthly invoice and status report covering:

Work on the project performed during the previous month.

Meetings attended.

Issues encountered, and actions taken for their resolution.

Potential impacts to submittal dates, budget shortfalls or optional services.
Issues requiring project team action.

O O O O O

» Project Design and Bidding Schedule and updated schedules, as requested by CRW (MS Project or
MS Excel formats).

» Meeting agendas and summaries (MS Word format).

Task 2 - Data Review and Site Reconnaissance

Gather and review existing mapping, as-builts, design drawings, engineering reports and other data not
previously obtained per original scope, related to the revised limits of the proposed Project. Perform site
reconnaissance of revised Project limits with CRW staff and design team to confirm existing site conditions.
Review existing system operations with CRW staff.

Consor ¢ June 2024 « CRW

Amendment 1 for [-205 Waterline Crossings Projecte 3
G:\PDX_BD\Clients\Clackamas River Water\2023 82nd Drive Main & 1-205 Crossings\Amendment 1\Amendment 1 - Scope 2024-6-5 -1-205 Crossing (DRAFT).docx



Task 2 Assumptions

» ltisassumed that CRW staff will provide available data and attend site visits as needed.

» CRW will obtain additional topographical survey for the revised Project limits, which will be
provided to Consultant.

Task 2 Deliverables
» There are no specific deliverables associated with this task as the data will be used to complete
subsequent tasks.
Task 3 — 50% Preliminary Design

Work under this task includes preparation of the preliminary design of the revised 1-205 crossing location
for the Project. The preliminary design will include completion of the drawings to approximately the 50%
level. The plan and profile views of the auger bored, cased freeway crossing will be presented for CRW
review and comments.

Task 3 Assumptions

> It is assumed that the 1-205 waterline crossing will be constructed via auger boring trenchless
technique(s) with jacked 36-inch diameter or larger steel casing with restrained 12-inch diameter
DI carrier pipe. Pilot tube auger boring equipment may be necessary to maintain a tight line and
grade.

» Aninformal fatal flaw/feasibility analysis will be conducted as an initial work item under this Task.

» Alternatively, pipe bursting of the existing Cl water main at this crossing location may be considered
if a cased crossing is found to not be feasible per fatal flaw/feasibility analysis.

» The trenchless freeway crossing is anticipated to be approximately 300 LF long each and located
from SE Manfield Court to SE Strawberry Lane.

> It is assumed that the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) will require a temporary
pedestrian traffic accessible route (TPAR) and/or pedestrian detour plan for anticipated impacts to
[-205 pedestrian path on Strawberry Lane side of crossing.

Task 3 Deliverables

» Electronic scalable set of plans (11”x17” PDF format).

Task 4 — Geotechnical Investigation
A geotechnical investigation for the updated trenchless freeway crossings is proposed and will include:

1. Review of previous geotechnical studies and other available geologic information for the project
area.

2. Establish exploration locations and obtain necessary permits for the explorations from Clackamas
County and ODOT if needed.

Consor © June 2024 « CRW

Amendment 1 for I-205 Waterline Crossings Project ¢ 4
G:\PDX_BD\Clients\Clackamas River Water\2023 82nd Drive Main & I-205 Crossings\Amendment 1\Amendment 1 - Scope 2024-6-5 - 1-205 Crossing (DRAFT).docx



Geotechnical field work will be completed at updated trenchless crossing location. The planned
geotechnical explorations will consist of 2 borings drilled to 30’ depth, one on each side of 1-205,
and will utilize rotosonic drilling techniques with continuous soil sampling.

Conduct geotechnical laboratory testing on selected samples from the borings. Testing will include
moisture content, percent fines/grain-size analysis and Atterberg limits.

Revise Geotechnical Data Report (GDR), summarizing the geotechnical investigation, testing, and
other factual results for Contractor bidding and construction purposes for the updated crossing
location.

Revise Geotechnical Engineering Report (GER) summarizing the geotechnical investigation, testing,
engineering evaluation and recommendations for the updated trenchless crossing design and
construction.

Provide geotechnical engineering consultations for the trenchless crossing design.

ODOT utility permit notification and cultural resource certification requirements associated with
permitting within ROW will be completed prior to conducting drilling. See Task 6 below for related
additional scope.

Task 4 Assumptions

>

The geotechnical explorations do not include environmental assessments, and the sites are
assumed to be “clean” regarding contaminated and hazardous materials.

There will be no anticipated permit fees as work is being performed for CRW; County waives CRW
fees and ODOT does not charge permitting fees.

Task 4 Deliverables

>

Revised GDR and GER (PDF format).

Task 5 - Subsurface Utility Explorations

Work under this task includes additional utility coordination to determine utility pothole locations and
support final design project work for updated 1-205 crossing location. Vac-X has yet to complete potholing
work originally scoped for planned trenchless crossings.

Communicate and coordinate with additional utility providers within the project limits to review potential
conflicts with proposed work. Identify potential utility conflicts and develop a list of potholing needs.

Task 5 Assumptions

>

Coordination is anticipated with the following utilities:

Northwest Natural

Portland General Electric

Clackamas County WES

Various Telecommunications Providers
City of Gladstone, Water Department

O O O O ©

Consor ¢ June 2024 » CRW

Amendment 1 for |-205 Waterline Crossings Projects 5
G:\PDX_BD\Clients\Clackamas River Water\2023 82nd Drive Main & 1-205 Crossings\Amendment 1\Amendment 1 - Scope 2024-6-5 - 1-205 Crossing (DRAFT).docx



> Waterline alignments will be selected to avoid relocations of existing utilities. However, should
relocations be necessary, additional utility coordination assistance may be provided by amendment
to coordinate relocations and resolve conflicts with affected utilities.
Task 5 Deliverables
» No additional deliverables anticipated besides 8 pothole data reports previously scoped for two (2)
trenchless crossings.
Task 6 — Permitting and Approval Support

Under this task, the Consultant will obtain permits and approval required for the Project. Copies of all
completed permits will be included in the appendices of the final construction contract documents. The
following approval is anticipated to be required for the project:

» ODOT — Permit acquisition is anticipated to be limited to an Application and Utility Permit to
Perform Operations Upon a State Highway from ODOT for each freeway crossing.

The selected construction Contractor shall be required to acquire any Clackamas County Street Opening
Permit/Utility permits required for the Project construction.
Task 6 Assumptions

» Following the development of the draft 50% design for the updated trenchless crossing, the permit
process and coordination with ODOT will continue.

» Consultant will complete ODOT’s recently implemented utility permit notification and cultural
resource certification requirements in advance of geotechnical investigations as required, and for
obtaining utility permit for Project.

> It is assumed that total ground disturbance area will be less than 1 acre, therefore an Oregon
Department of Environmental Quality — General Permit 1200 C for Construction Stormwater permit
will not be required.

Task 6 Deliverables

» Submit completed permit application to ODOT (PDF format).

Budget

Consultant proposes to perform this work on a time and expenses basis with a total not to exceed amount
of $79,744, which includes added design phase engineering services as outlined above. The proposed fee
estimate is provided as “Attachment A”. Fee estimates are based upon Consultant’s 2024 Schedule of
Charges which is provided as “Attachment B”. Payment will be made at the Billing rates for personnel
working directly on the project, which will be made at the Consultant’s Hourly Rates, plus Direct Expenses
incurred.

Proposed Updated Project Schedule

The following is an updated proposed schedule of services for the project.

> Notice to Proceed for Amendment (assumed) — July 1, 2024

Consor « June 2024 « CRW

Amendment 1 for [-205 Waterline Crossings Project « 6
G:\PDX_BD\Clients\Clackamas River Water\2023 82nd Drive Main & 1-205 Crossings\Amendment 1\Amendment 1 - Scope 2024-6-5 - 1-205 Crossing (DRAFT).docx



\4

YV V V VY

Owner Supplied Additional Survey for Updated Project Limits (assumed ETA) — August 1, 2024

Kickoff, Data Collection and Site Recon for Updated Project Limits — August 1 to September 15,
2024

Geotechnical Investigation and 50% Preliminary Design — September 1 to October 31, 2024
Design and Permitting — November 15, 2024 to February 1, 2025
Bidding, Award and NTP — February 1 to March 1, 2025

Construction Period (4 months) — March 1 through June 30, 2025

Consor ¢ June 2024 « CRW

Amendment 1 for I-205 Waterline Crossings Projects 7
G:\PDX_BD\Clients\Clackamas River Water\2023 82nd Drive Main & I-205 Crossings\Amendment 1\Amendment 1 - Scope 2024-6-5 - 1-205 Crossing (DRAFT).docx



Agenda Item — 10
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
July 18, 2024

SUBJECT Professional Setvices Agreement Amendment: 82 Drive Watetline,
Phase 2 Consultant Services, Project, CIP 23-5303

DRAFT MOTION Move to award a Professional Services Agreement Amendment to Consor
North America, Inc. for design and construction setvices associated with
the 82™ Drive Waterline, Phase 2 Project for an amount not-to exceed
$82,979.00 and authorize the General Manager’s signature on the
completed Contract.

EFFECTIVE DATE  July 18, 2024

PRINCIPAL STAFF Joseph D. Eskew — Engineering Manager

PERSON

BOARD ACTION The Boatd is requested to authorize a Professional Services Agreement

REQUESTED Amendment with Consot North America, Inc. for a not-to exceed amount
of $82,979.00 for Design Services of the 82 Drive Watetline, Phase 2
Project.

DOCUMENTS Exhibit A: Agreement Amendment

ATTACHED

Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND The 82" Drive Watetline, Phase 2 project is included in the adopted BN23-

25 CIP Budget.

The Board awarded a design contract to Consor North America, Inc. at the
January 11, 2024, regular board meeting. The project included 1,700 lineal
feet of new 12-inch Ductile Iron watetline to replace existing cast iron (CI)

pipe.

An analysis of the existing utilities and available space within the 82" Drive
corridor to Hanon Ct. was completed. Upon review it was decided that an
acceptable corridor for installation of a replacement watetline along SE
82nd Drive to SE Hanson Ct does not exist. An alternative route on
Mansfield Ct. parallel to the existing 10-inch CI and extending onto
Strawberry Lane is a viable alternative alignment. Full replacement of the
existing 10-inch CI on Strawberry Lane will add about 200 lineal feet.

July 18, 2024 Agenda Item 10 Page 7 of 2



This amendment provides funding to perform subsurface explorations to
identify utility conflicts and design for the revised route.

This project 1s planned to be designed and constructed 1 conjunction with
the grant funded I-205 crossings to provide continuity of design.

STAFF The proposed amendment exceeds 15% of the original agreement of

RECOMMENDATION  $135,106.00 and staff recommends the Boatd award the Professional
Setvices Agtreement Amendment to Consor North America, Inc. for the
amount stated.

July 18, 2024 Agenda Item 10 Page 2 of 2



EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT A AE 1D

AMENDMENT 1-
ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
FOR THE
82ND DRIVE WATERLINE PHASE 2 PROJECT
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Background and Project Description

Clackamas River Water District (CRW/District) contracted Consor North America, Inc. (Consultant) to
provide engineering services to assist CRW during design, bidding, and construction of the 82" Drive
Waterline Phase 2 Project (Project/waterline project) in January 2024. CRW originally intended to construct
approximately 1,700 lineal feet (LF) of new 12-inch diameter Ductile Iron (DI) waterline to replace an
existing 1920’s era 10-inch diameter Cast Iron (Cl) waterline within SE 82nd Drive between SE Scottstree
Way and SE Hanson Court in Clackamas County.

CRW also contracted Consultant for the associated 1-205 Waterline Crossings Project (freeway crossings),
which includes two (2) trenchless crossings under I-205 at SE Jannsen Road and from SE Hanson Court to
SE Cason Road. The freeway crossings are to be funded through a Federal FEMA grant. Therefore,
Consultant billings have been tracked and invoiced for waterline project work separate from freeway
crossings work, and under a separate scope of work and fee estimate; however, it is CRW’s intent to
combine the I-205 crossings for bidding and construction with the waterline project work and select a single
Contractor. Contract documents are to continue to be structured to allow reporting of the costs and
expenditures from the waterline project work separately from the freeway crossings to facilitate simplified
reporting for the FEMA funded work.

Scope Change Description

In May of 2024, after an added fatal flaw analysis was completed by Consultant and reviewed by CRW for
the Project, it was decided that an acceptable corridor for installation of a replacement waterline along SE
82" Drive to SE Hanson Ctdoes not currently exist. In addition, CRW completed its own investigative work
concurrently with Consultant’s work, the results of which is that they suspect that their existing waterline
crossing from SE Hanson Court to SE Cason Road is a DI waterline of newer vintage than previously thought.
As such, the District has decided to pursue replacing the 10-inch Cl waterline currently crossing under I-
205 from SE Manfield Court to SE Strawberry Lane in lieu of previously proposed waterline crossing from
SE Hanson Court/SE Cason Road.

CRW has requested Consultant to provide this contract amendment to include additional engineering
services required to implement the required changes in scope related to this Project. This change in scope
shall include abandoning originally scoped plans to replace CRW'’s existing 10-inch Cl waterline between SE
Manfield Court and SE Hanson Court along SE 82" Drive (approximately 1,400 LF) and instead revising
Project limits to include replacing existing 10-inch Cl waterline from SE Scottstree Way to SE Manfield Court
along SE 82" Drive, then replacing existing 10-inch waterline along SE Manfield Court to SE Strawberry

Consor  June 2024 « CRW
Amendment 1 for 82nd Drive Waterline Phase 2 Project « 1



Lane, with trenchless crossing of 1-205 scoped under separate amendment for the freeway crossing project,
and extending replacement of waterline along SE Strawberry Lane to a tee located mid-block between SE
Hanneman Court and SE Todd Lane, approximately 2,000 LF total, excluding trenchless crossing length.
Planned replacement piping to remain 12-inch DI as originally scoped.

Scope of Services

Consultant will perform the following additional services.

Task 1 - Project Management
Objective

Continue to provide overall leadership and team strategic guidance aligned with CRW staff objectives.
Coordinate, monitor, and control the project resources to meet the technical, communication, and
contractual obligations required for developing and implementing the amended project scope.

Subtask 1.1 Project Management & Administration

1. Perform general administration and project management throughout the Project to provide
successful completion of all tasks and elements of the Project within the established and updated
scope, schedule, and budget. Perform project start-up for updated project scope..

2. Develop and maintain an overall project schedule, including adding staff subconsultants and other
resources to meet scheduled milestones.

3. Proactively track progress of project work completed against schedule & budget.

4. Inform CRW of anticipated challenges during the Project Design phase as they may arise and
develop solutions together.

Subtask 1.2 Invoices/Status Reporting

1. Consultant will prepare monthly invoices that include expenditures by task, hours worked by
project personnel, and other direct expenses with the associated backup documentation.

2. Monthly status reports will accompany each invoice and include comparisons of monthly
expenditures and cumulative charges to budget by Task, including budget remaining.

3. Itis assumed that there will be an additional ten (10) months of invoices due to extended Project
schedule.

Subtask 1.3 Project Design Meetings

1. Work under this subtask includes coordinating schedules, developing agendas, and preparing
materials for key project meetings during the project design phase, and includes the following
additional meetings, specifically for the revised Project limits:

> Project Kick-off
> One preliminary design check-in meeting

2. Agendas and meeting summaries to be prepared and distributed to meeting attendees.

Consor ¢ June 2024 « CRW
Amendment 1 for 82nd Drive Waterline Phase 2 Project « 2

G:\PDX_BD\Clients\Clackamas River Water\2023 82nd Drive Main & I-205 Crossings\Amendment 1\Amendment 1 - Scope 2024-6-5 - 82nd Drive (DRAFT).docx



Subtask 1.4 Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC)

1.

Perform in-house QA/QC reviews of all deliverables prior to submitting them to CRW.

Subtask 1.5 Scoping for Amendment 1

1.

Work under this subtask includes Consultant’s work to provide Owner with Amendment 1 scope
and fee estimate.

Consultant’s scoping work included:

» Coordinating with Owner to gather available scoping information.
» Composing Amendment 1 scope and fee estimate.

Task 1 Assumptions

>
>

Consultant assumed a Project close-out date in November 2024 for original Project scope.

Assumed updated construction completion date for inclusion of revised crossing change is June 30,
2025. Associated assumed updated Project close-out date in August 2025.

Revised project duration will be approximately 10 months longer than previously scoped;
therefore, it is assumed that there will be up to 10 additional progress payments/status reports for
the Project. Progress payments for I-205 Waterline Crossings Project will continue to be invoiced
separately.

Two (2) added meetings which will include Consultant PM, design lead, and engineering designer.
Meetings will have an approximate duration of 2 hours each. It is assumed that all meetings will be
held via video conferencing.

Task 1 Deliverables

>

>

Consultant shall deliver a monthly invoice and status report covering:

Work on the project performed during the previous month.

Meetings attended.

Issues encountered, and actions taken for their resolution.

Potential impacts to submittal dates, budget shortfalls or optional services.
Issues requiring project team action.

O O O O O

Project Design and Bidding Schedule and updated schedules, as requested by CRW (MS Project
format).

Meeting agendas and summaries (MS Word format).

Task 2 - Data Review and Site Reconnaissance

Gather and review existing mapping, as-builts, design drawings, engineering reports and other data not
previously obtained per original scope, related to the revised limits of the proposed Project. Perform site
reconnaissance of the revised Project limits with CRW staff and design team to confirm existing site
conditions. Review existing system operations with CRW staff.

Consor ¢ June 2024 « CRW

Amendment 1 for 82nd Drive Waterline Phase 2 Project ¢ 3
G:\PDX_BD\Clients\Clackamas River Water\2023 82nd Drive Main & I-205 Crossings\Amendment 1\Amendment 1 - Scope 2024-6-5 - 82nd Drive (DRAFT).docx



Task 2 Assumptions

> Itis assumed that CRW staff will provide available data and attend site visits as needed.

» CRW will obtain additional topographical survey for the revised Project limits, which will be
provided to Consultant.

Task 2 Deliverables

» There are no specific deliverables associated with this task as the data will be used to complete
subsequent tasks.

Task 3 — 50% Preliminary Design

Work under this task includes preparation of the preliminary design of the Project for the revised Project
limits. Any remaining budget from the original scope for this Task will be utilized in conjunction with Task 3
budget included in Amendment 1.

The preliminary design will include completion of the drawings to approximately the 50% level. The plan
views of the 82" Drive, SE Manfield Court and SE Strawberry Lane pipelines showing the proposed
alignment will be presented for CRW review and comments.

Task 3 Assumptions

» It is assumed that the 82nd Drive, SE Manfield Court, and SE Strawberry Lane waterline
replacements will include approximately 2,000 LF total of restrained 12-inch diameter DI pipe.

> Itis assumed that approximately 1,400 LF of the 1,700 LF of piping originally scoped along SE 82"¢
Drive for replacement was partially designed to a near 50% Preliminary Design level, including an
added fatal flaw analysis; however, this segment of piping is not included in the revised Project
limits identified for Amendment 1. No design effort has been provided yet for approximately 1,700
LF of piping associated with this Amendment 1 scope.

» Level of effort assumes that no existing utilities will require relocation to provide corridor for new
water main therefore no utility relocation plans/designs are needed.

Task 3 Deliverables

» Electronic scalable set of plans (11”x17” PDF format).

Task 5 - Subsurface Utility Explorations

Task 5 Work, including Vac-X’s utility potholing, was completed as part of added fatal flaw analysis with
original scope for planned water pipeline replacement located along SE 82" Drive, from SE Scottstree to
SE Hanson Court. Additional subsurface utility explorations required for revised Project limits.

Work under this task includes utility coordination and subsurface utility explorations to support final design
project work. Communicate and coordinate with utility providers within the project limits to review
potential conflicts with proposed work. Identify potential utility conflicts and develop a list of potholing
needs.

Subsurface utility explorations will be performed by our subconsultant VacX to support final design project
work. Vacuum excavation will be used to estimate horizontal and vertical information for existing utilities

Consor ¢ June 2024 « CRW

Amendment 1 for 82nd Drive Waterline Phase 2 Project « 4
G:\PDX_BD\Clients\Clackamas River Water\2023 82nd Drive Main & I-205 Crossings\Amendment 1\Amendment 1 - Scope 2024-6-5 - 82nd Drive (DRAFT).docx



at critical crossing and connection locations. Information gathered on utilities encountered during the
excavation (including top, bottom, width, general soil conditions, and asphalt/concrete thickness, etc.) will
be provided in an excel format along with accompanying sketches that locate each pothole relative to
existing surface features and include details of the findings. Potholing will include backfilling all test holes
with a material approved by the jurisdiction involved (Clackamas County). At each pothole location, a core
of the existing pavement will be removed prior to potholing. Potholes will be patched with hot mix asphalt
concrete, or other approved material, and finished neatly.

Task 5 Assumptions

» Coordination is anticipated with the following utilities:

City of Gladstone, Water Department
Oak Lodge Water District

Northwest Natural

Portland General Electric

Clackamas County WES

Various Telecommunications Providers

O O O O O O

VacX budget estimate includes up to 8 potholes to be performed during daytime hours.
It is anticipated that utilities will be eight (8) feet or less in depth.

Up to 64 inches of coring and hot mix asphalt restoration (8 inches per pothole location).

YV V V V

A Street Opening Permit may be required for potholing within Clackamas County right-of-way
(ROW). If permit required by County, it is understood that no fees will be required since work is
being performed for CRW. VacX will be instructed to indicate that potholing work is for CRW when
applying for County permit, as required.

No hazardous materials will be encountered.

» Includes time for Consor staff to meet and coordinate with Vac-X while they are onsite conducting
utility potholing, and afterwards to confirm final pothole locations as required.

» Waterline alignments will be selected to avoid relocations of existing utilities. However, should
relocations be necessary, additional utility coordination assistance may be provided by amendment
to coordinate relocations and resolve conflicts with affected utilities.

Task 5 Deliverables

» Up to 8 pothole data reports and sketches (PDF format).

Task 6 — Permitting and Approval Support

Under this task, the Consultant will obtain permits and approval required for the Project design, including
anticipated ROW permitting required for conducting utility potholing during design which shall be obtained
by Consultant as described under Task 5 — Subsurface Utility Explorations.

The selected construction Contractor shall be required to acquire any Clackamas County Street Opening
Permit/Utility permits required for the Project construction.

Consor ¢ June 2024 « CRW

Amendment 1 for 82nd Drive Waterline Phase 2 Project * 5
G:\PDX_BD\Clients\Clackamas River Water\2023 82nd Drive Main & I-205 Crossings\Amendment 1\Amendment 1 - Scope 2024-6-5 - 82nd Drive (DRAFT).docx



Task 7 — Design

Work under this task includes additional work required for preparation of final plans, contract documents
technical specifications, and construction cost estimates for the revised Project limits. These efforts will be
completed in an incremental approach to the 90%, and the 100% Final Design levels, allowing for CRW
input and comment as the designs are developed and finalized. Design subtasks are detailed as follows.

Subtask 7.1 —90% Design

Based on the CRW’s input on preliminary designs, Consultant will develop 90% designs that depict
recommended waterline improvements. Designs at this stage will establish appropriate project limits,
identify connection locations to the existing water system, and include draft 90% complete construction
drawings including draft profiles and draft connection details, sections and other details pertinent to the
proposed project.

Work under this task includes preparing updated design drawings, technical specifications and contract
documents, and cost estimates.
Subtask 7.1 Assumptions

» The original scope included 1,700 LF of piping for replacement, and the revised Project limits
identified for Amendment 1 includes approximately 2,000 LF of piping. This correlates to a 15%
increase in replacement waterline piping to be designed per Amendment 1. The additional
budgeted hours included in Amendment 1 fee estimate spreadsheet generally reflect this
calculated percentage increase for anticipated design level of effort.

» CRW will provide standard contract and technical specifications for editing by Consultant.

» Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Costs (EOPCC), itemizing the project work elements
as provided in the bid schedule, based on prior experience on similar projects and current data
relative to construction pricing trends.

Subtask 7.1 Deliverables
» Electronic scalable set of plans (11”x17” and 22”x 34” PDF format).

» Draft contract documents and technical specifications (Word and PDF format).

» 90% Draft, Class 2 EOPCC (PDF format).

Subtask 7.2 — 100% & Final Design

The 100% Final design submittal (Issued for Construction and Construction permitting) will be advanced
from the 90% submittal, incorporating CRW review comments. Work under this task includes preparing
100% complete drawings for permit review, and preparing final drawings, technical specifications and
contract documents, and cost estimates required for bidding the project.

Subtask 7.2 Assumptions

» The original scope included 1,700 LF of piping for replacement, and the revised Project limits
identified for Amendment 1 includes approximately 2,000 LF of piping. This correlates to a 15%
increase in replacement waterline piping to be designed per Amendment 1. The additional

Consor ¢ June 2024 « CRW

Amendment 1 for 82nd Drive Waterline Phase 2 Project ¢ 6
G:\PDX_BD\Clients\Clackamas River Water\2023 82nd Drive Main & I-205 Crossings\Amendment 1\Amendment 1 - Scope 2024-6-5 - 82nd Drive (DRAFT).docx



»

»

budgeted hours included in Amendment 1 fee estimate spreadsheet generally reflect this
calculated percentage increase for anticipated design level of effort.

It is assumed that Traffic Control Plans will be prepared by the construction contractor and are not
part of the design drawings.

It is assumed that separate Erosion Control Plan sheets will not be required.

Subtask 7.2 Deliverables

>

>
>

Final design submittal (Issued for Construction and related permitting) and stamped electronic
scalable set of plans (11”x17” and 22”x34”, PDF format).

Signed and stamped contract documents and technical specifications (Word and PDF format).

Final EOPCC, Class 2 (PDF format).

Budget

Consultant proposes to perform this work on a time and expenses basis with a total not to exceed amount
of $82,979, which includes added design phase engineering services as outlined above. The proposed fee
estimate is provided as “Attachment A”. Fee estimates are based upon Consultant’s 2024 Schedule of
Charges which is provided as “Attachment B”. Payment will be made at the Billing rates for personnel
working directly on the project, which will be made at the Consultant’s Hourly Rates, plus Direct Expenses
incurred.

Proposed Project Schedule

The following is an updated proposed schedule of services for the project.

>
>

Y V V VY

Notice to Proceed for Amendment (assumed) —July 1, 2024
Owner Supplied Additional Survey for Updated Project Limits (assumed ETA) — August 1, 2024

Kickoff, Data Collection and Site Recon for Updated Project Limits — August 1 to September 15,
2024

Geotechnical Investigation and 50% Preliminary Design — September 1 to October 31, 2024
Design and Permitting — November 15, 2024 to February 1, 2025
Bidding, Award and NTP — February 1 to March 1, 2025

Construction Period (4 months) — March 1 through June 30, 2025

Consor ¢ June 2024 « CRW
Amendment 1 for 82nd Drive Waterline Phase 2 Project ¢ 7

G:\PDX_BD\Clients\Clackamas River Water\2023 82nd Drive Main & 1-205 Crossings\Amendment 1\Amendment 1 - Scope 2024-6-5 - 82nd Drive (DRAFT).docx



Agenda Item —11
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

July 18, 2024

SUBJECT Management Report

PRINCIPAL STAFF Todd Heidgerken
PERSON

DOCUMENTS
ATTACHED

Table of Contents

The Management Report will have two sections: (A) an ovetview of GM
and Staff activity during the month; (B) informational articles (when
available)

A. Management Report

B. Informational articles or Materials- None at this time

July 18, 2024 Agenda Item 11 Page 1 of 3




Agenda Item —11
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

July 18, 2024

SUBJECT Management Report

PRINCIPAL STAFF  Todd Heidgerken
PERSON

BOARD ACTION None
REQUESTED

A. Management Report
1. Communications:
Monthly Report — The monthly report will be provided to the Board separately and
posted on the CRW Website.

2. Clackamas River Water Providers (CRWP) — The CRWP members met to review the
progtess on emetrgency management coordination and to outline the scope for continued
progtess this next fiscal year. To assist the partners, CRW Emergency Manager, Beth
McGinnis, prepared a report that captured some of the progress and provided items for
consideration in moving forward. The CRWP members noted the value in the exchange
of information and greater awareness of capability during the workshops that were held
this previous year. The focus this next year will be on providing emergency management
technical assistance and capacity building with the members; continue coordination efforts
with the County; create workshops and exercises to train for various scenarios; and help
to coordinate with other regional efforts. The next step is to refine the draft scope of
wotk and get the CRWP Board to approve moving forward. This coordination has
provided a valuable opportunity to improve the understanding of emergency functions
and setves as a helpful “kickoff” to coordination efforts.

3. Budget Award - We were pleased to be informed that the 2023-2025 CRW Biennial
Budget has received the Government Finance Officers Association’s (GFOA’s)
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award. The award is an acknowledgement of CRW’s
commitment to producing financial information that demonstrates the spirit of full
disclosure and transparency. The Budget process involves many staff, and our thanks
goes to those on the finance and accounting team who contributed to the budget
document, as well as a special note of thanks to Ted Ebora, CRW Senior Finance and
Accounting Specialist, for his assistance not only with the budget preparation but also
making sure we were considered for the award! Since we do a biennial budget, the award
1s good for two years.

4. CRW Sponsored Blood Drive- A huge thank you to Ted Ebora for once again getting
us on track and coordinating a CRW sponsored Blood Drive in June. In addition to CRW
and VCA staff, it was great to see membets of the community stop in and pull up their
sleeve to give. As the slogan says...” The need is constant. The gratification 1s instant.
Give Blood!”

July 18, 2024 Agenda Item 11 Page 2 of 3



July 18, 2024

Emergency Management Update — Wotk continued on the Clackamas River Water
(CRWP) collaborations to strengthen basin and county drinking water coordination in a
disaster (see item #2). In addition, CRW staff are prepating to participate in an upcoming
tabletop exercise in the fall that will build upon some of the information learned from
recent exercises. The focus will be the distribution of water in a major disaster.

Safety Update — June will have the timely focus on heat & smoke exposure rules for
applicable staff. Due to issues with the Hazard Communication course in the online
platform that is typically used for training, we will be conducting an in-petson training for
this content at an upcoming all-staff meeting. July will focus on electrical safety and
Control of Hazardous Energy/Lock out Tag out (for applicable staff). We are still
working towards our 3 straight year of no workers compensation claims. We are at the
midpoint of the year.

Secutity Update- A new Secutity Policy was announced at the all-staff meeting in June.
Managers will be diving into it more thoroughly at department meetings. We have been
making significant investments in improving the outdated secutity system to improve
reliability and effectiveness. The project has not been without its challenges, but we are
approaching the final stretch.

Looking Ahead:
There will be no July Work Session.
The agenda setting meeting for the August Board meeting will be held on
Thursday, July 25 at 9am.
The CRW Regular August Board Meeting will be held on Thursday, August 8 at
6pm.

Agenda Item 11 Page 3 of 3



Agenda Item — 13

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
July 18, 2024
SUBJECT Commissioner Reports and Reimbursement Requests
DRAFT MOTION NO MOTION REQUIRED
EFFECTIVE DATE
PRINCIPAL STAFF Board of Commissioners
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Commissioner Communications
REQUESTED
DOCUMENTS e Commissioner Reimbutsement Requests
ATTACHED ¢ Commissioner Assignments for FY 24/25
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND

July 18, 2024 Agenda Item 13 Page 1 of 1



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Commissioner Request for Reimbursement

Month April 2024 Commissioner’s Name Naomi Angier
Please Print
Date Meetings Amount
CRW Regular Board Meeting — $ 50.00
CRW Work Session $50.00
Miscellaneous Meeting __Regional water exec meeting $50.00
$
$
$
Total $ 150.00
Date Meals
$
$
$
$
Total §
Date Mileage *
$
$
$
$
$
$
Total $
Date Motel/Hotel Lodging **
$
$
$
$
Total $
Date Miscellaneous ***
$
$
$
Total $
* Mileage $. per mile
b Lodging bills must be attached in support of reimbursement request Total Expenses $
*** Miscellaneous expenses to be supported with bills where possible Adjustments $

Amount Due Commissioners $150.00

I hereby certify under penalties of perjury and other laws regarding falsification of records and/or official misconduct, the above
request for reimbursement to be accurate and complete and further certify that | am authorized to receive reimbursement as part of
my authorized duties as a CRW commissioner.

Respectfully submitted

Commissioner’s Signature

For Accounting:

Payroll: Taxable $.$150 Non-Taxable $ entered P/R_HQ

Accounts Payable: VENDOR # ACCT#.01.601,5730 AMOUNT $ Entered A/P
Board: Reimbursement as of 7/] /)Z;/

CF Date

m fo,v\ b“ {0 - :),Dz_t-\
—_~ \ i

Y \AD-Administration\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-08 General Information-BOARD\Reimbursements\Commission Reimbursement form-single
page.doc



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Commissioner Request for Reimbursement

Month May, 2024 3 Commissioner's Name Naomi Angier
Please Print
Date Meetings Amount
CRW Regqular Board Meeting — $ 50.00
CRW Work Session $50.00
Miscellaneous Meeting $
$
$
$
Total $ 100.00
Date Meals
$
$
$
$
Total $
Date Mileage *
$
$
$
$
$_
S
Total $
Date Motel/Hotel Lodging **
$
$
$
$
Total $
Date Miscellaneous *** !
$
$
$
Total $
* Mileage $. per mile
> Lodging bills must be attached in support of reimbursement request Total Expenses $

**  Miscellaneous expenses to be supported with bills where possible Adjustments 3
: Amount Due Commissioners $ 100.00

I hereby certify under penalties of perjury and other laws regarding falsification of records and/or official misconduct, the above
request for reimbursement to be accurate and complete and further certify that | am authorized to receive reimbursement as part of
my authorized duties as a CRW commissioner.

Respectfully submitted_NA@OMi Angier
Commissioner’s Signature

For Accounting:
Payroll: Taxable $ $100 Non-Taxable $_ entered P/R _HQ
Accounts Payable: VENDOR # ACCT#.01.601.4105 AMOUNT § Entered A/P

Board: Reimbursement as of

b-to-24

CFO Date

Y:\AD-Administratio’\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-08 General Information-BOARD\Reimbursements\Commission Reimbursement form-single
page.doc




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Commissioner Request for Reimbursement

Month \)u/vu, O/OQC/ Commissioner's Name 6 l’\(f’ Yy = V¢ t’/)’lélé
{ Please Print
Date ' Meetings " Amount
CRW Regular Board Meeting — 6/;(')7 $_90.0t)
CRW-Waork-Sescien ’ Dalbades $ o0 ~
Miscellaneous Meeting G/ /4~ He 280 Nrre & $ =
br2y ge nda! $ SO —
@//o’ TR AY Y IS $ so —
$ ZCJU v
Total § £S256 ~
Date Meals
$
$
$
$
Total $
Date Mileage *
$
$
S
$
$
$
Total §
Date Motel/Hotel Lodging **
$
$
s
$
Total §
Date Miscellaneous ***
$
$
$
Total $
% Mileage $. per mile
"' Lodging bills must be attached in support of reimbursement request Total Expenses $
**  Miscellaneous expenses to be supported with bills where possible Adjustments

$ g
Amount Due Commissioners $ ZE55> 23 ~

I hereby certify under penalties of perjury and other laws regarding falsification of records’and/or official misconduct, the above

request for reimbursement to be accurate and complete and further certify that | am a ed tGyeceive reimbursement as part of
my authorized duties as a CRW commissioner.
[ Commissioner’s Signature

Respectfully submitt

[For Accounting: g _
Payroll: Taxable$ ¢ O Non-Taxable $_ entered P/R

Accounts Payable: VENDOR # ACCT# 01.601.4105 AMOUNT § Entered A/P
Board: Re]nMsemen\ as of
y b~272-20 2}(
CFO Date

YMAD-Administratio\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-08 Geneyal Information-BOARD\Rcimbursements\Cominission Reimbursement form-single
page.doc



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Commissioner Request for Reimbursement

W

Yoy N ») o sl P é A

Month /&N €. :;l d k--L<7l Commissioner's Name /\ (.T)é) & V7 Pa N lor ! SC 40‘#’\/
7 7 Please Print

Date Meetings Amount

CRW Regular Board Meeting— (>/(3 /a 44 G 00 $_S50.°0
CRW Work Session ! g W $

Miscellaneous Meeting ~ &

Cl27/24; — A%

Total $ Z/ﬂ) e

Date Meals

Total $
Date Mileage *
$\
s
$_\
$\
$\
$\_
Total $
Date Motel/Hotel Lodging **

- O S
Total $

= Mileage $. per mile
* Lodging bills must be attached in support of reimbursement request Total Expenses $
™" Miscellaneous expenses to be Supported with bills where possible Adjustments $

Amount Due Commissioners $ 75&« T

I hereby certify under penalties of perjury and other laws regarding falsification of records g d/or official misconduct, the above

request for reimbursement to be accurate and complete and further certify that | am.authorized fo-regeive reimb, rsement as part of

my authorized duties as g CRW commissioner. — / | et
Respectfully sutiittag, ,&’A/_ p

gnature

For Accounting: - ;
Payroll: Taxable $1 5§ 2 Non-Taxable $ / entered P/R ﬁi Q

Accounts Payable: VENDOR# ACCT#.01.601.5730 AMOUNT § Entered A/P
Board: Reimbursement as of

e i

Date

Y:\AD-Administration\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-08 General Information-BOARD\Reimbnrsemenls\Commission Reimbursement form-single
page.doc



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Fiscal Year July 1, 2024 -June 30, 2025

CRW Assignments — Interagency Functions

Water Providers
North Clackamas County Water Commission
4™ Thursday in Jan, March, June & Sept

(Nccwce)

Primary / Alternate
Rusty Garrison

Oak Lodge Services District- 3 Tuesdays 6p
Sunrise Water Authority — 4th Wednesdays 6p
South Fork Water Board- 4th Wednesdays 6p

Industry Related Organizations
American Water Works Association

Sherry French

Sherry French

Primary / Alternate
Todd Heidgerken

C-4

Sherry French

Clackamas Fire/CRW Inter-Agency Committee

MPAC

Tessah Danel & Bob Rubitschun

Sherry French

Regional Water Providers Consortium

Naomi Angier

North Clackamas Chamber of Commerce

Todd Heidgerken

Oregon Water Utilities Council

Special Districts Association of Oregon

Todd Heidgerken

Todd Heidgerken

Primary 15t Name = BLUE

Y:\AD-Administration\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanent\Board Packet\2024
Board Meeting Summaries\07.18.2024 Reg Board Meeting\AG 13 Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Commish Assign.doc



e

Clackamas River Water

Clackamas River Water

Monthly Update

July 2024




Table of Contents

1Y/ oY1 o] NV LU oo = RS 2
PUICRASE OFAEI REPOIT....vieieieeee st sttt e et et ettt ste st st ste st e e s e s e s et et eseeseasesbe st e sesessessenbes et areareane et sbe st ses e sanbeneesbenensens 3
(67 ] o1 = Tot 31 o Y- ORI 4
0 g Taa b= T Ao =Y | P 4
(0] o] [ ol 2{=Tolo] e N 2= Yo [N K] Al Y=Y ol V7Y o EO USRIt 4
oY ol = I 2 (=T o Lo o £ P RPPPPPPN 5
] =1 1 oS TPTUPP 6
ACTIVITY REPOIES ..ttt ettt et e e s st ab e et e e e e e e s bbb et e eeeeeesaaabb b e e e eeeeeasaassbbeaaeeeesssaasssaaaeesesssannsnns 7

) (=] O] o T=T = A o] o [N 8
(0] o =T o= A To] g IN] - L 1 o [of PPNt 8
oY [=Totfl U oo - | =T PR R SRR 9-10

Water Resources & Water QUAlILY ......c.uuee ittt e e e e et e e e s e bt e e e sataeeessnsaeeeeaasseeeeanssaeesnnsreeeenn 11
Water DiStriDULION CRArtS ....c...ooiiiiieieiie ettt sttt ettt e s bt e s ae e st e st et e e b e e bt e sbeesbeesaee et e enbeenbeesbeesanenas 11
FTa] o] =3 20T oo o 3SR 12

U=V I =Y o] YRS 12
NON-REGUIAEOIY .ottt e e et e e e e st e e e e s bt ee e e abeeeeeanbeeeeeanbeeesesseeeeessseeesessseeesasnseeeesnnsens 12
A2 g o (oYY A oY Ve [ oY o 2Y=T o To ] o A PRSP 13
Monthly Update
Monthly Update July 2024 2|Page

H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-07 Month In Review.docx



Purchase Order Report- June 2024

Purchase Order Report June 2024

Vendor: 00011 - HACH COMPANY

PO # Description Total Amount
24-0154 HACH DR3900 SPECTROPHOTOMETER 5,547.60

Vendor: 00223 - ESRI INC.

PO # Description Total Amount
240165 ESRI SMALL UTILITY ENTERPRISE AGREEMENT JULY2024-25 28,400.00

Vendor: 005374 - ROGERS MACHINERY CO INC.

PO# Description Total Amount
240155 AR COMPRESSOR REPLACEMENT - REDLAMD PUMP STATION 571997

Vendor: 02657 - KMIFE RIVER

PO # Description Total Amount

240153 3/4 INCH MINUS CRUSHED ROCK DELIVERED 25,000.00
Vendor: 03845 - RITZ SAFETY LLC

PO # Description Total Amount

240159 RITZ SAFETY LADDER SYSTEM HENRICI EAST 1,793.93

PO# Description Total Amount

240160 RITZ SAFETY LADDER SYSTEM HENRICI WEST 1,785.68
Vendor: 03775 - FIELD INSTRUMENTS & CONTROLS

PO# Description Total Amount

240156 EH INLINE PH PROBES 325250

PO # Description Total Amount

240158 ROSEMOUNT OMSITE FILTER DP CALIBRATION 334697
Vendor: 04621 - ELOGGER INC.

PO# Description Total Amount

240157 ELOGGER SOFTWARE 2346500

Contract Log
(Executed since last board meeting Junel3, 2024)
Monthly Update July 2024 3|Page

H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-07 Month In Review.docx



Company Product / Service Rates Eff. Date Exp. Date | New/Amended/ Extended
AKS Engineering On-call Surveying NTE $75,000 7/1/24 6/30/26 New Contract
Pruning and weed
C & R Reforestation control NTE $40,000 10/17/23 6/13/28 Extended
Testing & inspection
Carlson Testing Inc for the WTP NTE $10,500 3/4/24 12/31/24 | Extended
Cascade Columbia Water Works Amended for increased NTE,
Distribution Co. Chemicals NTE $115,000 8/1/23 7/31/24 approved in June
Compass Land
Surveyors On-call Surveying NTE $75,000 7/1/24 6/30/26 New Contract
Consor North
America Inc. 82" Dr. WL NTE $135,106 1/11/24 11/30/24 | Extended for time
Harper Houf
Peterson Rhigellis On-call surveying NTE $75,000 7/1/24 6/30/26 New
Jackson Group Vehicle purchase and
Peterbuilt maintenance NTE $25,000 7/1/24 4/30/25 Extended
Kennedy/Jenks Emergency Power
Consultants Study NTE $109,203 1/11/24 9/30/24 Extended for time
Madrone Technology | IT Support, licenses, Extended and increased NTE,
Group Equipment & subs. NTE $219,000 7/1/21 6/30/25 Board approved in June
Grant Compliance
Matt Westbrook, LLC | Assistance NTE $15,000 9/11/23 6/30/25 Extended for time
Pacific Power Group | Generator
LLC Maintenance NTE $50,000 7/1/24 6/30/25 Extended for time
Petrocard Fuel Services NTE $33,500 12/1/19 7/1/26 Extended for time
VACX, A Division of Sub surface
G.A.W, Inc. exploration NTE $75,000 4/11/23 6/30/25 Extended for time
Safety Coordinator
WHA Inc. Services NTE $6,000 7/1/23 6/30/25 Extended for time
Summary of Legal
June 2024
Harrang Long Gary Rudnick monthly retainer S 4,600.00
Harrang Long Gary Rudnick work outside of retainer/Client Cost $ 1,413.16
Sub-contracted legal services S
Total Legal $ 6,013.16

Public Records Request Received

Number of Records Requests Received in June 2024

Monthly Update
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-07 Month In Review.docx

July 2024

4|Page




Financial Activity

$30,000,000

$25,000,000

$20,000,000

$15,000,000

InS

$10,000,000

$5,000,000

S0

M Debt Services

B CRWSC Activity

H CIP Bond Construction
CIP Expenditures

B GF-Capital Outlay

m GF-Materials & Services

B GF-Personnel Services

$30,000,000
$25,000,000
$20,000,000
$15,000,000
$10,000,000

$5,000,000

$0

B Other General Fund
CRWSC Revenue

mSDC

# Interest Other Funds

B Water Revenue

FY 2020
$1,695,275
$109,960
$2,960,320
$1,142,363
$317,482
$3,840,504
$5,375,908

FY 2020
$406,415
$113,119
$534,936
$194,244

$13,104,982

Expenditures through June

FY 2021
$1,695,400
$90,810
$79,025
$1,874,607
$769,622
$4,146,272
$5,061,762

FY 2022
$1,238,000
$62,812
S0
$888,477
$425,268
$4,211,043
$5,111,178

Revenue through June

FY 2023
$1,239,000
S0
S0
$834,453
$980,322
$4,881,954
$5,475,029

FY 2024
$1,238,300
S0
S0
$3,738,968
$1,076,406
$5,110,197
$5,416,369

FY 2021
$586,100
$91,168
$1,039,304
$63,660
$13,902,863

FY 2022
$617,935
$73,475
$768,163
$48,762
$14,992,329

FY 2023
$1,002,411

S0

$307,014
$340,540
$16,024,038

FY 2024
$788,204

S0

$310,899
$1,210,699
$17,107,869

1) SDC revenue picked up a few more applications in June. 2) Interest Other Fund revenue is higher primarily due to

increasing interest rates and a higher account balance. 3) CIP expenditure is high due to the completion of the

Valve Replacement project and increased activity on the Redland Rd project. 4) Unanticipated expenses in Contract
Work in Materials and Services are the main drivers for the higher-than-normal total. 5) There are no costs for CIP
Bond or CRWSC as those funds have been closed out but will be reported in the 5-year graph. 6) GF-Capital Outlay
is higher than in prior years due to purchased equipment related WTP project.

Monthly Update

July 2024

5|Page

H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-07 Month In Review.docx



Statistics

(as of the end of June 2024)
Residential Customers are billed on even months, Commercial Customers are billed on odd months.

Bill Payment Methods (Quantity)
12,000
10,000

8,000

In #s

6,000
4,000

2,000

Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24

B Cash/Check  ® Credit Card Electronic Funds Transfer

Bill Payment Methods (Amounts)

$2,400,000
$2,100,000
$1,800,000
$1,500,000

B $1,00,000
$900,000
$600,000
$300,000

$0

Jun-23  Jul-23  Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24
B Cash/Check © Credit Card Electronic Funds Transfer
Cash/Check — Received via Lockbox, Counter

Credit Card — Received via CRW Initiated Automatic Payment, Walk-ins/Phone Calls, and Website
Electronic Funds Transfer — Received via Bank-to-Bank Transfer, Automatic Checking Withdrawal (RapidPay)

3000 Shut-off Stats Customer Consumption (based on billing)
2500 800,000
2000 A 700,000
B W : = R . ,, 600,000
3 | 5 a I 8 3 B S so0000 A\
=3 3 » ‘3 5 A
1000 4 p
AEEREERER < w00
500 /
300,000
S EEEEEEEER NALALLKL
200,000
o o o o e W ’
N L L L R AR C N
M Late Notice Letter 2 Reminder Phone Calls M Total Shut-offs FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY2024

*Reminder Phone Calls are made during the even months. Shut offs occur the following month. **Jan/Feb late notice
number is an estimate *No late notices Sept-Dec. '20; reinstated February and sent in May 2021

Monthly Update July 2024 6|Page
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-07 Month In Review.docx



Activity Reports

(as of the end of June 2024)

New Services Meter Installations

35

30

25

20

15

New Meters Installed (in #s)

10

JUL  AUG  SEP OCT  NOV  DEC  JAN FEB.  MAR  APR  MAY  JUN
mFY 2022 mFY2023 mFY2024

No new services for Sept. FY21, April F22, Sept. FY 22, Sept. FY 23, Jan FY23, Oct. FY24, Jan FY24, Feb FY24

Replacement Meter Installations

120
110
100
90

80

70

60

50

40

New Meters Installed (in #s)

30

20

10

JUL AUG SEP ocCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

m FY 2022 HFY 2023 n FY 2024

Annual 2024 Goal for Meter Replacement is 350- Year to date is 213.

Monthly Update July 2024 7|Page
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-07 Month In Review.docx



Operation Statistics

System Operations & Engineering

Leak Leak Meter Cross
Repairs . Valve After- Maintenance | Connection
Detection Hydrant Locate . .
Made . Maintenance hours Tasks Inspections
. Completed | Maintenance | Requests .
(all pipe ) & Mapping Callouts
. (miles)

sizes)
Jan. 2024 3 0 38 311 4 28 60 5
Feb. 2024 0 0 109 340 116 3 0 13
Mar. 2024 1 0 4 397 7 3 86 16
April 2024 0 0 91 483 18 3 0 0
May 2024 1 0 21 469 35 4 44 15
June 2024 0 22.0 127 402 1 5 0 10
July 2024
Aug. 2024
Sep. 2024
Oct. 2024
Nov. 2024
Dec. 2024
Total to 5 22.0 390 2402 181 46 190 59
Date
2024
Annual N/A 97 905 N/A 600 N/A N/A 96
Goal

Note - Annual maintenance goals are established based on several criteria including; AWWA Best Management
Practices, identified system priority maintenance and repair focus needs, and internal/external project forecasts.

Monthly Update
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-07 Month In Review.docx

July 2024

8|Page




Project Updates

Capital Project Status Report — June 2024

5301 Trans/CRW Impact Projects $250,000 $9,033 $240,967
Utility coordination and adjustments at: Johnson Cr. Blvd at 79th Place Signals; ODOT 82nd Ave., Webster Rd.

5303 82nd Dr. Waterline Phase 2 $1,041,000 $95,199 $945,801 = In Design
Evaluating alternative routes.

5291 I-205 Crossings: $1,119,000 $126,591 $992,409 In Design
Design consultant progressing. Evaluating alternative routes.

5306 Redland Rd. Waterline Phase 2 $1,355,000 $734,407 $620,593 = Construction
Punch list items are ongoing.

5307 Redland Rd. PRV $1,003,000 $27,480 $975,520 In Design

Design underway. Survey delivered.

5308 Low Lift PS Improvements $749,000 S0 $749,000 = No Activity
No Activity.
5309 WTP Structural Improvements $1,000,000 $221,122 $778,878 Construction

Evaluating next steps.

5273 Redland Rd. Waterline Phase 1 $666,000 $357,800 $308,200 Construction
Punch list items are ongoing.

5270 Linwood Road Improvements $210,000 $104,192 $105,808 Construction
Punch list items are ongoing.

5278 Monroe Street Improvements $850,000 $50,327 $799,673  In Design
Design at 90% complete. Tentative construction in early 2025.

5280 Pump Station Chlorine $142,000 $5,578 $136,422  In Design
Design at 30% complete. Construction tentative during summer of 2024.

5281 WTP Polymer Feed System $252,000 $938 $251,062 In Design
Designing space and layout of proposed feed system on first floor of WTP. Construction tentative beginning of 2025.

5282 WTP Filter Valve Replacement $1,302,000 $1,248,053 $53,947 Complete

5302 King Rd Improvements S0 S0 S0 | Design
Opportunity project with City of Milwaukie Road improvements. Approx. 1000 LF of waterline replacement.

5305 Webster Improvement SO $26,893 (526,893)  In Design
Bid opening scheduled in July.

5292 Johnson Cr Blvd Improvements SO $2,004 (52,004) ' In Design
Coordinating utility conflicts for Clackamas County Road improvements.

5312 Thiessen Rd. Culvert Crossing SO $2,358 (52,358) In Design

Coordinating 8” waterline relocation to accommodate Clackamas County culvert replacement.

*FY24 final numbers not available until FY24 audit completion

Monthly Update July 2024 9|Page
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-07 Month In Review.docx



Project Updates

Private Project Tracking - June 2024

Project Description Status
No.
20-5262 Bonaventure 6” fire service and 3” . . .
. L Const. Site construction ongoing.
Private = Senior Living meter
215289 224 Logistics  Uhed Grocer site; 4 Complete.
. fire & 4 Domestic Const.
Private Center .
Services
22-5295 Jannsen Multi- o fire and domestic
. . service for 8-plex Const. On Hold.
Private = Family
development.
22-.5298 Serre_s .FE-erS 7-lot of subdivision Const. Pending Construction Start
Private = Subdivision
. 4-Warehouses with
23-.5299 Prologis Park Fire and domestic Const. Pending Construction Start
Private Clackamas .
service
23-5304 WES -T2 Relocate waterline at . .
. " . . Const. Pending Construction Start
Private = 30” Force Main  four locations
Monthly Update July 2024 10| Page

H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-07 Month In Review.docx



Water Distribution Charts

CRW Water Treatment Plant

(in MGs)

(as of the end of June 2024)

OoCT NOV DEC

Total CRW - Water Produced and Purchased

L AUG

SEPT

400

300

200

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JU

2022 m 2023 m2024

*March & April 2024 Data includes water purchased from NCCWC during WTP Shutdown

North Side - Water Produced

AUG

JAN FEB MAR  APR  MAY  JUNE  JULY SEPT
2022 m2023 ®m 2024

Water Produced (in MGs)

OCT NOV DEC

*March & April 2024 Data includes water purchased from NCCWC during WTP Shutdown

South Fork Water Board- Water Purchased

= 90
g
73 75
= =
B
g <
m ©
58 4 Fi
e
D& 30 . —_—
2% . Pub mr PR g L —I—I——I—
45 ; " 1 "
3 0
JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JuL AUG  SEPT ocT NOV DEC
2022 w2023 m 2024
Monthly Update July 2024 11| Page

H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-07 Month In Review.docx



Sampling Reports

(as of the end of June 2024)

Regulatory
All 73 samples collected and analyzed for the June monitoring period showed no presence of coliform/E.
coli bacteria.

Cyanotoxin Testing
Microcystin and Cylindrospermopsin sampling of our raw water began in May and occurs every two
weeks for compliance.

No cyanotoxins have been detected in our raw water.

Non-Regulatory
General water quality parameters (pH, temperature, chlorine, TDS, hardness, alkalinity) were collected
throughout the distribution system at 16 locations in the North and South systems.

Weekly algae monitoring is occurring at 3 locations in the North Fork Reservoir and CRW'’s intakes. This
work includes species monitoring with the FlowCAM and nutrient analysis.

Monthly watershed sampling was conducted at 4 long-term sampling locations for total organic carbon,
nutrients (nitrate/nitrite, total phosphorus, orthophosphate, etc.), coliform density, pH, dissolved oxygen,
TDS, temperature, and volatile organic carbon compounds (VOCs, 21 regulated for drinking water, 36
unregulated).

Monthly Update July 2024 12| Page
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-07 Month In Review.docx



River Flow Conditions Reports

¢ The current Clackamas River 7-day average streamflow is 85% of normal (median).

eJune precipitation in the Clackamas basin was 113% of normal. Precipitation since the beginning of the water
year (October 1 — July 15) has been 103% of normal.

¢ The three-month outlook (Jul-Sep) from the NOAA Climate Prediction Center calls for equal chances of above
and below temperatures and precipitation for Western Oregon.

Clackamas River near Oregon City, OR (14211010)
Data from U.S. Geological Survey, Jun-08-2001 to Jul-16-2024

LA L L L L L L L min-max
7] 10-90 pctl
4600 — 25-75 pctl
| —— median
4100 —| —— 2021
| — 2022
- 5 — 2023
— oy —— T, Y
o] — Fallr
= 3600 i
— -
Q -
g _
B 3100 B ]
Q C _
0 L -
o = i
c 2600 — —]
m = =
Q - -
S - -
@ 2100 ]
=B !
I~ 5 -
1600 — —
1100 —
col Lo v Ly by o] T
§ 8 ¢ 5 82 82 § 35 ¢ 8 3 2 &
> 5 g E S = = o o g a o by
g 3 2 3 S S = é .E :.?; g .;H (S ES 5
Tue Jul 18 13:21:22 2024
Monthly Update July 2024 13| Page

H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-07 Month In Review.docx



	CRW 7.18.24 Reg. Board Meeting agenda
	CA 1 gross Payroll & Accounts paid
	CA 1 Earnings statements
	CA 1 check history
	CA 2 Cash & Investments ending balances report
	CA 3 Project acceptance:  accept capital outlay project "SysOps Shop Reovation", project 23-2329
	AG 1 Consider adoption of Res 01-20225 adopting the CRW representation in the updates to the Clackamas County Multi-jurisdictional natural hazard mitigation plan
	AG 1 exh A
	AG 1 Exh B
	AG 2 Recurring payments: consider approbal of recurring payments for FY 24-25 contracts in excess of GM's approval authority
	AG 2 Exh A
	AG 2 Exh B
	AG 3 Consider approval of contract with Springbrook for financial system software and annual subscription fees
	AG 3 Exh A
	AG 3 Axh B
	AG 4 Consider Second reading, by title only and adoption of res. 07-2024 amending board policy
	AG 4 Res. 07-2024
	AG 5 Consider approval of the payment to North Clackamas County water Commission for water poourchases during the CRW Water Treatment Plant shutdown project
	AG 6 Consider approval of Res 023-2025 request for annexation into CRW Services Boundary for Property at 19510 S. Ferguson Terr.
	AG 6 Exh. A
	AG 6 Exh B
	AG 6 Exh C
	AG 6 Res. 02-2025
	AG 7 Consider Exemption to rules and regulations requiring frontage to main for water service at 17482 Garden Lane
	AG 7 Exh A
	AG 7 Exh B
	AG 8 Consider approval of purchase of replacement F550 Service truck for meter maintenance tasks
	AG 9 Professional Services agreement amendment:  I-205 Crossings consultant services, Project 22-5291
	AG 9 Exh A
	AG 9 Professional Services agreement amendment:  82nd Dr. Waterline Phase 2 consultant services, Project 23-5303
	AG 10 Exh A
	AG 11 Management Report
	AG 13 Commissioner Reports and Reimbursement requests
	AG 13 reimbursement requests
	AG 13 CRW FY 25 Commissioner Assignments

